
 
Regular Meeting of the  

Calimesa City Council & Calimesa Financing Authority 
May 5, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 

City of Calimesa 
Regular Meeting of the City Council  

AGENDA 
Monday, May 5, 2014 

                                        6:00 p.m. 
Norton Younglove Multipurpose Senior Center  

908 Park Avenue, Calimesa, CA 92320 
 

 

William Davis, Mayor  Jeff Hewitt, Mayor Pro Tem 
Jim Hyatt, Council Member  Joyce McIntire, Council Member  Ella Zanowic, Council Member 

Randy Anstine, City Manager  Kevin Ennis, City Attorney 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in a City meeting 
or other services offered by this City, please contact the City Clerk’s Office, (909) 795-9801.  Notification of at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 

Any public writings distributed by the City to at least a majority of the Council Members regarding any item on this 
regular meeting agenda will be made available at the public counter at City Hall located at 908 Park Avenue, 
Calimesa, CA 92320 
 

 

ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING SPEAKER SLIPS 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council either during “Communications from the Public” or on any item on the agenda should fill 
out a blue speaker slip and give that slip to the City Clerk prior to the item being heard.  Please write the number of the agenda 
item or the subject of your presentation on the slip.  Please observe a time limit of three (3) minutes when giving your 
presentation.  When called upon, please step forward to the microphone, state your name for the record, whom you represent and 
any statement you wish to make.  Please be advised that you may not defer your three (3) minutes to another speaker. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL: MAYOR DAVIS, MAYOR PRO TEM HEWITT, COUNCIL MEMBER 

HYATT, COUNCIL MEMBER MCINTIRE, COUNCIL MEMBER 
ZANOWIC. 

 
STAFF: CITY MANAGER ANSTINE, CITY ATTORNEY ENNIS, CITY CLERK 

GERDES, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER/FINANCE DIRECTOR 
JOHNSON, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR FRENCH, COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR EVANS, CITY ENGINEER THORNTON, 
FIRE CHIEF GREGG AND POLICE CHIEF RAYA. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

Proclamation – May is Mental Health Month – Mark Miller, Desert Regional Mental Health Board Chair 
 

COP Swearing In of New Members – Don Kline, COP Commander 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District – Joe Zoba, General Manager 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Anyone wishing to address the Council on any item within the Council’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda may do so at this time.  
This is not a time for Council Member comment or action, but the Council may ask questions for clarification or make a referral to 
staff for factual information to be reported back to the Council at a later meeting. 

Page 1 of 117



 
Regular Meeting of the  

Calimesa City Council & Calimesa Financing Authority 
May 5, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Move to approve the agenda 
 

Motion___________________ Second_________________ Vote_________________ 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

The following Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  Council will act 
upon them at one time without discussion.  Any Council Member or staff member may request removal of 
an item from the Consent Calendar for discussion. 
 

1. APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES. 
 

a. City Council Action Minutes of April 21, 2014 Regular Meeting. 
 

2. RECEIVE AND FILE CITY COMMISSION & BOARD MINUTES. 
 

a. There are no minutes ready for approval at this time 
 

3. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTERS. 
 

a. Check Register Report with a total of $292,602.61 (Check Nos. 27967 to 27990) 
b. April 24, 2014 Payroll of $26,655.45. 

 

4. WAIVE FULL READING OF ANY PROPOSED ORDINANCES ON THE 
AGENDA. 
 

This permits reading the title only in lieu of reciting the entire text of the 
Ordinances.  This does not take policy action on the Ordinances or approve or 
disapprove any Ordinances on the agenda. 
 

 

CHIEF OF POLICE COMMENTS & REPORTS 
 
FIRE CHIEF COMMENTS & REPORTS 

 
MAYOR & COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTING OF COUNTY & REGIONAL MEETINGS 
 
CONVENE JOINT CITY COUNCIL AND CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY 
MEETING 
 
JOINT MEETING BUSINESS ITEM 
 

1.    TAX-ADVANTAGE BONDS POST-ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2014-14, 
Adopting Tax-Advantaged Bonds Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures. 
 

2.    REAPPROVING THE FORM OF THE PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
FOR THE AUTHORITY’S TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  That the Authority Board of Directors adopt CFA Resolution 
No. 2014-03, Reapproving the form of the Preliminary Official Statement for the 
Authority’s Tax Allocation Refunding Revenue Bonds (Calimesa Redevelopment 
Project No. 1 and Project No. 5), Series 2014, to Deem it final under Rule 15c2-12 
and authorizing certain other matters relating thereto. 

 
ADJOURN THE CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY MEETING AND RECONVENE  
CITY COUNCIL 
 

Page 2 of 117

dgerdes
Typewritten Text
Page 4

dgerdes
Typewritten Text
Page 11

dgerdes
Typewritten Text
Page 12

dgerdes
Typewritten Text
Page 17

dgerdes
Typewritten Text
Page 18

dgerdes
Typewritten Text

dgerdes
Typewritten Text
Page 30



 
Regular Meeting of the  

Calimesa City Council & Calimesa Financing Authority 
May 5, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS & REPORTS 
 

This is the time for additional general comments, announcements, reports on meetings attended at public expense as required by 
AB 1234, requests of staff, and other issues of concern to Council Members may be presented briefly at this time.  The Council may 
not legally take action on any item presented at this time other than to direct staff to investigate a complaint or place an item on a 
future agenda unless (1) by a majority vote, the Council determines that an emergency situation exists, as defined by Government 
Code § 54956.5 or (2) by a four-fifths vote, the Council determines that there is a need for immediate action and the need for action 
arose subsequent to the agenda being posted as required by Government Code § 54954.2(b). 

 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS & REPORTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the Regular Meeting of the City Council on Monday, May 19, 2014 at 6:00 
p.m. 

Page 3 of 117



Page 4 of 117



Page 5 of 117



Page 6 of 117



Page 7 of 117



Page 8 of 117



Page 9 of 117



Page 10 of 117



Page 11 of 117



Page 12 of 117



Page 13 of 117



Page 14 of 117



Page 15 of 117



Page 16 of 117



Page 17 of 117



Page 18 of 117



Page 19 of 117



Page 20 of 117



Page 21 of 117



Page 22 of 117



Page 23 of 117



Page 24 of 117



Page 25 of 117



Page 26 of 117



Page 27 of 117



Page 28 of 117



Page 29 of 117



Page 30 of 117



Page 31 of 117



Page 32 of 117



Page 33 of 117



PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED MAY ___, 2014 
 

  RWG DRAFT 4/29/14 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Th
is

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

O
ff

ic
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

or
 a

m
en

dm
en

t. 
 T

he
se

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
so

ld
 n

or
 m

ay
 o

ff
er

s 
to

 b
uy

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

da
te

d 
da

te
 o

f 
th

e 
O

ff
ic

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

t i
n 

its
 fi

na
l f

or
m

.  
U

nd
er

 n
o 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
sh

al
l t

hi
s 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

O
ff

ic
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
t c

on
st

itu
te

 a
n 

of
fe

r 
to

 s
el

l o
r a

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y 
no

r s
ha

ll 
th

er
e 

be
 a

ny
 s

al
e 

of
 th

es
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
in

 a
ny

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 su

ch
 o

ff
er

, s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

or
 sa

le
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
la

w
fu

l. 
NEW ISSUE – BOOK ENTRY ONLY [RATING:  S&P:  “______”][NOT RATED] 
(BANK QUALIFIED) See “CONCLUDING INFORMATION – [No] Rating” herein. 

In the opinion of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) assuming continuing 
compliance with certain covenants and the accuracy of certain representations, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and 
corporations, and the Bonds are qualified tax-exempt obligations as that term is defined in Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
as amended, and (ii) interest on the Bonds is exempt from personal income taxation by the State of California.  Interest on the Bonds may be 
subject to certain federal taxes imposed only on certain corporations, including the corporate alternative minimum tax on a portion of that interest. 
See “CONCLUDING INFORMATION – Tax Exemption” herein for a discussion of the effect of certain provisions of the Code on Owners of the 
Bonds. 

$3,045,000* 
CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY 

TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS 
(CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT NO. 1 AND PROJECT NO. 5) 

SERIES 2014 
Dated:  Delivery Date Due:  December 1, as shown on inside cover 

The above-captioned bonds (the “Bonds”) are being issued by the Calimesa Financing Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to an Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of May 1, 2014 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as 
trustee (the “Trustee”).  Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to fund (i) a loan (the “2014 Project No. 1 Loan”) to the Successor Agency to the 
Calimesa Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) with respect to the Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 (“Project No. 1”), and (ii) a loan 
(the “2014 Project No. 5 Loan”; and together with the 2014 Project No. 1 Loan, the “2014 Loans”), to the Agency with respect to the Calimesa 
Redevelopment Project Area No. 5 (“Project No. 5”; and together with Project No. 1, the “Project Areas”), pursuant to the terms of, respectively, a 
Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2014, with respect to Project No. 1, by and among the Authority, the Agency, and the Trustee (the “2014 
Project No. 1 Loan Agreement”), and a Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2014, with respect to Project No. 5, by and among the Authority, the 
Agency, and the Trustee (the “2014 Project No. 5 Loan Agreement”; and together with the 2014 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement, the “2014 Loan 
Agreements”).  The proceeds of the 2014 Loans will be used to (i) refinance the outstanding obligations of the Agency under a loan agreement 
dated as of March 1, 2008 (the “2008 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement”), with respect to the Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 (“Project 
No. 1”); (ii) refinance the outstanding obligations of the Agency under a loan agreement dated as of March 1, 2008 (the “2008 Project No. 5 Loan 
Agreement”; and together with the 2008 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement, the “2008 Loan Agreements”), with respect to the Calimesa 
Redevelopment Project Area No. 5 (“Project No. 5”); (iii) fund reserve subaccounts for the 2014 Loans; and (iv) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

The Bonds will be delivered as fully registered bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York (“DTC”), and will be available to ultimate purchasers (“Beneficial Owners”) in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof, under the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Beneficial Owners will not be entitled to receive delivery of bond certificates 
representing their ownership interest in the Bonds. The principal of, premium if any, and semiannual interest (due June 1 and December 1 of each 
year, commencing December 1, 2014) on the Bonds will be payable by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the 
“Trustee”), to DTC for subsequent disbursement to DTC participants, so long as DTC or its nominee remains the registered owner of the Bonds 
(see “THE BONDS— Book-Entry System” herein). 

The Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to their maturity under certain conditions as described herein, including 
mandatory redemption upon acceleration of the payments due under a 2014 Loan Agreement (as defined herein) upon the occurrence of certain 
events of default under such 2014 Loan Agreement.  See “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS – The Loan Agreement-Events of Default and Remedies.” 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority and payable from and equally and ratably secured by a first pledge of Revenues (as defined 
herein) consisting primarily of certain property tax revenues to be derived from the Project Areas, received by the Agency, and paid to the 
Authority as 2014 Loan payments pursuant to the 2014 Loan Agreements.  Taxes levied on the property within the Project Areas on that portion of 
the taxable valuation over and above the taxable valuation of the respective base year property tax roll to the extent they constitute Pledged Tax 
Revenues, shall be deposited in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, held and administered by the Agency and transferred to the 
Revenue Fund held by the Trustee, in accordance with the Indenture. 

This cover page of the Official Statement contains information for quick reference only.  It is not a complete summary of the Bonds.  
Investors should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision with 
respect to the Bonds.  Attention is hereby directed to certain Risk Factors more fully described herein. 

Neither the Bonds, nor the obligations of the Agency under the 2014 Loan Agreements, are a debt of the City of Calimesa (the “City”), the 
State of California (the “State”) or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency and the Authority, as applicable) and neither said City, said 
State or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency and the Authority, as applicable) is liable therefor.  The principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds ultimately are payable from and secured by the Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Agency from the Project Areas 
and payable by the Agency to the Authority under the 2014 Loan Agreements.  The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of 
any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

The Bonds are offered, when, as and if issued, subject to the approval of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Los 
Angeles, California, Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel.  Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Underwriter by Quint & Thimmig 
LLP, Larkspur, California, Underwriter’s Counsel.  It is anticipated that the Bonds will be available for delivery to DTC in New York, New York, 
on or about May 28, 2014. 

[LOGO FOR JEFFERIES LLC] 
Dated:  May __, 2014 

                                                   
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Page 34 of 117



 

  
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

$3,045,000* 
CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY 

TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS 
(CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT NO. 1 AND PROJECT NO. 5) 

SERIES 2014 

MATURITY SCHEDULE* 
(Base CUSIP† 130836) 

$1,675,000 Serial Bonds 

Maturity Date  Principal  Interest    CUSIP† 
(December 1)  Amount  Rate  Yield  Suffix 

2014  $155,000       
2015  90,000       
2016  90,000       
2017  95,000       
2018  95,000       
2019  100,000       
2020  95,000       
2021  105,000       
2022  110,000       
2023  110,000       
2024  115,000       
2025  120,000       
2026  125,000       
2027  135,000       
2028  135,000       

 
$800,000 ____% Term Bonds due December 1, 2033 - Yield – ____% - CUSIP† Suffix ___ 
$570,000 ____% Term Bonds due December 1, 2038 - Yield – ____% - CUSIP† Suffix ___ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
†   CUSIP® Copyright 2014, CUSIP Global Services, and a registered trademark of American Bankers 

Association.  CUSIP® data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services, which is managed on behalf 
of American Bankers Association by S&P Capital IQ.  Neither the Authority nor the Underwriter 
guarantees the accuracy of the CUSIP® data. 

 
 

                                                   
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Page 35 of 117



 

  
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

 

CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY 

Authority Commission / Successor Agency Board of Directors / City Council Members 

William “Bill” Davis, President / Chair / Mayor 
Jeffrey Hewitt, Vice President / Vice-Chair / Mayor Pro Tem 

Jim Hyatt, Authority Commissioner / Director / Council Member 
Joyce McIntire, Authority Commissioner / Director / Council Member 
Ella Zanowic, Authority Commissioner / Director / Council Member 

Authority / Agency / City Staff 

Randy Anstine, Chief Administrative Officer / Executive Director / City Manager  
Bonnie Johnson, Assistant City Manager / Finance Director 

Darlene Gerdes, Authority Secretary / Agency Secretary / City Clerk 
Kevin G. Ennis, Esq., Authority Counsel / Agency Counsel / City Attorney 

__________________________________ 

 
SPECIAL SERVICES 

Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel 

Richards, Watson & Gershon,  
A Professional Corporation 

Los Angeles, California 

Financial Advisor / Continuing Disclosure Dissemination Agent 

Urban Futures, Inc. 
Orange, California 

Trustee / Escrow Agent 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.  
Los Angeles, California 

Underwriter 

Jefferies LLC 
San Francisco, California 

  

Page 36 of 117



 

  
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

No Offering May Be Made Except by this Official Statement.  No dealer, broker, salesperson or other 
person has been authorized by the Authority or the Agency to give any information or to make any representations 
with respect to the Bonds other than as contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other 
information or representation must not be relied upon as having been given or authorized by the Authority, the 
Agency or the Underwriter. 

Use of Official Statement.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds 
described in this Official Statement and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.  
This Official Statement does not constitute a contract between any Bond owner and the Authority, the Agency or the 
Underwriter. 

Preparation of this Official Statement.  The information contained in this Official Statement has been 
obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable, but this information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or 
completeness.  The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

Estimates and Forecasts.  When used in this Official Statement and in any continuing disclosure made by 
the Agency, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” 
“project,” “forecast,” “expect,” “intend” and similar expressions identify “forward looking statements” within the 
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Such statements are subject to risks and 
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-looking 
statements.  Any forecast is subject to such uncertainties.  Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop the 
forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur.  Therefore, there are likely to 
be differences between forecasts and actual results, and those differences may be material.  

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information and expressions of opinion contained 
in this Official Statement are subject to change without notice.  Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor 
any sale of the Bonds will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the 
affairs of the Authority or the Agency, or the other parties described in this Official Statement, since the date of this 
Official Statement. 

Document Summaries.  All summaries of the Indenture, the 2014 Loan Agreements, or other documents 
contained in this Official Statement are made subject to the provisions of such documents and do not purport to be 
complete statements of any or all such provisions.  All references in this Official Statement to the Indenture, the 
2014 Loan Agreements, and such other documents are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, 
which are on file with the Agency.   

No Unlawful Offers or Solicitations.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a 
solicitation of an offer to buy in any state in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person 
making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer 
or solicitation.   

No Registration with the SEC.  The issuance and sale of the Bonds have not been registered under the 
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, both as amended, in reliance upon exemptions 
provided thereunder by Sections 3(a)(2) and 3(a)(12), respectively, for the issuance and sale of municipal securities. 

Public Offering Prices. The Underwriter may overallot or take other steps that stabilize or maintain the 
market price of the Bonds at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market.  If commented, 
the Underwriter may discontinue such market stabilization at any time.  The Underwriter may offer and sell the 
Bonds to certain dealers and dealer banks and banks acting as agent at prices lower than the public offering prices 
stated on the inside cover page of this Official Statement, and the Underwriter may change those public offering 
prices from time to time. 

Web Page. The City of Calimesa maintains a website. However, the information maintained on the website 
is not a part of this Official Statement and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision with respect 
to the Bonds. 

Page 37 of 117



 

 i 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PAGE NO. 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................ 1 
Authority for Issuance .......................................................................................................................... 1 
Purpose  ................................................................................................................................................ 1 
The City and the Agency ...................................................................................................................... 2 
The Project Areas ................................................................................................................................. 3 
Tax Allocation Financing ..................................................................................................................... 3 
Security for the Bonds .......................................................................................................................... 4 
Reserve Account .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Additional Authority Bonds; Parity Debt .............................................................................................. 6 
Further Information .............................................................................................................................. 6 
PLAN OF REFUNDING ...................................................................................................................... 6 
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS..................................................................................................... 7 
THE BONDS ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
Authority for Issuance .......................................................................................................................... 7 
Description of the Bonds ...................................................................................................................... 7 
Book-Entry System .............................................................................................................................. 8 
Optional Redemption............................................................................................................................ 8 
Sinking Fund Redemption of Term Bonds ............................................................................................ 9 
Mandatory Redemption Upon Acceleration of a 2014 Loan .................................................................. 9 
Purchase of Bonds .............................................................................................................................. 10 
General Redemption Provisions .......................................................................................................... 10 
Transfer or Exchange ......................................................................................................................... 11 
Events of Default and Acceleration of Bonds ...................................................................................... 11 
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ......................................................................................................... 13 
The Indenture ..................................................................................................................................... 13 
Loan Agreements ............................................................................................................................... 13 
Tax Increment Financing .................................................................................................................... 16 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule .......................................................................................... 17 
Reserve Account ................................................................................................................................ 20 
Bond Funds ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
Additional Obligations on a Parity with a 2014 Loan .......................................................................... 23 
Additional Authority Bonds ................................................................................................................ 25 
Bonds Not a Debt of the City of Calimesa or the State of California.................................................... 25 
THE AUTHORITY ............................................................................................................................ 26 
THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ..................... 26 
Agency Powers .................................................................................................................................. 27 
RISK FACTORS ................................................................................................................................ 28 
Reduction in Taxable Value ................................................................................................................ 28 
Risks to Real Estate Market ................................................................................................................ 28 
Reduction in Inflationary Rate ............................................................................................................ 29 
Development Risks............................................................................................................................. 29 
Levy and Collection of Taxes ............................................................................................................. 29 
Concentration of Ownership ............................................................................................................... 30 
Time Limits on Receiving Tax Increment Revenues ........................................................................... 30 
State Budget Issues ............................................................................................................................. 30 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule .......................................................................................... 31 
AB 1484 Penalty for Failure to Remit Unencumbered Funds .............................................................. 33 

Page 38 of 117



 

 ii 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Bankruptcy and Foreclosure ............................................................................................................... 34 
Estimated Revenues ........................................................................................................................... 35 
Hazardous Substances ........................................................................................................................ 35 
Seismic Factors .................................................................................................................................. 35 
Risk of Floods .................................................................................................................................... 36 
Changes in the Law ............................................................................................................................ 36 
Investment Risk .................................................................................................................................. 36 
Additional Obligations ....................................................................................................................... 36 
Secondary Market .............................................................................................................................. 37 
No Validation Proceeding Undertaken ................................................................................................ 37 
Loss of Tax-Exemption ...................................................................................................................... 38 
PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA ..................................................................................... 38 
Property Tax Collection Procedures .................................................................................................... 38 
State Assessed Property ...................................................................................................................... 40 
Article XIIIA of the State Constitution ............................................................................................... 41 
Appropriations Limitation - Article XIIIB .......................................................................................... 42 
Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the State Constitution ............................................................................. 42 
Proposition 87 .................................................................................................................................... 42 
Appeals of Assessed Values ............................................................................................................... 42 
Proposition 8 ...................................................................................................................................... 43 
Propositions 218 and 26...................................................................................................................... 43 
Future Initiatives ................................................................................................................................ 44 
THE PROJECT AREAS..................................................................................................................... 45 
General Information ........................................................................................................................... 45 
Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plans ................................................................ 46 
Pass-Through Agreements .................................................................................................................. 48 
Statutory Pass-Throughs ..................................................................................................................... 49 
Land Uses in Project Areas ................................................................................................................. 51 
Largest Taxpayers .............................................................................................................................. 52 
Appeals .............................................................................................................................................. 53 
PLEDGED REVENUES .................................................................................................................... 54 
Schedules of Historical Incremental Revenues .................................................................................... 54 
Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues .................................................................... 55 
Annual Debt Service........................................................................................................................... 57 
Debt Service Coverage – 2014 Loans ................................................................................................. 58 
CONCLUDING INFORMATION ...................................................................................................... 59 
Underwriting ...................................................................................................................................... 59 
Legal Opinion .................................................................................................................................... 59 
Tax Exemption ................................................................................................................................... 59 
No Litigation ...................................................................................................................................... 61 
[No] Rating ........................................................................................................................................ 61 
Continuing Disclosure ........................................................................................................................ 61 
Miscellaneous .................................................................................................................................... 64 
 
APPENDIX A – GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF CALIMESA ................ A-1 
APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 

LOAN AGREEMENTS ............................................................................................ B-1 
APPENDIX C – FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION .................................................................. C-1 
APPENDIX D – BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM ............................................................................. D-1 
APPENDIX E – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT ........................................E-1 

Page 39 of 117



 

 iii 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX F – ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
(EXCERPTS) ............................................................................................................ F-1 

APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT ........................................................................ G-1 
APPENDIX H – DOF DETERMINATION LETTER .......................................................................... H-1

Page 40 of 117



 

 1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

$3,045,000* 
CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY 

TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS 
(CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT NO. 1 AND PROJECT NO. 5) 

SERIES 2014 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction does not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the cover page, the 
body of this Official Statement, the appendices hereto, and the documents referred to herein for more 
complete information with respect to matters concerning the Bonds.  Potential investors are encouraged 
to read the entire Official Statement.  Definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement are set 
forth in “APPENDIX B — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 
2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS.” 

Authority for Issuance 

The Authority is a joint powers authority, duly organized and existing under and pursuant to that 
certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated February 4, 2008 (the “Joint Powers Agreement”), by 
and between the City of Calimesa, California (the “City”), and the Calimesa Redevelopment Agency (the 
“Prior Agency”), as succeeded by the Successor Agency to the Calimesa Redevelopment Agency (the 
“Agency”), and under the provisions of Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 
5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”), and is authorized 
pursuant to Article 4 of the Act (the “Bond Law”) to borrow money and loan the proceeds to the Agency 
for the purpose of financing and refinancing public capital improvements of the Agency. 

The above-captioned bonds (the “Bonds”) are being issued in accordance with the Bond Law, a 
resolution (the “Authority Resolution”) adopted by the Authority on February 3, 2014 and an Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of May 1, 2014 (the “Indenture), by and between the Authority and The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”).  The Bonds are limited obligations of the 
Authority entitled, ratably and equally, to the benefits of the Indenture and are payable solely from and 
secured by an assignment and pledge of Revenues, consisting primarily of the Authority’s interest in 
certain loan repayments to be made by the Agency under two separate 2014 Loan Agreements (herein 
defined).  The Agency’s obligations under the 2014 Loan Agreements are secured by a pledge of 
“Pledged Tax Revenues,” consisting of certain property tax revenues derived from taxes assessed on 
property within the two project areas of the Agency (the “Project Areas”, as described herein) and other 
amounts allocated and paid to the Agency.  See  “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein. 

Purpose 

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to fund (i) a loan (the “2014 Project No. 1 Loan”) to Agency 
with respect to the Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 (“Project No. 1”), and (ii) a loan (the 
“2014 Project No. 5 Loan”; and together with the 2014 Project No. 1 Loan, the “2014 Loans”), to the 
Agency with respect to the Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 5 (“Project No. 5”), pursuant to the 
terms of, respectively, a Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2014, with respect to Project No. 1, by and 
among the Authority, the Agency, and the Trustee (the “2014 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement”), and a 
Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2014, with respect to Project No. 5, by and among the Authority, the 
Agency, and the Trustee (the “2014 Project No. 5 Loan Agreement”; and together with the 2014 Project 

                                                   
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Page 41 of 117



 

 2 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

No. 1 Loan Agreement, the “2014 Loan Agreements”).  The proceeds of the 2014 Loans will be used to 
(i) refinance the outstanding obligations of the Agency under a loan agreement dated as of March 1, 2008 
(the “2008 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement”), with respect to the Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area 
No. 1 (“Project No. 1”); (ii) refinance the outstanding obligations of the Agency under a loan agreement 
dated as of March 1, 2008 (the “2008 Project No. 5 Loan Agreement”; and together with the 2008 Project 
No. 1 Loan Agreement, the “2008 Loan Agreements”), with respect to the Calimesa Redevelopment 
Project Area No. 5 (“Project No. 5”); (iii) fund reserve subaccounts for the 2014 Loans; and (iv) pay the 
costs of issuing the Bonds.  The loan provided by the Authority to the Agency under the 2008 Project No. 
1 Loan Agreement and the loan provided by the Authority to the Agency under the 2008 Project No. 5 
Loan Agreement are referred to herein as, respectively, the “2008 Project No. 1 Loan” and the “2008 
Project No. 5 Loan”, and together as the “2008 Loans”.  See “PLAN OF REFUNDING” and “SOURCES 
AND USES OF FUNDS.” 

The 2014 Loans are authorized pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California 
(the “State”), including Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 
of Title 5 of the Government Code (the “Refunding Law”) and the provisions of California Health and 
Safety Code Section 34177.5, and the 2014 Loan Agreements.  The 2014 Loans and the 2014 Loan 
Agreements were approved by CSA Resolution No. 2014-01 adopted by the Agency on February 3, 2014, 
and by OB Resolution No. 2014-02 adopted by the Oversight Board for the Agency (the “Oversight 
Board”) on February 4, 2014 (the “Oversight Board Resolution”).  Written notice of the Oversight Board 
Resolution was provided to the State Department of Finance pursuant to the Dissolution Act (as defined 
herein) on February 4, 2014, and the State Department of Finance requested review within five business 
days of such written notice.  On April 7, 2014, the State Department of Finance provided a letter to the 
Agency stating that based on such department’s review and application of the law, the Oversight Board 
Resolution approving the refinancing of the 2008 Loans is approved by the State Department of Finance 
and that the letter constitutes the department’s determination with respect to the Oversight Board action 
taken pursuant to the Oversight Board Resolution (the “DOF Determination Letter”).  The DOF 
Determination Letter provides that the approval therein is conditioned on the understanding that the 
refunding obligations meet the limitations in California Health and Safety Code Section 34177.5(a), 
which as described above in this paragraph is one of the authorizing laws pursuant to which the 2014 
Loans are being incurred to refund the 2008 Loans, which effects a refunding of the 2008 Bonds.  A copy 
of the DOF Determination Letter is set forth as APPENDIX H hereto. 

The City and the Agency 

The City of Calimesa (the “City”), California is located in northwestern Riverside County (the 
“County”), along Interstate 10 and bordering the County of San Bernardino, within the Yucaipa Valley of 
the San Gorgonio Pass Area.  The City was incorporated in 1990.  It maintains a council-manager form of 
government, with the Councilmembers elected at-large for staggered four-year terms.  The Mayor is 
elected annually by a vote of the City Council.  For certain information regarding the City, see 
“APPENDIX A – GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF CALIMESA.” 

The Calimesa Redevelopment Agency (the “Prior Agency”) was established on May 18, 1992 by 
the City Council of the City with the adoption of Ordinance No. 92-9, pursuant to the Community 
Redevelopment Law (Part 1, Division 25, commencing with Section 33000 of the Health and Safety Code 
of the State) (the “Redevelopment Law”).  On June 29, 2011, Assembly Bill No. 26 (“AB X1 26”) was 
enacted as Chapter 5, Statutes of 2011, together with a companion bill, Assembly Bill No. 27 (“AB X1 
27”).  A lawsuit was brought in the California Supreme Court, California Redevelopment Association, et 
al., v. Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 4th 231 (Cal. 2011), challenging the constitutionality of AB X1 26 and 
AB X1 27.  In its December 29, 2011 decision in that lawsuit, the California Supreme Court largely 
upheld AB X1 26, invalidated AB X1 27, and held that AB X1 26 may be severed from AB X1 27 and 

Page 42 of 117



 

 3 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

enforced independently.  As a result of AB X1 26 and the decision of the California Supreme Court in the 
California Redevelopment Association case, as of February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies in the 
State were dissolved, including the Prior Agency, and successor agencies were designated as successor 
entities to the former redevelopment agencies to expeditiously wind down the affairs of the former 
redevelopment agencies.   

The primary provisions enacted by AB X1 26 relating to the dissolution and wind down of former 
redevelopment agency affairs are Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 1.85 (commencing 
with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State, as amended on June 27, 
2012 by Assembly Bill No. 1484 (“AB 1484”), enacted as Chapter 26, Statutes of 2012 (as amended from 
time to time, the “Dissolution Act”). 

On August 15, 2011, pursuant to Resolution No. 2011-30 and Section 34173 of the Dissolution 
Act, the City Council of the City elected to serve as successor agency to the Prior Agency and, on 
February 6, 2012, established rules and regulations for the operations of the Successor Agency to the 
Calimesa Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) to assume these successor functions pursuant to CSA 
Resolution No. 2012-01, adopted by the City Council as the governing body of the Agency.  Subdivision 
(g) of Section 34173 of the Dissolution Act, added by AB 1484, expressly affirms that the Agency is a 
separate public entity from the City, that the two entities shall not merge, and that the liabilities of the 
Prior Agency will not be transferred to the City nor will the assets of the Prior Agency become assets of 
the City.   

Pursuant to Article 1 of the Act, the Authority is a separate public entity from its members, the 
City and the Agency.  As authorized by the Act, the Joint Powers Agreement provides that the debts, 
liabilities, and obligations of the Authority will not be the debts, liabilities, and obligations of the City or 
the Agency, except as specifically provided in the Joint Powers Agreement.  The Indenture provides that 
the Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, payable from and secured by a first pledge of 
Revenues, consisting primarily of certain loan repayments to be made by the Agency under the two 2014 
Loan Agreements.  Thus, although the Agency is not directly obligated to repay the Bonds, through the 
provisions of the Indenture and the 2014 Loan Agreements, the repayment of principal and interest on the 
Bonds relies upon payments made by the Agency to the Authority pursuant to the 2014 Loan Agreements.  
See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” and “THE AUTHORITY” herein. 

The Project Areas 

Pursuant to the Redevelopment Law, the City Council, on behalf of the Prior Agency, established 
two redevelopment projects within the City, both of which generate Pledged Tax Revenues which are 
pledged to the repayment of the 2014 Loans, and which are referred to herein collectively as the “Project 
Areas.”  The redevelopment plan for Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 (“Project No. 1”) was 
approved by Ordinance No. 93-23 of the City adopted on December 30, 1993, and has been amended 
thereafter in accordance with the Redevelopment Law as described further under the caption “THE 
PROJECT AREAS.”  The redevelopment plan for Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 5 (“Project 
No. 5”) was approved by Ordinance No. 188 of the City adopted on June 18, 2001, and has been amended 
thereafter in accordance with the Redevelopment Law as described further under the caption “THE 
PROJECT AREAS.”  The redevelopment plans for the Project Areas are referred to herein collectively as 
the “Redevelopment Plans.” 

Tax Allocation Financing 

Prior to the enactment of AB X1 26, the Redevelopment Law authorized the financing of 
redevelopment projects through the use of tax increment revenues. This method provided that the taxable 

Page 43 of 117



 

 4 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

valuation of the property within a redevelopment project area on the property tax roll last equalized prior 
to the effective date of the ordinance which adopts the redevelopment plan becomes the base year 
valuation.  Assuming the taxable valuation never drops below the base year level, the taxing agencies 
thereafter received that portion of the taxes produced by applying then current tax rates to the base year 
valuation, and the redevelopment agency was allocated the remaining portion produced by applying then 
current tax rates to the increase in valuation over the base year.  Such incremental tax revenues allocated 
to a redevelopment agency were authorized to be pledged to the payment of agency obligations.   

The Dissolution Act authorizes refunding indebtedness, including the 2014 Loans, to be secured 
by a pledge of monies deposited from time to time in a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund held by a 
county auditor-controller with respect to a successor agency, which are equivalent to the tax increment 
revenues that were formerly allocated under the Redevelopment Law to the redevelopment agency and 
formerly authorized under the Redevelopment Law to be used for the financing of redevelopment 
projects.  Under each 2014 Loan Agreement, Pledged Tax Revenues consist of the amounts deposited 
from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to and as provided 
in the Dissolution Act.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing” herein for 
additional information. 

Under the Indenture, the Bonds are secured by “Revenues,” consisting primarily of the loan 
repayments to be made by the Agency under the 2014 Loan Agreements, and therefore ultimately are 
payable from and secured by the Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Agency from the Project Areas.  
See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – The Indenture” and “– Loan Agreements.” 

Successor agencies have no power to levy property taxes and must look specifically to the 
allocation of taxes as described above.  See “RISK FACTORS.”  

Security for the Bonds 

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority entitled to the benefits of the Indenture and are 
payable solely from and secured by Revenues (as defined therein), monies on deposit (including in the 
accounts and subaccounts therein) in the Revenue Fund (including but not limited to the Reserve Account 
therein established by the Indenture and the Reserve Subaccounts therein established by the 2014 Loan 
Agreements), held by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, and by an assignment and pledge of the 
Authority’s interest in the payments of principal and interest made by the Agency under the 2014 Loan 
Agreements.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – The Indenture.” 

The Dissolution Act requires the Riverside County Auditor-Controller (the “County Auditor-
Controller”) to determine the amount of property taxes that would have been allocated to the Prior 
Agency had the Prior Agency not been dissolved pursuant to the operation of AB X1 26, using current 
assessed values on the last equalized roll on August 20, and to deposit that amount in the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund for the Agency established and held by the County Auditor-Controller (the 
“Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund”) pursuant to the Dissolution Act.  The Dissolution Act 
provides that any bonds or other indebtedness authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency will be 
considered indebtedness incurred by the dissolved Prior Agency, with the same legal effect as if the bonds 
or other indebtedness had been issued prior to effective date of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the 
applicable provision of the Redevelopment Law that existed prior to that date, and will be included in the 
Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (see “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS” and “SECURITY FOR 
THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”).   

Page 44 of 117



 

 5 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

The Dissolution Act further provides that bonds or other indebtedness authorized thereunder to be 
issued by the Agency will be secured by a pledge of, and lien on, and will be repaid from moneys 
deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and that property tax 
revenues pledged to any bonds or other indebtedness authorized under the Dissolution Act, such as the 
2014 Loans, are taxes allocated to the Agency pursuant to the provisions of the Redevelopment Law and 
the State Constitution which provided for the allocation of tax increment revenues under the 
Redevelopment Law, as described in the foregoing paragraph.   

In accordance with the Dissolution Act, “Pledged Tax Revenues” are defined under each 2014 
Loan Agreement as the monies deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund established pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 34172 of the Dissolution Act, as provided in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act.  If, and to the extent, that the 
provisions of Section 34172 or paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 are invalidated by a 
final judicial decision, then the 2014 Loan Agreements each state that Pledged Tax Revenues shall 
include all tax revenues allocated to the payment of indebtedness pursuant to Health & Safety Code 
Section 33670 or such other section as may be in effect at the time providing for the allocation of tax 
increment revenues in accordance with Article XVI, Section 16 of the California Constitution.   

Each 2014 Loan is payable from and secured by (i) an irrevocable pledge of the Pledged Tax 
Revenues on a parity with the other 2014 Loan, (ii) an irrevocable first pledge, on a parity with the other 
2014 Loan, of all of the monies in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund established and held 
by the Agency pursuant to the Dissolution Act, and (iii) an irrevocable first pledge and lien on respective 
Bond Fund and respective Reserve Subaccount established pursuant to the applicable 2014 Loan 
Agreement.  Taxes levied on the property within each Project Area on that portion of the taxable 
valuation over and above the taxable valuation of the applicable base year property tax roll with respect to 
such Project Area, to the extent they constitute Pledged Tax Revenues, as described herein, will be 
deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for transfer by the County Auditor-Controller to 
the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on January 2 and June 1 of each year to the 
extent required for payments listed in the Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule in 
accordance with the requirements of the Dissolution Act (see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”).   

Under the 2014 Loan Agreements, the Agency covenants and agrees to that it will take all actions 
required under the Dissolution Act to include scheduled debt service on the 2014 Loans, as well as any 
amount required under the Indenture to replenish the Reserve Account, in Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedules for each six-month period so as to enable the County Auditor-Controller to distribute 
from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement 
Fund on each January 2 and June 1 amounts required for the Agency to pay principal of, and interest on, 
the 2014 Loans coming due in the respective six-month period.  Monies deposited by the County Auditor-
Controller into the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund will be transferred by the 
Agency to the Authority for deposit in the respective Bond Funds established under the 2014 Loan 
Agreements, and therefrom, transferred by the Authority to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund 
established under the Indenture and administered by the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture.  See 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.” 

Successor agencies have no power to levy property taxes and must look specifically to the 
allocation of taxes as described above.  See “RISK FACTORS.” 

Page 45 of 117



 

 6 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Reserve Account 

In order to further secure the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, a Reserve 
Account within the Revenue Fund is created and held under the Indenture in an amount equal to the 
Reserve Requirement.  “Reserve Requirement” means, as of the date of computation, an amount equal to 
the least of (i) Maximum Annual Debt Service, (ii) 10% of the initial principal amount of the Bonds and 
of any Additional Authority Bonds, or (iii) 125% of average Annual Debt Service.  See “SECURITY 
FOR THE BONDS – Reserve Account.”   

Additional Authority Bonds; Parity Debt 

The Indenture allows for the issuance of Additional Authority Bonds secured on a parity with the 
Bonds under the Indenture (see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Additional Authority Bonds”), and the 
2014 Loan Agreements allows for the incurrence by the Agency of Parity Debt secured under the 2014 
Loan Agreements on a parity with the 2014 Loans (see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Additional 
Obligations on a Parity with a 2014 Loan”). 

Further Information 

Brief descriptions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the 2014 Loans, the 2014 Loan Agreements, the 
Authority, the Agency, the Prior Agency and the City are included in this Official Statement.  Such 
descriptions and information do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive.  All references herein to 
the Indenture, the 2014 Loan Agreements, the Bond Law, the Refunding Law, the Redevelopment Law, 
the Dissolution Act, the Constitution and the laws of the State as well as the proceedings of the Prior 
Agency, the Agency and the City are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents.  
References herein to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by the form thereof included in the Indenture 
and the information with respect thereto included herein, copies of which are all available for inspection 
at the offices of the Authority. During the period of the offering of the Bonds, copies of the forms of all 
documents mentioned herein are available from the Authority Secretary, c/o the City Clerk's office, City 
of Calimesa, 908 Park Avenue, Calimesa, California 92320. 

PLAN OF REFUNDING 

The Authority will loan the proceeds of the Bonds to the Agency pursuant to the 2014 Loan 
Agreements.  The Agency will use a portion of the proceeds of the 2014 Project No. 1 Loan to prepay 
amounts that remain due with respect to the 2008 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement.   The Agency will use a 
portion of the proceeds of the 2014 Project No. 5 Loan to prepay amounts that remain due with respect to 
the 2008 Project No. 5 Loan Agreement.  The Authority will use those prepaid loan amounts to currently 
refund and defease all of the Calimesa Financing Authority Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds (Calimesa 
Redevelopment Project No. 1 and Project No. 5), Series 2008 (the “2008 Bonds”), currently outstanding 
in the aggregate principal amount of $2,785,000, in order to discharge the pledge of the lien securing the 
2008 Bonds.  See “SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.”   

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Authority and the Agency will enter into an 
Escrow Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2014 (the “Escrow Agreement”), with The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Los Angeles, California, as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  Under the 
Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Agent will create and establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”).  The 
amounts deposited in the Escrow Fund will be held uninvested and will be used to pay the redemption 
price on the outstanding 2008 Bonds, including any accrued and unpaid interest with respect thereto, on 
May 28, 2014. 

Page 46 of 117



 

 7 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

  The monies deposited in the Escrow Fund will be held solely for the benefit of the owners of the 
2008 Bonds and will not serve as a security or be available for payment of principal of, or interest on, or 
premium, if any, on the Bonds or any amounts due under the 2014 Loan Agreements. 

As a result of the deposit and application of funds pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, as of the 
date of issuance of the Bonds, the lien upon the Pledged Tax Revenues of the 2008 Loans, and therefore 
of the 2008 Bonds, will be discharged, and the 2008 Loans and 2008 Bonds will no longer have any claim 
against the Pledged Tax Revenues. 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources and uses of funds are summarized as follows:  

 Project No. 1 
2014 Loan 

Project No. 5 
2014 Loan 

Authority Bond 
Totals 

Sources of Funds:    
Par Amount of Bonds/2014 Loans $ $ $ 
Plus/(Less):  Net Original Issue Premium/(Discount)    
Total Sources: $ $ $ 
    
Uses of Funds:    
Underwriter’s Discount $ $ $ 
Deposit to Escrow Fund(1)    
Deposit to Reserve Subaccounts of the Reserve Account(2)    
Deposit to Costs of Issuance Fund(3)    
Deposits to Loan Fund Subaccounts(4)    
Total Uses: $ $ $ 
_______________________ 
(1) See “PLAN OF REFUNDING.” 
(2) In total, an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement as described in “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Reserve 

Account.” 
(3) To be used to pay Costs of Issuance (as defined in the Indenture), which include Trustee fees, Bond Counsel and 

Disclosure Counsel fees, Financial Advisor fees, printing costs, and other related costs. 
(4) To be disbursed on the date of issuance of the Bonds to fund the 2014 Loans. 

THE BONDS 

Authority for Issuance 

The Bonds are authorized for issuance pursuant to the Indenture, the Authority Resolution, and 
the Bond Law. 

Description of the Bonds 

The Bonds will be registered initially in the name of “Cede & Co.,” as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which has been appointed as securities 
depository for the Bonds, and registered ownership may not be transferred thereafter except as provided 
in the Indenture.  Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds.  
Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid by the Trustee to DTC, which in turn is obligated to 
remit such principal and interest to its Participants for subsequent disbursement to beneficial owners of 
the Bonds as described herein. See “THE BONDS – Book-Entry System” below.   

Page 47 of 117



 

 8 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

The Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount set forth on the cover hereof as fully 
registered bonds.  The Bonds will be delivered only in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples 
thereof.  The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery (the “Date of Delivery”).  Interest on the Bonds 
will be payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year (each an “Interest Payment Date”), commencing 
on December 1, 2014.  Interest with respect to each Bond will be payable to the person whose name 
appears on the Bond Register as the Owner thereof as of the close of business on the fifteenth calendar 
day of the month preceding each Interest Payment Date, whether or not such fifteenth calendar day is a 
Business Day (each, a “Record Date”).  Principal of the Bonds will be payable on December 1 in each of 
the years and in the amounts shown on the inside cover page hereof. 

Interest on the Bonds is payable by check of the Trustee mailed by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, on each Interest Payment Date to the owners of the Bonds at their respective addresses shown on 
the Bond Register kept by the Trustee as of the applicable Record Date.  The payment of interest to each 
registered owner of $1,000,000 or more aggregate principal amount of Bonds may be made by wire 
transfer to an account designated by such owner in a written request filed with the Trustee prior to such 
Record Date.  Principal of the Bonds is payable in lawful money of the United States by check of the 
Trustee upon presentation and surrender thereof at the corporate trust office of the Trustee in Los 
Angeles, California. 

The Bonds will bear interest (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-
day months) from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof, unless (i) a 
Bond is authenticated on or before an Interest Payment Date and after the close of business on the 
preceding Record Date, in which event such Bond will bear interest from such Interest Payment Date, or 
(ii) a Bond is authenticated on or before the first Record Date, in which event such Bond will bear interest 
from the Date of Delivery, or (iii) interest on any Bond is in default as of the date of authentication 
thereof, in which event interest will be payable on each Interest Payment Date from the date to which 
interest has been paid in full. 

While the Bonds are held in the book-entry only system of DTC, all payments on the Bonds will 
be made to Cede & Co., as the registered owner of the Bonds. See “THE BONDS – Book-Entry System” 
below.  Principal of, and redemption premium (if any), on the Bonds are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America upon surrender of the Bonds at maturity or earlier redemption at the corporate 
trust office of the Trustee indicated in the Indenture.  See “APPENDIX D – BOOK-ENTRY ONLY 
SYSTEM.” 

Book-Entry System 

DTC, New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be 
issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.  (DTC's partnership nominee) or 
such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered 
certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such 
maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  While the Bonds are held in the book-entry only system of 
DTC, all payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., as the registered owner of the Bonds.  See 
“APPENDIX D – BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.” 

Optional Redemption 

The Bonds maturing on or before December 1, 20__ are not subject to optional redemption prior 
to maturity.  The Bonds maturing on or after December 1, 20__ may be redeemed at the option of the 
Authority prior to maturity on any date on or after December 1, 20__ as a whole, or in part from such 
maturities as are selected by the Authority, and by lot within a maturity, from funds made available to the 

Page 48 of 117



 

 9 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Authority resulting from optional prepayment of 2014 Loan Agreements, at the par amount of the Bonds 
being redeemed, without premium together with accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. 

Sinking Fund Redemption of Term Bonds* 

The Bonds maturing on December 1, 2033 and December 1, 2038 (collectively, the “Term 
Bonds”) are subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, by lot prior to maturity, from sinking 
account payments as shown on the following tables, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date, without premium. 

Term Bonds Maturing December 1, 2033 

Sinking Fund 
Payment Date 
(December 1) 

Principal Amount 
To Be Redeemed 

2029 $145,000 
2030 150,000 
2031 160,000 
2032 170,000 

 2033 (maturity) 175,000 
 

Term Bonds Maturing December 1, 2038 

Sinking Fund 
Payment Date 
(December 1) 

Principal Amount 
To Be Redeemed 

2034 $185,000 
2035 195,000 
2036 60,000 
2037 65,000 
2038 (maturity) 65,000 

 

Mandatory Redemption Upon Acceleration of a 2014 Loan 

The Bonds are also subject to mandatory redemption in whole or in part among maturities, from 
such maturities as selected by the Authority, on any date, from amounts credited towards the payment of 
principal of any 2014 Loan coming due and payable solely by reason of acceleration of such 2014 Loan 
upon default, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, without 
premium, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date.  Pursuant to the Indenture and the 
2014 Loan Agreements, the Bonds shall be subject to redemption under this provision solely from 
amounts credited towards the payment of principal of any 2014 Loan which has become due and payable 
by reason of acceleration, and shall not be subject to redemption from any amounts credited towards the 
payment of matured principal which has become due and payable. 

                                                   
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Page 49 of 117



 

 10 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Purchase of Bonds 

In lieu of the mandatory sinking fund redemption of the Bonds, Revenues on deposit in the 
Revenue Fund which are to be transferred to the Principal Account may also be used and withdrawn by 
the Trustee at any time, upon the written request of the Authority, for the purchase of the Bonds at public 
or private sale as and when and at such prices (which including brokerage and other charges shall not be 
in excess of the principal amount thereof of the Bond being purchased) as the Authority may in its 
discretion determine. 

General Redemption Provisions 

Notice of Redemption; Rescission.  Notice of redemption prior to maturity shall be given by first 
class mail, postage prepaid not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption 
date to the registered owner of each such Bond at the address shown on the Bond Register of the Trustee.  
Neither the failure to receive such notice nor any defect in any notice mailed shall affect the sufficiency of 
the proceedings for the redemption of any Bonds.  No notice of optional redemption or notice of 
mandatory redemption upon acceleration of a loan shall be mailed until such time as there is on deposit 
moneys sufficient to redeem that portion of the Bonds as set forth in the notice, unless all such amounts 
are to be paid with the proceeds of refunding bonds. 

The actual receipt by the Bondowner of notice of redemption shall not be a condition precedent to 
redemption, and failure to receive notice, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the 
proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds or the cessation of interest on the redemption date.  Notice 
of redemption of Bonds shall be given by the Trustee on behalf of the Agency and at the request and 
expense of the Agency.  A certificate by the Trustee that notice of redemption has been given in 
accordance with the Indenture shall be conclusive as against all parties, and no Bondowner whose Bond is 
called for redemption may object to the redemption or the cessation of interest on the redemption date by 
claiming or showing that it failed to receive actual notice of call and redemption. 

The Authority shall have the right to rescind any optional redemption by written notice to the 
Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for redemption.  Any notice of optional redemption shall be cancelled 
and annulled if for any reason funds will not be or are not available on the date fixed for redemption for 
the payment in full of the Bonds then called for redemption, and such cancellation shall not constitute an 
Event of Default under the Indenture.  The Authority and the Trustee shall have no liability to the Owners 
or any other party related to or arising from such rescission of redemption.  The Trustee shall mail notice 
of such rescission of redemption in the same manner as the original notice of redemption was sent. 

Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Upon surrender of any Bond redeemed in part only, the Authority 
shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the registered owner, at the expense of the 
Authority, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations equal in aggregate principal amount to the 
unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered and of the same interest rate and same maturity.  A partial 
redemption shall be valid upon payment of the amount required to be paid to the registered owner, and the 
Authority and the Trustee shall be released and discharged from all liability to the extent of such payment. 

Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been duly given as described above, and 
moneys for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest payable upon redemption of the 
Bonds being set aside as described above, the Bonds, or parts thereof, called for redemption shall, on the 
redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price specified in the notice.  Interest on the 
Bonds, or parts thereof, as the case may be, called for redemption shall cease to accrue and be payable 
from and after the redemption date.  The Bonds, or parts thereof redeemed, shall cease to be entitled to 
any lien, benefit or security under the Indenture, and the Owners of the Bonds shall have no rights except 

Page 50 of 117



 

 11 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

to receive payment of the redemption price upon surrender of the Bonds, and, in the case of partial 
redemption of Bonds, also to receive a new Bond or Bonds for the unredeemed balance as provided 
above. 

Transfer or Exchange 

Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred, upon the registration books of the 
Trustee, upon surrender of such Bond to the Trustee at its corporate trust office in Los Angeles, California 
(or such other place as may be designated by the Trustee) for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a 
written instrument of transfer in a form acceptable to the Trustee, duly executed.  Whenever any Bond or 
Bonds shall be surrendered for registration of transfer, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall 
authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds, of like series, interest rate, maturity and principal amount 
of authorized denomination. 

All exchanges shall be made in such a manner and upon such reasonable terms and conditions as 
may be determined and prescribed by the Authority and communicated to the Trustee.  No transfer or 
exchange of Bonds for which notice of redemption has been given shall be made after the date of mailing 
of such notice.  No Bond may be exchanged during the fifteen days prior to the selection of Bonds for 
redemption.  The person, firm or corporation requesting the registration or exchange shall pay any tax or 
governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with the registration or exchange.  The Authority 
shall pay all other registration and exchange costs and charges including the cost of printing new Bonds. 

Events of Default and Acceleration of Bonds 

The following events constitute “Events of Default” under the Indenture: 

(a) Default in the due and punctual payment of the principal of any Bond or Additional 
Authority Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity as therein 
expressed, by proceedings for redemption, by declaration or otherwise; 

(b) Default in the due and punctual payment of any installment of interest on any Bond or 
Additional Authority Bond when and as such interest installment shall become due and payable;  

(c) Default by the Authority in the observance of any of the other covenants, agreements or 
conditions on its part in this Indenture or contained in the Bonds or Additional Authority Bonds, if such 
default shall have continued for a period of sixty (60) days after written notice thereof, specifying such 
default and requiring the same to be remedied, shall have been given to the Authority by the Trustee, or to 
the Authority and the Trustee by the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds and Additional Authority Bonds at the time Outstanding; provided that 
such default (other than a default arising from nonpayment of the Trustee’s fees and expenses, which 
must be cured within such 60-day period unless waived by the Trustee) shall not constitute a Event of 
Default hereunder if the Authority shall commence to cure such default within said sixty (60) day period 
and thereafter diligently and in good faith shall cure such default within a reasonable period of time; or 

(d) The filing by the Authority of a petition or answer seeking reorganization or arrangement 
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America, or if a 
court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition, filed with or without the consent of the Authority, 
seeking reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States 
of America, or if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of 
competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Authority or of the whole or any substantial 
part of its property.   

Page 51 of 117



 

 12 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the Trustee may and shall, at the direction of a 
majority of the Bondowners, by written notice to the Agency, declare the principal of the Bonds to be 
immediately due and payable, whereupon that portion of the principal of the Bonds thereby coming due 
and the interest thereon accrued to the date of payment shall, without further action, become and be 
immediately due and payable, anything in this Indenture or in the Bonds to the contrary notwithstanding. 

The declaration may be rescinded by the Owners of not less than a majority of the Bonds then 
outstanding provided the Agency cures the default or defaults and deposits with the Trustee a sum 
sufficient to pay all principal on the Bonds matured prior to the declaration and all matured installments 
of interest (if any) upon all the Bonds so that the Agency is currently in compliance with all payment, 
deposit and transfer provisions of the Indenture, and has paid or provided for the payment of any fees and 
expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with the default. 

Following the occurrence of an Event of Default, all amounts received by the Trustee pursuant to 
any right given or action taken by the Trustee under the provisions of the Indenture relating to the Bonds 
and Additional Authority Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee in the following order upon presentation 
of the several Bonds and Additional Authority Bonds, and the stamping thereon of the amount of the 
payment if only partially paid, or upon the surrender thereof if fully paid —  

First, to the payment of the fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee in declaring such Event of 
Default and in carrying out the provisions of the Indenture, including reasonable compensation to its 
agents, attorneys and counsel, and to the payment of any fees and expenses of the Trustee then 
outstanding in connection with the performance of its duties and obligations under the Indenture and the 
Loan Agreements, including any related fees and expenses of its legal counsel then outstanding; and 

Second, to the payment of the whole amount of interest on and principal of the Outstanding 
Bonds and any Outstanding Additional Authority Bonds then due and unpaid, with interest on overdue 
installments of principal and interest to the extent permitted by law at the net effective rate of interest then 
borne by the Outstanding Bonds or Additional Authority Bonds, as applicable; provided, however, that in 
the event such amounts shall be insufficient to pay in full the full amount of such interest and principal, 
then such amounts shall be applied in the following order of priority: 

i first, to the payment of all installments of interest on the Outstanding Bonds and any 
Outstanding Additional Authority Bonds then due and unpaid, on a pro rata basis in the 
event that the available amounts are insufficient to pay all such interest in full, 

i second, to the payment of principal of all installments of the Outstanding Bonds and any 
Outstanding Additional Authority Bonds then due and unpaid, excluding principal having 
come due and payable solely by reason of acceleration pursuant to a 2014 Loan 
Agreement, on a pro rata basis in the event that the available amounts are insufficient to 
pay all such principal in full, and 

i third, to the payment of interest on overdue installments of principal and interest, on a pro 
rata basis in the event that the available amounts are insufficient to pay all such interest in 
full. 

Page 52 of 117



 

 13 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

The Indenture 

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority entitled to the benefits of the Indenture and are 
payable solely from and secured by Revenues (as defined therein), monies on deposit (including in the 
accounts and subaccounts therein) in the Revenue Fund (including but not limited to the Reserve Account 
therein established by the Indenture and the Reserve Subaccounts therein established by the 2014 Loan 
Agreements), held by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, and by an assignment and pledge of the 
Authority’s interest in the payments of principal and interest on the 2014 Loans made by the Agency 
under the 2014 Loan Agreements.  As defined in the Indenture, “Revenues” consist primarily of the loan 
repayments to be made by the Agency on the 2014 Loans under the 2014 Loan Agreements, and therefore 
ultimately are payable from and secured by the Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Agency from the 
Project Areas.  See “APPENDIX B - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS - The Indenture”.   

The 2014 Loans are secured by a pledge of the Pledged Tax Revenues.  See “SECURITY FOR 
THE BONDS – Loan Agreements” and “– Tax Increment Financing”  below. 

Loan Agreements 

The Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to determine the amount of property 
taxes that would have been allocated to the Prior Agency (pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution) had the Prior Agency not been dissolved pursuant to the operation 
of AB X1 26, using current assessed values on the last equalized roll on August 20, and to deposit that 
amount in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the Agency established and held by the 
County Auditor-Controller pursuant to the Dissolution Act. The Dissolution Act provides that any bonds 
authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency will be considered indebtedness incurred by the 
dissolved Prior Agency, with the same legal effect as if the bonds had been issued prior to effective date 
of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the applicable provisions of the Redevelopment Law that existed 
prior to that date, and will be included in the Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (see 
“APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 
LOAN AGREEMENTS” and “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule”).   

The Dissolution Act further provides that bonds authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency 
will be secured by a pledge of, and lien on, and will be repaid from moneys deposited from time to time 
in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and that property tax revenues pledged to any bonds 
authorized to be issued by the Agency under the Dissolution Act, including the Bonds, are taxes allocated 
to the Agency pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 33670 of the Redevelopment Law and Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution.   

Page 53 of 117



 

 14 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 33670 of the Redevelopment Law and Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the Constitution of the State and as provided in each Redevelopment Plan, taxes levied 
upon taxable property in the Project Areas each year by or for the benefit of the State, any city, county, 
city and county, district, or other public corporation (herein sometimes collectively called “taxing 
agencies”) after the effective date of the ordinance approving the applicable Redevelopment Plan, or the 
respective effective dates of ordinances approving amendments to the Redevelopment Plan that added 
territory to the Project Area, as applicable, are to be divided as follows: 

(a) To Taxing Agencies:  That portion of the taxes which would be produced by the 
rate upon which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing agencies upon the total 
sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in the Project Area as shown upon the 
assessment roll used in connection with the taxation of such property by such taxing agency last 
equalized prior to the effective date of the ordinance adopting the Redevelopment Plan, or the 
respective effective dates of ordinances approving amendments to the Redevelopment Plan that 
added territory to the Project Area, as applicable  (each, a “base year valuation”), will be 
allocated to, and when collected will be paid into, the funds of the respective taxing agencies as 
taxes by or for the taxing agencies on all other property are paid; and 

(b) To the Prior Agency/Agency:  Except for that portion of the taxes in excess of the 
amount identified in (a) above which are attributable to a tax rate levied by a taxing agency for 
the purpose of producing revenues in an amount sufficient to make annual repayments of the 
principal of, and the interest on, any bonded indebtedness approved by the voters of the taxing 
agency on or after January 1, 1989 for the acquisition or improvement of real property, which 
portion shall be allocated to, and when collected shall be paid into, the fund of that taxing agency, 
that portion of the levied taxes each year in excess of such amount, annually allocated within the 
Plan Limit following the Delivery Date, when collected will be paid into a special fund of the 
Prior Agency.  Section 34172 of the Dissolution Act provides that, for purposes of Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution, the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund shall be 
deemed to be a special fund of the Agency to pay the debt service on indebtedness incurred by the 
Prior Agency or the Agency to finance or refinance the redevelopment projects of the Prior 
Agency.   

That portion of the levied taxes described in paragraph (b) above, less amounts deducted pursuant to 
Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act for permitted administrative costs of the County Auditor-
Controller, constitute the amounts required under the Dissolution Act to be deposited by the County 
Auditor-Controller into the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund.  In addition, Section 34183 of the 
Dissolution Act effectively eliminates the January 1, 1989 date from paragraph (b) above. 

“Pledged Tax Revenues” are defined under the 2014 Loan Agreements as the monies deposited 
from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to subdivision (c) 
of Section 34172 of the Dissolution Act, as provided in paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 
of the Dissolution Act; provided, if, and to the extent, that the provisions of Section 34172 or paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 are invalidated by a final judicial decision, then Pledged Tax 
Revenues shall include all tax revenues allocated to the payment of indebtedness pursuant to California 
Health & Safety Code Section 33670 or such other section as may be in effect at the time providing for 
the allocation of tax increment revenues in accordance with Article XVI, Section 16 of the California 
Constitution.  The 2014 Loans are payable from and secured by the Pledged Tax Revenues to be derived 
from the Project Areas. 

Each 2014 Loan is payable from and secured by (i) an irrevocable pledge of the Pledged Tax 
Revenues on a parity with the other 2014 Loan, (ii) an irrevocable first pledge, on a parity with the other 

Page 54 of 117



 

 15 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

2014 Loan, of all of the monies in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund established and held 
by the Agency pursuant to the Dissolution Act, and (iii) an irrevocable first pledge and lien on respective 
Bond Fund and respective Reserve Subaccount established pursuant to the applicable 2014 Loan 
Agreement.  The Dissolution Act provides for only a single Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund into 
which property taxes that would have been allocated to the Prior Agency (pursuant to subdivision (b) of 
Section 16 of Article XVI of the State Constitution) must be deposited by the County Auditor-Controller 
had the Prior Agency not been dissolved pursuant to the operation of AB X1 26. This legal requirement is 
notwithstanding the fact that such revenues derive from more than one Project Area.  Similarly, the 
Dissolution Act provides for the establishment and maintenance by the Agency of a single 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, into which property taxes required for the payment of 
enforceable obligations of the Agency are transferred by the County Auditor-Controller from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund.  Nonetheless, the Dissolution Act contains some ambiguities 
regarding the treatment of project areas, and since the dissolution of the Prior Agency to date, the County 
Auditor-Controller has also provided to the Agency information regarding property tax revenues allocated 
to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the Agency in a format that accounts separately for the 
revenues derived from each Project Area.  Accordingly, although each 2014 Loan is payable from and 
secured by an irrevocable pledge of the Pledged Tax Revenues and all of the monies in the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on a parity with the other 2014 Loan, the utilization of 
separate 2014 Loan Agreements and 2014 Loans, including the utilization of a “Pro Rata Share” therein 
(including but not limited to replenishment of the Reserve Account), facilitates revenue projections and 
bookkeeping on a basis consistent with historical and expected future reporting of Pledged Tax Revenues, 
as well as the various distributions required to be made by the County Auditor-Controller from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment 
Financing” below for additional information regarding certain distributions required to be made from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund under the Dissolution Act. 

Taxes levied on the property within the Project Areas on that portion of the taxable valuation over 
and above the taxable valuation of the applicable base year property tax roll with respect to the various 
territories within the Project Areas, to the extent they constitute Pledged Tax Revenues, as described 
herein, will be deposited in the  Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for transfer by the County 
Auditor-Controller to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on January 2 and June 1 
of each year to the extent required for payments listed in the Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule in accordance with the requirements of the Dissolution Act (see “SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”).  Monies deposited by the County Auditor-
Controller into the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund will be transferred by the 
Agency to the Authority for deposit in the respective Bond Funds established under the 2014 Loan 
Agreements, and therefrom, transferred by the Authority to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund 
established under the Indenture and administered by the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture (See 
“APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 
LOAN AGREEMENTS”). 

The Agency has no power to levy and collect taxes, and various factors beyond its control could 
affect the amount of Pledged Tax Revenues available in any six-month period to pay the scheduled 
principal of and interest on the 2014 Loans, and therefore Revenues pledged by the Authority for payment 
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds (see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment 
Financing” and “– Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule” and “RISK FACTORS”). 

Neither the Bonds, nor the obligations of the Agency under the 2014 Loan Agreements, are a debt 
of the City, the State of California or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency and the 
Authority, as applicable) and neither said City, said State or any of its political subdivisions (except the 
Agency and the Authority, as applicable) is liable therefor.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest 

Page 55 of 117



 

 16 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

on the Bonds ultimately are payable from and secured by the Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the 
Agency from the Project Areas and payable by the Agency to the Authority under the 2014 Loan 
Agreements.  The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

Tax Increment Financing 

Prior to the enactment of AB X1 26, the Redevelopment Law authorized the financing of 
redevelopment projects through the use of tax increment revenues. This method provided that the taxable 
valuation of the property within a redevelopment project area on the property tax roll last equalized prior 
to the effective date of the ordinance which adopts the redevelopment plan becomes the base year 
valuation.  Assuming the taxable valuation never drops below the base year level, the taxing agencies 
thereafter received that portion of the taxes produced by applying then current tax rates to the base year 
valuation, and the redevelopment agency was allocated the remaining portion produced by applying then 
current tax rates to the increase in valuation over the base year.  Such incremental tax revenues allocated 
to a redevelopment agency were authorized to be pledged to the payment of agency obligations.   

The Dissolution Act authorizes refunding bonds or other indebtedness, including the 2014 Loans, 
to be secured by a pledge of monies deposited from time to time in a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund held by a county auditor-controller with respect to a successor agency, which are equivalent to the 
tax increment revenues that were formerly allocated under the Redevelopment Law to the redevelopment 
agency and formerly authorized under the Redevelopment Law to be used for the financing of 
redevelopment projects, less amounts deducted pursuant to Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act for 
permitted administrative costs of the county auditor-controller.  Under the 2014 Loan Agreements, 
Pledged Tax Revenues consist of the amounts deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to and as provided in the Dissolution Act.  Successor agencies have 
no power to levy property taxes and must look specifically to the allocation of taxes as described above.  
See “RISK FACTORS.” 

Prior to the dissolution of redevelopment agencies, tax increment revenues from one project area 
could not be used to repay indebtedness incurred for another project area.  However, the Dissolution Act 
has only required that county auditor-controllers establish a single Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund with respect to each former redevelopment agency within the respective county.  Additionally, the 
Dissolution Act now requires that all revenues equivalent to the amount that would have been allocated as 
tax increment to the former redevelopment agency will be allocated to the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund of the applicable successor agency, and this requirement does not require funds derived from 
separate project areas of a former redevelopment agency to be separated.  In effect, in situations where a 
former redevelopment agency had established more than one redevelopment project area, the Dissolution 
Act combines the property tax revenues derived from all project areas into a single trust fund, the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, to repay indebtedness of the former redevelopment agency or 
the successor agency.  To the extent the documents governing outstanding bonds of a redevelopment 
agency have pledged revenues derived from a specific project area, the Dissolution Act states, “It is the 
intent  . . .  that pledges of revenues associated with enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment 
agencies are to be honored.  It is intended that the cessation of any redevelopment agency shall not affect 
either the pledge, the legal existence of that pledge, or the stream of revenues available to meet the 
requirements of the pledge.”  The implications of these provisions of the Dissolution Act are not entirely 
clear when a former redevelopment agency has established more than one redevelopment project area, as 
is the case with the Prior Agency, which has established Project No. 1 and Project No. 5.  However, as 
required by Section 34177.5(g) of the Dissolution Act, the “Pledged Tax Revenues” that secure, and are 
pledged for repayment of, each 2014 Loan consist of the monies deposited from time to time in the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 34172 of the 

Page 56 of 117



 

 17 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Dissolution Act, as provided in paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act.  
Thus, each 2014 Loan is secured by such Pledged Tax Revenues on a parity with the other 2014 Loan. 

The Redevelopment Law authorized redevelopment agencies to make payments to school 
districts and other taxing agencies to alleviate any financial burden or detriments to such taxing agencies 
caused by a redevelopment project.  The Prior Agency entered into several agreements for this purpose 
(the “Pass-Through Agreements”).  Additionally, Section 33607.5 and 33607.7 of the Redevelopment 
Law required mandatory tax sharing applicable to redevelopment projects adopted after January 1, 1994, 
or amended thereafter in certain manners specified in such statutes (the “Statutory Pass-Through 
Amounts”).  The Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to distribute from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund amounts required to be distributed under the Pass-Through 
Agreements and for Statutory Pass-Through Amounts to the taxing entities for each six-month period 
before amounts are distributed by the County Auditor-Controller from the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund each January 2 and June 1, 
unless (i) passthrough payment obligations have previously been made subordinate to debt service 
payments for the bonded indebtedness of the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, (ii) the Agency 
has reported, no later than the December 1 and May 1 preceding the January 2 or June 1 distribution date, 
that the total amount available to the Agency from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund allocation 
to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, from other funds transferred from the Prior 
Agency, and from funds that have or will become available through asset sales and all redevelopment 
operations is insufficient to fund the Agency’s enforceable obligations, pass-through payments, and the 
Agency’s administrative cost allowance for the applicable six-month period, and (iii) the State Controller 
has concurred with the Agency that there are insufficient funds for such purposes for the applicable six-
month period.   

The Dissolution Act provides for a procedure by which the Agency may make Statutory Tax 
Sharing Amounts subordinate to the Bonds, but the Agency has determined not to undertake such 
procedure, and therefore, Statutory Tax Sharing Amounts are not subordinate to the Bonds (see “THE 
PROJECT AREAS – Statutory Pass-Throughs”).  Moreover, as described in “THE PROJECT AREAS –
Pass-Through Agreements,” the payments to the taxing entities under the Pass-Through Agreements are 
not subordinate to indebtedness of the Agency.  Therefore, the Dissolution Act, as applied to the Agency 
and the 2014 Loans, provides without exception that the County Auditor-Controller distribute from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund amounts required to be distributed under the Pass-Through 
Agreements and for Statutory Pass-Through Amounts to the taxing entities for each six-month period 
before amounts are distributed by the County Auditor-Controller from the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund each January 2 and June 1.   

See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Pass-Through Agreements” and “– Statutory Pass-Throughs” for 
additional information regarding the Pass-Through Agreements and the Statutory Tax Sharing Amounts 
applicable to the Agency and the revenues derived from the Project Areas. 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

ROPS Process Under the Dissolution Act 

Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act requires successor agencies to prepare and 
submit to the successor agency’s oversight board and the State Department of Finance for approval a 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (the “Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”) pursuant to 
which enforceable obligations (as defined in the Dissolution Act) of the successor agency are listed, 
together with the source of funds to be used to pay for each enforceable obligation.  As defined in the 
Dissolution Act, “enforceable obligation” includes bonds, including the required debt service, reserve set-

Page 57 of 117



 

 18 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

asides, and any other payments required under the indenture or similar documents governing the issuance 
of the outstanding bonds of the former redevelopment agency, as well as other obligations such as loans, 
judgments or settlements against the former redevelopment agency, any legally binding and enforceable 
agreement that is not otherwise void as violating the debt limit or public policy, contracts necessary for 
the administration or operation of the successor agency, and amounts borrowed from the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund.  A reserve may be included on the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule and held by the successor agency when required by the bond indenture or when the next 
property tax allocation will be insufficient to pay all obligations due under the provisions of the bond for 
the next payment due in the following six-month period (see “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF 
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS – Covenants 
of the Agency”). 

Under the Dissolution Act, the categories of sources of payments for enforceable obligations 
listed on a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule are the following:  (i) the Low and Moderate 
Income Housing Fund, (ii) bond proceeds, (iii) reserve balances, (iv) administrative cost allowance, (v) 
the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (but only to the extent no other funding source is available 
or when payment from property tax revenues is required by an enforceable obligation or otherwise 
required under the Dissolution Act), or (vi) other revenue sources (including rents, concessions, asset sale 
proceeds, interest earnings, and any other revenues derived from the former redevelopment agency, as 
approved by the oversight board). 

The Dissolution Act provides that, commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, only those payments listed in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule may be made by the Agency from the funds specified in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule. 

The Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule with respect to the six-month period of January 1, 
2013 through June 30, 2013 was required to be submitted by the Agency, after approval by the Oversight 
Board, to the County Administrative Officer, the County Auditor-Controller, the State Department of 
Finance, and the State Controller no later than September 1, 2012.  For each subsequent six-month period, 
the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule must be submitted by the Agency, after approval by the 
Oversight Board, to the County Administrative Officer, the County Auditor-Controller, the State 
Department of Finance, and the State Controller by 90 days before the date of the next January 2 or June 
1 property tax distribution. If the Agency does not submit an Oversight Board-approved Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule by such deadlines, the City will be subject to a civil penalty equal to 
$10,000 per day for every day the schedule is not submitted to the State Department of Finance.  
Additionally, the Agency’s administrative cost allowance is reduced by 25% if the Agency did not submit 
an Oversight Board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by September 11, 2012, with 
respect to the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the six-month period of January 1, 2013 
through June 30, 2013, or by the 80th day before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax 
distribution, as applicable, with respect to the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for subsequent 
six-month periods commencing with the period of July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013.   

The Dissolution Act requires the State Department of Finance to make a determination of the 
enforceable obligations and the amounts and funding sources of the enforceable obligations no later than 
45 days after the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is submitted.  Within five business days of the 
determination by the State Department of Finance, the Agency may request additional review by the 
department and an opportunity to meet and confer on disputed items, if any.  The State Department of 
Finance will notify the Agency and the County Auditor-Controller as to the outcome of its review at least 
15 days before the January 2 or June 1 date of property tax distribution, as applicable.  Additionally, the 
County Auditor-Controller may review a submitted Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule and object 

Page 58 of 117



 

 19 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

to the inclusion of any items that are not demonstrated to be enforceable obligations and may object to the 
funding source proposed for any items, provided that the County Auditor-Controller must provide notice 
of any such objections to the Agency, the Oversight Board, and the State Department of Finance at least 
60 days prior to the January 2 or June 1 date of property tax distribution, as applicable.   

In connection with the allocation and distribution by the County Auditor-Controller of property 
tax revenues deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, under the Dissolution Act the 
County Auditor-Controller must prepare estimates of the amounts of (i) property tax to be allocated and 
distributed and (ii) the amounts of passthrough payments to be made in the upcoming six-month period, 
and provide those estimates to the entities receiving the distributions and the State Department of Finance 
no later than October 1 and April 1 of each year, as applicable.  With respect to the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule for January 1, 2015 through July 31, 2015, the County Auditor-Controller 
must provide such estimate to the Agency by October 1, 2014.  If, after receiving such estimate from the 
County Auditor-Controller, the Agency determines and reports, no later than December 1 or May 1, as 
applicable (i.e., by December 1, 2014 with respect to the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 
January 1, 2015 through July 31, 2015), that the total amount available to the Agency from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund allocation to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation 
Retirement Fund, from other funds transferred from the Prior Agency, and from funds that have or will 
become available through asset sales and all redevelopment operations, is insufficient to fund the payment 
of passthrough obligations, for Agency enforceable obligations listed on the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule, and for the Agency’s administrative cost allowance, the County Auditor-Controller 
must notify the State Controller and the State Department of Finance no later than 10 days from the date 
of the Agency’s notification.  If the State Controller concurs that there are insufficent funds to pay 
required debt service, the Dissolution Act provides for certain adjustments to be made to the estimated 
distributions, as described in more detail under “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment 
Financing” above. 

The Agency timely submitted to the County Administrative Officer, the County Auditor-
Controller, the State Department of Finance, and the State Controller its Oversight Board-approved 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules for the six-month periods of January 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2013, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013, January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014, and July 1, 2014 
through December 31, 2014. 

Amounts Received for Six-Month Periods in 2013 and for January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014 

Pursuant to this process, the Agency received $242,094 on January 2, 2013 for its enforceable 
obligations for January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013, including the interest payments due six business 
days prior to June 1, 2013 on the 2008 Loans; $242,094 on June 1, 2013 for its enforceable obligations 
for July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013, including the principal and interest payments due six 
business days prior to December 1, 2013 on the 2008 Loans; and $240,744 on January 2, 2014 for its 
enforceable obligations for January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014, including the interest payments due 
six business days prior to June 1, 2014 on the 2008 Loans.  The estimate provided by the County Auditor-
Controller on April 1, 2014 for the amount of the property tax distribution expected to be paid to the 
Agency on June 1, 2014 is sufficient for the Agency to meet its enforceable obligations for the six-month 
period commencing July 1, 2014 through December 1, 2014, including the principal and interest 
payments due six business days prior to December 1, 2014 on the 2014 Loans.  For additional information 
regarding procedures under the Dissolution Act relating to late Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedules and implications thereof on 2014 Loans, and therefore, on the Bonds, see “RISK FACTORS – 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.” 

Page 59 of 117



 

 20 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Statutory Limitations on Review of Bonds on ROPS by DOF 

The Dissolution Act provides that any bonds or other indebtedness authorized thereunder to be 
issued by the Agency will be considered indebtedness incurred by the dissolved Prior Agency, with the 
same legal effect as if the bonds or other indebtedness had been issued prior to effective date of AB X1 
26, in full conformity with the applicable provision of the Redevelopment Law that existed prior to that 
date, and will be included in the Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  Section 34177.5(f) 
of the Dissolution Act additionally provides that if the State Department of Finance has requested review 
of the Oversight Board Resolution and, after review, has approved the resolution, the scheduled payments 
on the 2014 Loans shall be listed in the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule and will not be subject 
to further review and approval by the State Department of Finance or the State Controller.   

Further, the Agency has covenanted in the 2014 Loan Agreements to take all actions required 
under the Dissolution Act to include scheduled debt service on the 2014 Loans, as well as any amount 
required under the Indenture to replenish the Reserve Account of the Revenue Fund, in Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedules for each six-month period so as to enable the County Auditor-Controller 
to distribute from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment 
Obligation Retirement Fund on each January 2 and June 1 amounts required for the Agency to pay 
principal of, and interest on, the 2014 Loans coming due in the respective six-month period, including 
listing a reserve on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule to the extent required by the 2014 Loan 
Agreements or when the next property tax allocation is projected to be insufficient to pay all obligations 
due under the provisions of the 2014 Loan Agreements for the next payment due in the following six-
month period (see “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS – Covenants of the Agency”). 

Reserve Account 

Under the Indenture, the Trustee shall establish and maintain a separate account within the 
Revenue Fund known as the “Reserve Account,” with separate subaccounts therein known as the “Project 
No. 1 Reserve Subaccount” and the “Project No. 5 Reserve Subaccount” (together, the “Reserve 
Subaccounts”).   

The Reserve Account shall be held by the Trustee in trust.  The amount on deposit in each of the 
Reserve Subaccounts shall be maintained at the applicable Pro Rata Share of the Reserve Requirement at 
all times prior to the payment of the Bonds in full, except to the extent required for the purposes set forth 
in the Indenture.  As defined in the Indenture and in the 2014 Loan Agreements, “Reserve Requirement” 
means as of the date of computation, an amount equal to the least of (i) Maximum Annual Debt Service, 
(ii) 10% of the initial principal amount of the Bonds and of any Additional Authority Bonds, or (iii) 125% 
of average Annual Debt Service, and the computation shall be made with respect to all Bonds and 
Additional Authority Bonds Outstanding at the time of such computation.   

As defined in the Indenture and 2014 Loan Agreements, “Maximum Annual Debt Service” 
means, as of the date of calculation, the largest amount obtained by totaling, for the current or any future 
Bond Year, the sum of (a) the amount of interest payable on the Bonds and any Additional Authority 
Bonds to be Outstanding in such Bond Year, assuming that principal thereof is paid as scheduled and that 
any mandatory sinking fund payments are made as scheduled, and (b) the amount of principal payable on 
the Bonds and on any Additional Authority Bonds to be Outstanding in such Bond Year, including any 
principal required to be prepaid by operation of mandatory sinking fund payments. 

In the event that the Authority shall fail to deposit with the Trustee the full amount required to be 
deposited pursuant to each of the 2014 Loan Agreements on or before the fifth (5th) Business Day 

Page 60 of 117



 

 21 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

preceding any Interest Payment Date, on or before the fourth (4th) Business Day preceding such Interest 
Payment Date, the Trustee shall withdraw from each of the Reserve Subaccounts and transfer to the 
Interest Account and the Principal Account, in such order, a Pro Rata Share of the difference between the 
amount required to be deposited pursuant to this section and the amount actually deposited by the 
Authority.  As defined in the Indenture and the 2014 Loan Agreements, “Pro Rata Share” means: 

(i) 36.76% with respect to the 2014 Project No. 1 Loan Agreement; and 
(ii) 63.24% with respect to the 2014 Project No. 5 Loan Agreement. 

The Pro Rata Share is calculated based on a ratio of the initial principal amount of each 2014 
Loan to the aggregate initial principal amount of both 2014 Loans (e.g., the initial principal amount of the 
Bonds) and maintains the same respective percentages as the “Pro Rata Share” from 2008 Loan 
Agreements to achieve same percentage of savings per Project Area as a result of the refunding 
accomplished by the incurrence of the 2014 Loans and issuance of the Bonds.  

In the event that the amount on deposit in each of the Reserve Subaccounts shall at any time be 
less than the applicable Pro Rata Share of the Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall promptly notify the 
Authority and the Agency of the amount required to be deposited therein to restore the balance to the 
applicable Pro Rata Share of the Reserve Requirement, such notice to be given by telephone, telefax or 
other form of telecommunication promptly confirmed in writing.  Upon receipt of any such notice, the 
Authority shall withdraw a Pro Rata amount of the deficiency from each of the Bond Funds established 
by the 2014 Loan Agreements as described below under the caption “Bond Funds” and transfer to the 
Trustee for deposit in the Reserve Account of the Revenue Fund an amount which when added to 
amounts to be transferred with respect to other 2014 Loan will be equal to the amount of money necessary 
to maintain the Reserve Requirement in the Reserve Account.  Upon receipt of the deposit required by the 
2014 Loan Agreements, the Trustee shall deposit such amounts in each of the Reserve Subaccounts to 
restore the amounts on deposit therein to the Pro Rata Share of the Reserve Requirement.  Amounts on 
deposit in the Reserve Account shall not be secured or applied in any way to the payment of any 
obligations other than the obligations of the Authority and the Agency under the Indenture. 

In the event that the cumulative amount on deposit in each of the Reserve Subaccounts on or 
before the sixth (6th) Business Day preceding any Interest Payment Date (other than the final Interest 
Payment Date) exceeds the applicable Pro Rata Share of the Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall 
withdraw from each Reserve Subaccount all amounts in excess of the Pro Rata Share of the Reserve 
Requirement with respect to 2014 Loan Agreement and deposit such amounts in the Revenue Fund to be 
applied as a credit toward the applicable 2014 Loan payments.  At the Request of the Agency filed with 
the Trustee, all amounts in each of the Reserve Subaccounts shall either (a) be credited, on or before the 
sixth (6th) Business Day preceding the final Interest Payment Date, to the payment of principal and 
interest then required to be made by the Authority pursuant to the respective 2014 Loan Agreements, or 
(b) transferred, following the final Interest Payment Date, to the Agency for any lawful purpose free and 
clear of the lien of this Indenture.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of the Indenture, however, 
no amounts shall be withdrawn from any of the Reserve Subaccounts and be deposited in the Revenue 
Fund or transferred to the Agency during any period in which an Event of Default shall have occurred and 
be continuing under the Indenture.  

Under the terms of the 2014 Loan Agreements, the Agency may issue or incur Parity Debt with 
respect to the 2014 Loans for such purposes as are permitted under the Dissolution Act, including without 
limitation Section 34177.5 thereof.  See “— Additional Obligations on a Parity with a 2014 Loan” herein.  
The Reserve Account may be maintained in the form of one or more separate sub-accounts which are 
established for the purpose of holding the proceeds of any Parity Debt in conformity with applicable 
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

Page 61 of 117



 

 22 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

The Authority reserves the right, with respect to all or any portion of the Reserve Requirement, to 
substitute at any time and from time to time and subject to any further requirements of any Parity Debt 
Instrument (being any resolution, indenture of trust, trust agreement or other instrument authorizing the 
issuance of any Parity Debt and which otherwise complies with all of the terms and conditions of the 
2014 Loan Agreements), one or more Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instruments for cash or any 
Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument then on deposit in or held by the Reserve Account.  See 
“APPENDIX B —  SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 
LOAN AGREEMENTS” for definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement, including, but 
not limited to “Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument.” 

Bond Funds 

Under the Dissolution Act, the Agency has previously established a special trust fund called the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund (the “Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund”), which 
is held by the Agency and into which the County Auditor-Controller distributes property tax revenues 
each January 2 and June 1 from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the payment by the 
Agency of enforceable obligations pursuant to the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. 

Each of the 2014 Loan Agreements establishes a special fund known as the “Bond Fund,” which 
is to be held by the Authority.  The Agency will deposit all of the Pledged Tax Revenues received in any 
Bond Year in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund promptly upon receipt thereof by the 
Agency and shall immediately thereafter transfer all Pledged Tax Revenues to the Authority for deposit in 
the applicable Bond Fund.  At such time (if any) during such Bond Year as the amounts of Pledged Tax 
Revenues on deposit in each of the Bond Funds equal the aggregate amounts required to be transferred by 
the Authority to the Trustee pursuant to the applicable 2014 Loan Agreement and pursuant to any 
applicable Parity Debt Instrument and the Agency shall have delivered to the Trustee an Annual Loan 
Payment Certificate certifying that all deposits have been made to each of the Bond Funds as required by 
each of the 2014 Loan Agreements; that the Pledged Tax Revenues to be received with respect to such 
Bond Year will equal at least 125% of Annual Debt Service on the Bonds; that there is on deposit in the 
Reserve Account an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement; and that no event has occurred that would 
result in a transfer by the Trustee from the Reserve Account pursuant to the Indenture, any Pledged Tax 
Revenues held in the Bond Fund or thereafter received during such Bond Year in excess of such amounts 
shall be released from the pledge and lien under the applicable 2014 Loan Agreement and shall be 
returned to the Agency for any lawful purpose.  In the event the Annual Loan Payment Certificate 
provides that Pledged Tax Revenues with respect to such Bond Year will be less than 125% of the Annual 
Debt Service on the Bonds an amount equal to the Pro Rata share of the difference between the amount of 
Pledged Tax Revenues to be received with respect to such Bond Year and 125% of Annual Debt Service 
on the Bonds shall be retained in each of the Bond Funds.  At such time as it is determined that the 
aggregate Pledged Tax Revenues remaining to be received under any applicable Plan Limit is equal to or 
less than 125% of the aggregate debt service payable on the Bonds through maturity, all Pledged Tax 
Revenues shall be deposited in the Bond Fund and used solely for the payment of debt service on the 
Bonds.  The Annual Loan Payment Certificate is a certificate of the Executive Director, Treasurer, or 
Secretary (or any other officer of the Agency duly authorized by the Agency for that purpose) of the 
Agency certifying, based on evidence of appropriate County officials and other evidence on file with the 
Agency, the amount of aggregate Pledged Tax Revenues to be received with respect to the current Bond 
Year.  Prior to the payment in full of the principal of and interest and prepayment premium (if any) on the 
2014 Loans and all applicable Parity Debt, the Agency shall not have any beneficial right or interest in the 
moneys on deposit in the related Bond Fund, except only as provided in the 2014 Loan Agreements. 

The Authority shall withdraw from each of the Bond Funds and transfer to the Trustee the 
applicable installments of 2014 Loan payments for deposit by the Trustee in the Interest Account and 

Page 62 of 117



 

 23 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Principal Account to pay debt service on the Bonds.  In addition, in the event that the Trustee shall notify 
the Authority, Agency pursuant to the Indenture that the amount on deposit in any of the Reserve 
Subaccounts is less than the applicable Pro Rata Share of the Reserve Requirement, the Authority shall 
immediately withdraw from the Bond Fund and transfer to the Trustee for deposit in the Reserve Account 
a Pro Rata Share of the amount of money necessary to maintain the Reserve Requirement in the Reserve 
Account.  No such transfer and deposit need be made to the Reserve Account so long as there shall be on 
deposit therein a sum at least equal to the Reserve Requirement. 

Additional Obligations on a Parity with a 2014 Loan 

In addition to the 2014 Loans, the Agency may issue or incur additional obligations on a parity 
with the 2014 Loans (“Parity Debt”) in such principal amount as shall be determined by the Agency and 
for such purposes as are permitted under the Dissolution Act, including without limitation Section 
34177.5 thereof.   

Section 34177.5 of the Dissolution Act presently permits successor agencies to issue bonds or 
incurring other indebtedness secured by property tax revenues comprised of former tax increment and 
required to be deposited into the respective Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the applicable 
successor agency under limited circumstances:   

(i) to provide savings to the successor agency;  

(ii)  for the purpose of financing debt service spikes, including balloon 
maturities; provided, (A) the existing indebtedness is not accelerated, except to the extent 
necessary to achieve substantially level debt service, and (B) the principal amount of the 
refunding bonds or the indebtedness will not exceed the amount required to defease the refunded 
bonds or other indebtedness, to establish customary debt service reserves, and to pay related costs 
of issuance;  

(iii)  for the purpose of amending an existing enforceable obligation under 
which the successor agency is obligated to reimburse a political subdivision of the state for the 
payment of debt service on a bond or other obligation of the political subdivision or to pay all or a 
portion of the debt service on the bond or other obligation of the political subdivision to provide 
savings to the successor agency, when such amendment is in connection with a refunding of the 
bonds or other obligations of the separate political subdivision so that the enforceable obligation 
will apply to the refunding obligations of the political subdivision; or 

(iv)  for the purpose of making payments under an existing enforceable 
obligation when the enforceable obligation includes the irrevocable pledge of property tax 
increment (i.e., formerly tax increment revenues prior to the effective date of the Dissolution Act) 
or other funds and the obligation to issue bonds secured by that pledge. 

When bonds are issued or debt is incurred pursuant to the situations contemplated in clauses (i) and (iii), 
the following two constraints apply to the size of the financing:  (A) the total interest cost to maturity on 
the refunding bonds or indebtedness plus the principal amount of the refunding bonds or other 
indebtedness shall not exceed the total remaining interest cost to maturity on the bonds or other 
indebtedness to be refunded plus the remaining principal of the bonds or other indebtedness to be 
refunded, and (B) the principal amount of the refunding bonds or the indebtedness will not exceed the 
amount required to defease the refunded bonds or other indebtedness, to establish customary debt service 
reserves, and to pay related costs of issuance.  If the foregoing conditions are satisfied, the initial principal 
amount of the refunding bonds or indebtedness may be greater than the outstanding principal amount of 

Page 63 of 117



 

 24 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

the bonds or other indebtedness to be refunded.  The successor agency may pledge to the refunding bonds 
or other indebtedness the revenues pledged to the bonds or other indebtedness being refunded, having the 
same lien priority as the pledge of the bonds or other obligations to be refunded. 

Subject to the foregoing, the Agency may issue and deliver any Parity Debt payable from and 
secured by a lien and charge upon the Pledged Tax Revenues on a parity with the lien and charge securing 
the 2014 Loans subject to the following additional specific conditions specified in the 2014 Loan 
Agreements: 

(a) No Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, and the Agency shall 
otherwise be in compliance with all covenants set forth in the 2014 Loan Agreements; 

(b) The Oversight Board shall have approved the issuance of such Parity Debt; 

(c) A Report shall be delivered to the Trustee stating that, based on the most recent assessed 
valuation of taxable property in the Project Areas as shown on the records of the County, the amount of 
Pledged Tax Revenues for the then current Fiscal Year, plus at the option of the Agency the Additional 
Allowance, is at least equal to one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the largest amount obtained by 
totaling for the current or any future Bond Year, the sum of (a) the amount of interest payable on the 2014 
Loans and any Parity Debt to be Outstanding in each such Bond Year, assuming that principal thereof is 
paid as scheduled and that any mandatory sinking fund payments are made as scheduled, and (b) the 
amount of principal payable on the 2014 Loans and any Parity Debt to be Outstanding in each such Bond 
Year, including any principal required to be prepaid by operation of mandatory sinking fund payments.  
For purposes of such calculation, there shall be excluded principal and interest on amounts in a special 
escrow fund and the principal of and interest on any Parity Debt to the extent the proceeds thereof are 
then deposited in a fully self-supporting escrow fund (the fully self-supporting nature of which is 
evidenced by a report prepared by an Independent Financial Consultant) from which amounts may not be 
released to the Agency unless the amount of Pledged Tax Revenues then to be received is not less than 
the percentage set forth above; 

(d) The related Parity Debt Instrument shall provide that interest on such Parity Debt shall be 
payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 in each full calendar year during the term of such Parity 
Debt and the principal of such Parity Debt shall be payable on December 1 in each year principal is paid; 

(e) The Agency shall deliver to the Authority and the Trustee a Certificate of the Agency 
certifying that the aggregate amount of principal of and interest on the 2014 Loans, all Parity Debt and all 
other indebtedness payable from Pledged Tax Revenues following the issuance or incurrence of such 
Parity Debt will not exceed the maximum amount of Pledged Tax Revenues permitted under the Plan 
Limit to be allocated and paid to the Agency following the issuance or incurrence of such Parity Debt; 

(f) The Agency shall fund a reserve fund for such Parity Debt in an amount equal to the 
maximum annual debt service or such lesser amount required by the Code with respect to all Parity Debt; 
and 

(g) The Agency shall deliver to the Authority and the Trustee a Certificate of the Agency 
certifying that the conditions precedent to the issuance of such Parity Debt set forth in the 2014 Loan 
Agreements have been satisfied. 

Page 64 of 117



 

 25 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Additional Authority Bonds 

Except as set forth in the Indenture, the Authority covenants that no additional bonds, notes or 
other indebtedness shall be issued or incurred which are payable out of Revenues in whole or in part.  In 
this regard, the Indenture provides that the Authority may issue Additional Authority Bonds secured on a 
parity with 2014 Authority Bonds (“Additional Authority Bonds”), in such principal amount as shall be 
determined by the Authority, pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture adopted or entered into by the 
Authority, and subject to the following conditions precedent: 

(a) The Authority shall be in compliance with all covenants set forth in the Indenture and all 
Supplemental Indentures; 

(b) If the proceeds of such Additional Authority Bonds shall be applied to accomplish a 
refunding of a portion of the 2014 Authority Bonds, there shall have been delivered to the Trustee a 
certificate of an Independent Financial Consultant stating that the Annual Debt Service on the Additional 
Authority Bonds does not exceed the Annual Debt Service on the 2014 Authority Bonds defeased or 
redeemed with the proceeds of such Additional Authority Bonds; 

(c) Additional Authority Bonds secured on a parity with the Outstanding 2014 Authority 
Bonds may be issued only if there shall have been delivered to the Trustee, a written certificate of an 
Independent Financial Consultant stating that the requirements of Parity Debt provisions of the Loan 
Agreements have been met and that the Revenues will be not less than 100% of Debt Service on the 2014 
Authority Bonds and all Additional Authority Bonds to be secured on a parity with the 2014 Authority 
Bonds.  For purposes of such calculation, there shall be excluded principal and interest on amounts in a 
special escrow fund and the principal of and interest on any Additional Authority Bonds to the extent the 
proceeds thereof are then deposited in a fully self-supporting escrow fund (the fully self-supporting nature 
of which is evidenced by a report prepared by an Independent Financial Consultant) from which amounts 
may not be released to the Authority or the Agency unless the amount of Revenues then to be received is 
not less than the percentage set forth above; 

(d) The Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Additional Authority 
Bonds shall provide that interest thereon shall be payable on June 1 and December 1, and principal 
thereof shall be payable on December 1 in any year in which principal is payable; 

(e) The Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Additional Authority 
Bonds may provide for the establishment of separate funds and accounts; and 

(f) The Authority delivers to the Trustee a written certificate of the Authority certifying that 
the conditions precedent to the issuance of such Additional Authority Bonds set forth in clauses (a), (b) 
and (c) above have been satisfied. 

Bonds Not a Debt of the City of Calimesa or the State of California 

Neither the Bonds, nor the obligations of the Agency under the 2014 Loan Agreements, are a debt 
of the City, the State of California or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency and the 
Authority, as applicable) and neither said City, said State or any of its political subdivisions (except the 
Agency and the Authority, as applicable) is liable therefor.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
on the Bonds ultimately are payable from and secured by the Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the 
Agency from the Project Areas and payable by the Agency to the Authority under the 2014 Loan 
Agreements.  The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

Page 65 of 117



 

 26 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

THE AUTHORITY 

The Calimesa Financing Authority (the “Authority”) was established pursuant to a Joint Exercise 
of Powers Agreement dated February 4, 2008 (the “Joint Powers Agreement”), by and between the City 
and the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, in accordance with the provisions of the Act.  The 
Authority was created for the purpose of assisting in the financing and refinancing of public capital 
improvements for the City and the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency. 

The Authority is governed by a five-member Authority Commission which consists of the City 
Council of the City, and therefore the Board Members of the Agency.  See “THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY” below for a listing of the Authority 
Commissioners /Agency Directors.  The Mayor acts as President of the Authority, the Mayor Pro Tem 
acts as Vice President, the City Manager acts as its Chief Administrative Officer, the City Clerk acts as its 
Secretary, and the Finance Director acts as its Treasurer. 

Pursuant to Article 1 of the Act, the Authority is a separate public entity from its members, the 
City and the Agency.  As authorized by the Act, the Joint Powers Agreement provides that the debts, 
liabilities, and obligations of the Authority will not be the debts, liabilities, and obligations of the City or 
the Agency, except as specifically provided in the Joint Powers Agreement.  The Indenture provides that 
the Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, payable from and secured by a first pledge of 
Revenues, consisting primarily of certain loan repayments to be made by the Agency under the two 2014 
Loan Agreements.  Thus, although the Agency is not directly obligated to repay the Bonds, through the 
provisions of the Indenture and the 2014 Loan Agreements, the repayment of principal and interest on the 
Bonds relies upon payments made by the Agency to the Authority pursuant to the 2014 Loan Agreements. 

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

The Prior Agency was established on May 18, 1992 by the City Council of the City with the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 92-9, pursuant to the Redevelopment Law.  On June 29, 2011, AB X1 26 was 
enacted as Chapter 5, Statutes of 2011, together with a companion bill, AB X1 27.  A lawsuit was brought 
in the California Supreme Court, California Redevelopment Association, et al., v. Matosantos, et al., 53 
Cal. 4th 231 (Cal. 2011), challenging the constitutionality of AB X1 26 and AB X1 27.  In its December 
29, 2011 decision, the California Supreme Court largely upheld AB X1 26, invalidated AB X1 27, and 
held that AB X1 26 may be severed from AB X1 27 and enforced independently.  As a result of AB X1 
26 and the decision of the California Supreme Court in the California Redevelopment Association case, as 
of February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies in the State were dissolved, including the Prior Agency, 
and successor agencies were designated as successor entities to the former redevelopment agencies to 
expeditiously wind down the affairs of the former redevelopment agencies.   

On August 15, 2011, pursuant to Resolution No. 2011-30 and Section 34173 of the Dissolution 
Act, the City Council of the City elected to serve as successor agency to the Prior Agency and, on 
February 6, 2012, established rules and regulations for the operations of the Successor Agency to the 
Calimesa Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) to assume these successor functions pursuant to CSA 
Resolution No. 2012-01, adopted by the City Council as the governing body of the Agency.  Subdivision 
(g) of Section 34173 of the Dissolution Act, added by AB 1484, expressly affirms that the Agency is a 
separate public entity from the City, that the two entities shall not merge, and that the liabilities of the 
Prior Agency will not be transferred to the City nor will the assets of the Prior Agency become assets of 
the City. 

Page 66 of 117



 

 27 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

The Agency is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (the “Board”) which consists of 
the members of the City Council of the City of Calimesa. The Mayor acts as the Chair of the Board, the 
City Manager as its Executive Director, the City Clerk as its Secretary and the Finance Director of the 
City as the Finance Officer of the Agency.  

The Directors on the Board of the Agency and the expiration dates of their terms are as follows: 

Name and Office  Expiration of Term 
William “Bill” Davis, Chair  November, 2016 
Jeffrey Hewitt, Vice-Chair  November, 2014 
Jim Hyatt, Director  November, 2014 
Joyce McIntire, Director  November, 2016 
Ella Zanowic, Director  November, 2016 

 
Agency Powers 

All powers of the Agency are vested in its five members who are elected members of the City 
Council.  Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the Agency is a separate public body from the City and 
succeeds to the organizational status of the Prior Agency but without any legal authority to participate in 
redevelopment activities, except to complete any work related to an approved enforceable obligation.  The 
Agency is tasked with expeditiously winding down the affairs of the Prior Agency, pursuant to the 
procedures and provisions of the Dissolution Act.  Under the Dissolution Act, many Agency actions are 
subject to approval by the Oversight Board, as well as review by the State Department of Finance.  
California has strict laws regarding public meetings (known as the Ralph M. Brown Act) which generally 
make all Agency and Oversight Board meetings open to the public in a similar manner as City Council 
meetings. 

Under a State initiative enacted in 1974, public officials are required to make extensive 
disclosures regarding their financial interests by filing such disclosures as public records.  As of the date 
of this Official Statement, the members of the City Council and the Agency, and other City and Agency 
officials have made the required filings. 

Previously, Section 33675 of the Redevelopment Law required the Prior Agency to file not later 
than the first day of October of each year with the County Auditor a statement of indebtedness certified 
by the chief fiscal officer of the Prior Agency for each redevelopment plan which provides for the 
allocation of taxes (i.e., the Redevelopment Plan).  The statement of indebtedness was required to contain 
the date on which the bonds were delivered, the principal amount, term, purposes and interest rate of the 
bonds and the outstanding balance and amount due on the bonds.  Similar information was required to be 
given for each loan, advance or indebtedness that the Prior Agency had incurred or entered into which is 
payable from tax increment.  Section 33675 also provided that payments of tax increment revenues from 
the County Auditor to the Prior Agency could not exceed the amounts shown on the Prior Agency's 
statement of indebtedness.  The Dissolution Act eliminates this requirement and provides that, 
commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule supersedes the statement of indebtedness previously required 
under the Redevelopment Law, and commencing from such date, the statement of indebtedness will no 
longer be prepared nor have any effect under the Redevelopment Law (see “SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”). 

Page 67 of 117



 

 28 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

RISK FACTORS 

The following information should be considered by prospective investors in evaluating an 
investment in the Bonds. However, the following does not purport to be an exhaustive listing of risks and 
other considerations which may be relevant to investing in the Bonds. In addition, the order in which the 
following information is presented is not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks. 

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds will be 
qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by State and 
federal laws, rulings and decisions affecting remedies, and by bankruptcy, reorganization or other laws of 
general application affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights, including equitable principles. 

Reduction in Taxable Value 

Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund are determined 
by the amount of incremental taxable value in the Project Areas and the current rate or rates at which 
property in the Project Areas is taxed. The reduction of taxable values of property in one or more of the 
Project Areas caused by economic factors beyond the Agency's control, such as relocation out of a Project 
Area by one or more major property owners, sale of property to a non-profit corporation exempt from 
property taxation, or the complete or partial destruction of such property caused by, among other 
eventualities, earthquake or other natural disaster, could cause a reduction in the Pledged Tax Revenues 
that provide for the repayment of and secure the 2014 Loans, and therefore, in the Revenues that provide 
for the repayment of and secure the Bonds.  Such reduction of Pledged Tax Revenues could have an 
adverse effect on the Agency's ability to make timely payments of principal of and interest on the 2014 
Loans, and therefore, on the Authority’s ability to make timely payments of principal and interest on the 
Bonds. 

As described in greater detail under the heading “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA – 
Article XIIIA of the State Constitution,” Article XIIIA provides that the full cash value base of real 
property used in determining taxable value may be adjusted from year to year to reflect the inflation rate, 
not to exceed a two percent increase for any given year, or may be reduced to reflect a reduction in the 
consumer price index, comparable local data or any reduction in the event of declining property value 
caused by damage, destruction or other factors (as described above). Such measure is computed on a 
calendar year basis. Any resulting reduction in the full cash value base over the term of the Bonds could 
reduce Pledged Tax Revenues securing 2014 Loans, and therefore, the Revenues securing the Bonds. 

In addition to the other limitations on, and required application under the Dissolution Act of 
Pledged Tax Revenues on deposit in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund described herein under 
the heading “RISK FACTORS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule,” the State electorate or 
Legislature could adopt a constitutional or legislative property tax reduction with the effect of reducing 
Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund and available to the 
Agency. Although the federal and State Constitutions include clauses generally prohibiting the 
Legislature's impairment of contracts, there are also recognized exceptions to these prohibitions.  There is 
no assurance that the State electorate or Legislature will not at some future time approve additional 
limitations that could reduce the Pledged Tax Revenues and the Revenues and adversely affect the source 
of repayment and security of the 2014 Loans, and therefore, the Bonds. 

Risks to Real Estate Market 

The Agency's ability to make payments on the 2014 Loans will be dependent upon the economic 
strength of the Project Areas. The general economy of the Project Areas will be subject to all of the risks 

Page 68 of 117



 

 29 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

generally associated with urban real estate markets.  Real estate prices and development may be adversely 
affected by changes in general economic conditions, fluctuations in the real estate market and interest 
rates, unexpected increases in development costs and by other similar factors. Further, real estate 
development within a Project Area could be adversely affected by limitations of infrastructure or future 
governmental policies, including governmental policies to restrict or control development. In addition, if 
there is a decline in the general economy of a Project Area, the owners of property within the Project Area 
may be less able or less willing to make timely payments of property taxes or may petition for reduced 
assessed valuation causing a delay, interruption, or reduction in the receipt of Pledged Tax Revenues by 
the Agency from the Project Area. 

Reduction in Inflationary Rate 

As described in greater detail below, Article XIIIA of the State Constitution provides that the full 
cash value of real property used in determining taxable value may be adjusted from year to year to reflect 
the inflationary rate, not to exceed a 2 percent increase for any given year, or may be reduced to reflect a 
reduction in the consumer price index or comparable local data. Such measure is computed on a calendar 
year basis. Because Article XIIIA limits inflationary assessed value adjustments to the lesser of the actual 
inflationary rate or 2 percent, there have been years in which the assessed values were adjusted by actual 
inflationary rates, which were less than 2 percent.  Since Article XIIIA was approved, the annual 
adjustment for inflation has fallen below the 2 percent limitation several times but in Fiscal Year 2010-11 
the inflationary value adjustment was negative for the first time at -0.237%. In Fiscal Year 2011-12, the 
inflationary value adjustment was 0.753%, which also is below the 2 percent limitation, but for Fiscal 
Year 2012-13, the inflationary value adjustment was 2.00%, which is the maximum permissible increase 
under Article XIIIA.  For Fiscal Year 2013-14, the inflationary value adjustment is 2.00%, and for Fiscal 
Year 2014-15, the inflationary value adjustment will be 0.454%.  The Agency is unable to predict if any 
adjustments to the full cash value of real property within the Project Areas, whether an increase or a 
reduction, will be realized in the future. 

Development Risks 

The general economy of the Project Areas will be subject to all the risks generally associated with 
real estate development. Projected development within the Project Areas may be subject to unexpected 
delays, disruptions and changes. Real estate development operations may be adversely affected by 
changes in general economic conditions, fluctuations in the real estate market and interest rates, 
unexpected increases in development costs and by other similar factors. Further, real estate development 
operations within the Project Area could be adversely affected by future governmental policies, including 
governmental policies to restrict or control development. If projected development in a Project Area is 
delayed or halted, the economy of the Project Area could be affected. If such events lead to a decline in 
assessed values they could cause a reduction in Pledged Tax Revenues.  In addition, if there is a decline in 
the general economy of a Project Area, the owners of property within such Project Area may be less able 
or less willing to make timely payments of property taxes causing a delay or stoppage of the Pledged Tax 
Revenues received by the Agency from the Project Area. In addition, the insolvency or bankruptcy of one 
or more large owners of property within the Project Areas could delay or impair the receipt of Pledged 
Tax Revenues by the Agency.  

Levy and Collection of Taxes 

The Agency has no independent power to levy or collect property taxes. Any reduction in the tax 
rate or the implementation of any constitutional or legislative property tax decrease could reduce the 
Pledged Tax Revenues and, therefore, the Revenues, and accordingly, could have an adverse impact on 

Page 69 of 117



 

 30 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

the security for and the ability of the Agency to repay the 2014 Loans and on the security for and the 
ability of the Authority to repay the Bonds. 

Likewise, delinquencies in the payment of property taxes by the owners of land in the Project 
Areas, and the impact of bankruptcy proceedings on the ability of taxing agencies to collect property 
taxes, could have an adverse effect on the Agency's ability to make timely payments on the 2014 Loans 
and, therefore, on the Authority’s ability to make timely payments on the Bonds. Any reduction in 
Pledged Tax Revenues, whether for any of these reasons or any other reasons, could have an adverse 
effect on the Agency's ability to pay the principal of and interest on the 2014 Loans, and therefore, on the 
Authority’s ability to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds. 

Concentration of Ownership 

Currently, the ten largest local secured taxpayers within Project No. 1 own properties 
constituting, in the aggregate, 59.78% of the 2013-14 secured assessed valuation of all of the property 
within Project No. 1.  Similarly, the ten largest local secured taxpayers within Project No. 5 currently own 
properties constituting, in the aggregate, 46.67% of the 2013-14 secured assessed valuation of all of the 
property within Project No. 5.  See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Largest Taxpayers.”  The willingness and 
ability of the such largest taxpayers, as well as other property owners, to pay property taxes could be 
adversely affected by changes in general or local economic conditions, fluctuations in the real estate 
market and other factors.  Failure of such largest taxpayers (or any future owner of a significant amount 
of taxable property within the Project Areas) to pay installments of such property taxes when due could 
cause the depletion of the Reserve Account prior to reimbursement from the resale of foreclosed property 
and repayment of the delinquent property tax.  In such an event, there may be insufficient Pledged Tax 
Revenues to meet the Agency’s obligations under the 2014 Loan Agreements, which would result in 
insufficient Revenues to meet the Authority’s obligations under the Indenture. 

Time Limits on Receiving Tax Increment Revenues 

Under current limitations contained in the redevelopment plans for certain of the Project Areas, 
the right to receive tax increment revenue and to pay debt service with a portion of such tax increment 
revenue will terminate prior to the final maturity date of the Bonds.  The final maturity date of the Bonds 
is December 1, 2038.  However the right to receive tax increment revenue terminates with respect to the 
Project Area No. 5 on December 23, 2036.  See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Limitations and 
Requirements of the Redevelopment Plans”.  Upon the termination date for Project No. 5, debt service on 
the Bonds will become payable solely from tax increment revenues allocated to Project No. 1.  Applying 
information currently available, the Authority has structured debt service so that the expected remaining 
Pledged Tax Revenues will be sufficient to pay the remaining debt service on the Bonds.  However, the 
respective termination dates will result in a smaller number of properties generating Pledged Tax 
Revenues, and therefore Revenues, as the termination date is reached for Project No. 1.  Because the 2014 
Loans, and therefore the Bonds, are payable solely from Pledged Tax Revenues, the credit quality of the 
Bonds at any one time depends upon the credit quality of the remaining Project Area that generates 
Pledged Tax Revenues.  In addition, unanticipated adverse events affecting the remaining properties 
subject to taxation could impair the Agency’s ability to pay, when due, the remaining debt service on the 
2014 Loans, and therefore the Authority’s ability to pay, when due, the remaining debt service on the 
Bonds.  See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plan.” 

State Budget Issues 

AB X1 26 and AB 1484 were enacted by the State Legislature and Governor as trailer bills 
necessary to implement provisions of the State’s budget acts for its fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13, 

Page 70 of 117



 

 31 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

respectively.  The 2011-12 State budget included projected State savings estimated to aggregate $1.7 
billion in 2011-12 associated with AB X1 27, which would have allowed redevelopment agencies to 
continue in operation provided their establishing cities or counties agreed to make an aggregate $1.7 
billion in payments to K-12 schools.  However, AB X1 27 was found in December 2011 by the California 
Supreme Court to violate the State Constitution, which altered this budgetary plan of the State.  
According to the State's Summary of the 2012-13 State budget, AB 1484 implements a framework to 
transfer cash assets previously held by redevelopment agencies to cities, counties, and special districts to 
fund core public services, with assets transferred to schools offsetting State general fund costs (projected 
savings of $1.5 billion for the fiscal year).   

For 2013-14, the State budget implemented a number of changes, unrelated to redevelopment 
dissolution, to help the State work toward (on a multiyear basis) a $1 billion reserve, such as extending 
certain medical fees and taxes and continuing the use of miscellaneous State highway account revenues to 
pay transportation bond debt service.  The 2013-14 budget summary additionally describes Proposition 98 
(schools) General Fund savings estimated at $2.1 billion in 2012-13 and $1.1 billion in 2013-14 as a 
result of monies generated by redevelopment agency dissolution in those years, a portion of which are 
one-time savings generated from the distribution of unencumbered funds held by former redevelopment 
agencies.  The Governor’s Budget Summary for the Governor’s proposed 2014-15 budget cautions that 
although cities, counties, special districts and schools are estimated to receive over $7 billion in revenues 
between 2011-12 and 2014-15 that previously would have been allocated to redevelopment agencies, 
recent court decisions, if finalized and upheld, could put more than $3 billion of these funds at risk.  The 
Governor’s proposed 2014-15 budget also proposes to allocate $1.591 billion to the State’s “Rainy Day 
Fund,” which would constitute the State’s first deposit into that fund since 2007, attributed in part to a 
capital gains “windfall” from State investments due to a strong stock market in 2013, as well as debt 
reduction strategies in the State’s budgets adopted since Governor Brown took office in 2011.  
Nonetheless, there can be no assurance that additional legislation will not be enacted in the future to 
additionally implement provisions relating to the State budget or otherwise that may affect successor 
agencies or Pledged Tax Revenues. 

The full text of each State Assembly bill cited above may be obtained from the “Official 
California Legislative Information” website maintained by the Legislative Counsel of the State of 
California pursuant to State law, at the following web link:  http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/bilinfo.html.    

Information about the State budget and State spending is available at various State maintained 
websites.  Text of the 2014-15 Budget Summary for the proposed budget, the current State budget, and 
other documents related to the State budget may be found at the website of the State Department of 
Finance, www.dof.ca.gov.  A nonpartisan analysis of the budget is posted by the Legislative Analyst's 
Office at www.lao.ca.gov.  In addition, various State official statements, many of which contain a 
summary of the current and past State budgets may be found at the website of the State Treasurer, 
www.treasurer.ca.gov.  

None of the websites or webpages referenced above is in any way incorporated into this Official 
Statement.  They are cited for informational purposes only.  The Authority makes no representation 
whatsoever as to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information on such websites. 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

The Dissolution Act provides that, commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, only those payments listed in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule may be made by the Agency from the funds specified in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule.  Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act requires successor agencies to prepare and 

Page 71 of 117

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/bilinfo.html
www.dof.ca.gov
www.lao.ca.gov
www.treasurer.ca.gov


 

 32 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

approve, and submit to the successor agency’s oversight board and the State Department of Finance for 
approval, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule pursuant to which enforceable obligations (as 
defined in the Dissolution Act) of the successor agency are listed, together with the source of funds to be 
used to pay for each enforceable obligation.  Pledged Tax Revenues will not be distributed from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund by the County Auditor-Controller to the Agency’s 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund without a duly approved and effective Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule obtained in sufficient time prior to the January 2 or June 1 distribution 
dates, as applicable.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule” 
and “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA – Property Tax Collection Procedures – Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule.”  In the event the Agency were to fail to file a Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule with respect to a six-month period, the availability of Pledged Tax Revenues to the 
Agency could be adversely affected for such period. 

In the event a successor agency fails to submit to the State Department of Finance an oversight 
board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule complying with the provisions of the 
Dissolution Act within five business days of the date upon which the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule is to be used to determine the amount of property tax allocations, the State Department of 
Finance may determine if any amount should be withheld by the applicable county auditor-controller for 
payments for enforceable obligations from distribution to taxing entities pursuant to clause (iv) in the 
following paragraph, pending approval of a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  Upon notice 
provided by the State Department of Finance to the county auditor-controller of an amount to be withheld 
from allocations to taxing entities, the county auditor-controller must distribute to taxing entities any 
monies in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund in excess of the withholding amount set forth in 
the notice, and the county auditor-controller must distribute withheld funds to the successor agency only 
in accordance with a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule when and as approved by the State 
Department of Finance. 

Typically, under the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund distribution provisions of the 
Dissolution Act, the County Auditor-Controller is to distribute funds for each six-month period in the 
following order specified in Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act:  (i) first, subject to certain adjustments 
for subordinations to the extent permitted under the Dissolution Act (as described above under 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing”) and no later than each January 2 and June 
1, to each local agency and school entity, to the extent applicable, amounts required for passthrough 
payments such entity would have received under provisions of the Redevelopment Law, as those 
provisions read on January 1, 2011, including pursuant to the Pass-Through Agreements and Statutory 
Pass-Through Amounts; (ii) second, on each January 2 and June 1, to the Agency for payments listed in 
its Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, with debt service payments scheduled to be made for tax 
allocation bonds having the highest priority over payments scheduled for other debts and obligations 
listed on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule; (iii) third, on each January 2 and June 1, to the 
Agency for the administrative cost allowance, as defined in the Dissolution Act; and (iv) fourth, on each 
January 2 and June 1, to taxing entities any moneys remaining in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund after the payments and transfers authorized by clauses (i) through (iii), in an amount proportionate 
to such taxing entity’s share of property tax revenues in the tax rate area in that fiscal year (without giving 
effect to any passthrough obligations that were established under the Redevelopment Law).   

If the Agency does not submit an Oversight Board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule within five business days of the date upon which the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
is to be used to determine the amount of property tax allocations and the State Department of Finance 
does not provide a notice to the County Auditor-Controller to withhold funds from distribution to taxing 
entities, amounts in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for such six-month period would be 
distributed to taxing entities pursuant to clause (iv) above.  However, the Agency has covenanted to take 

Page 72 of 117



 

 33 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

all actions required under the Dissolution Act to include scheduled debt service on the 2014 Loans, as 
well as any amount required under the 2014 Loan Agreements and the Indenture to replenish the Reserve 
Account of the Revenue Fund, in Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules for each six-month period 
and to enable the County Auditor-Controller to distribute from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust 
Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on each January 2 and June 1 amounts 
required for the Agency to pay principal of, and interest on, the 2014 Loans coming due in the respective 
six-month period, including listing a reserve on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule to the 
extent required by the 2014 Loan Agreements or when the next property tax allocation is projected to be 
insufficient to pay all obligations due under the provisions of the 2014 Loan Agreements for the next 
payment due in the following six-month period (see “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS – Covenants of the 
Agency”).   

AB 1484 also adds new provisions to the Dissolution Act implementing certain penalties in the 
event the Agency does not timely submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for a six-month 
period.  Specifically, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule must be submitted by the Agency, after 
approval by the Oversight Board, to the County Administrative Officer, the County Auditor-Controller, 
the State Department of Finance, and the State Controller no later than September 1, 2012 with respect to 
the six-month period of January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013 and by 90 days before the date of the next 
January 2 or June 1 property tax distribution with respect to each subsequent six-month period.  If the 
Agency does not submit an Oversight Board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by such 
deadlines, the City will be subject to a civil penalty equal to $10,000 per day for every day the schedule is 
not submitted to the State Department of Finance.  Additionally, the Agency’s administrative cost 
allowance is reduced by 25% if the Agency does not submit an Oversight Board-approved Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule by September 11, 2012, with respect to the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule for the first half of calendar year 2012, or by the 80th day before the date of the next 
January 2 or June 1 property tax distribution, as applicable, with respect to the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule for subsequent six-month periods.  The Agency timely submitted to the County 
Administrative Officer, the County Auditor-Controller, the State Department of Finance, and the State 
Controller its Oversight Board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules for the six-month 
periods of January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013, January 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2014, and July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014. 

AB 1484 Penalty for Failure to Remit Unencumbered Funds 

AB1484 further implements certain provisions of ABX1 26, including establishing a process for 
determining the liquid assets that redevelopment agencies should have shifted to their successor agencies 
when they were dissolved, and the amount that should be available for remittance by the successor 
agencies to their respective county auditor-controllers for distribution to affected taxing entities within the 
project areas of the former redevelopment agencies.  This determination process is commonly known as 
the “due diligence review process” and is required to be completed through the final step (review by the 
State Department of Finance) by November 9, 2012 with respect to affordable housing funds and by April 
1, 2013 with respect to non-housing funds.  Within five business days of receiving notification from the 
State Department of Finance, the Agency must remit to the county auditor-controller the amount of 
unobligated balances determined by the State Department of Finance, or it may request a meet and confer 
with the State Department of Finance to resolve any disputes.  If there is a meet and confer process, the 
Agency must remit the amount of unobligated balances within five working days of receiving a 
subsequent notification from the State Department of Finance of the amount of unobligated balances at 
the conclusion of that process.   

Page 73 of 117



 

 34 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

If the Agency fails to remit the amounts determined by the State Department of Finance by the 
respective deadlines, certain penalties and remedies apply under AB 1484.  Among such penalties and 
remedies, if the city that established the redevelopment agency is performing the duties of the successor 
agency, the State Department of Finance may order an offset to the city’s sales and use tax revenues equal 
to the amount the successor agency fails to remit.  If the State Department of Finance does not order an 
offset, the county auditor-controller may reduce the property tax allocation of the city.  Alternatively or in 
addition to the remedies discussed in the foregoing sentences, the State Department of Finance may direct 
the county auditor-controller to deduct the unpaid amount from future allocations of property tax to the 
successor agency under Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act until the amounts required to be remitted 
are paid.  

Pertinent to the Bonds, if the Agency were to fail to remit to the County Auditor-Controller the 
amounts of unobligated balances determined by the State Department Finance within the time frames 
required under AB 1484, the State Department of Finance may direct the County Auditor-Controller to 
deduct the unpaid amount from future allocations of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency under Section 
34183 of the Dissolution Act until the amounts required to be remitted are paid.   

As to affordable housing funds, the Agency has completed the due diligence review process, and 
on November 7, 2012, the State Department of Finance issued a letter to the Agency making no 
adjustments and concurring that the Agency had $24,005 in unencumbered affordable housing fund 
balances available for distribution to taxing entities.  The Agency timely remitted to the County Auditor-
Controller such unencumbered affordable housing fund balances within the five business day period 
following notification from the State Department of Finance.   

As to non-housing funds, the Agency also has completed the due diligence review process, and 
on March 8, 2013, the State Department of Finance issued a letter to the Agency making no adjustments 
and concurring that the Agency has no unencumbered non-housing fund balances available for 
distribution to taxing entities. 

On April 26, 2013, the State Department of Finance issued to the agency a “finding of 
completion,” which confirms that the Agency has, among other things, paid in full the amounts 
determined during the due diligence reviews and the county auditor-controller has reported those 
payments to the State Department of Finance.  Accordingly, based on this finding of completion, neither 
the Agency nor the City are subject to any AB 1484 penalties for a failure to remit unencumbered funds. 

Bankruptcy and Foreclosure 

The payment of property taxes from which Pledged Tax Revenues are derived and the ability of 
the County to foreclose the lien of a delinquent unpaid tax may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or 
other laws generally affecting creditors' rights or by the laws of the State relating to judicial foreclosure. 
The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds (including Bond 
Counsel's approving legal opinion) will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal 
instruments by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting 
creditors' rights, by the application of equitable principles and by the exercise of judicial discretion in 
appropriate cases. 

Although bankruptcy proceedings would not cause the liens to become extinguished, bankruptcy 
of a property owner could result in a delay in prosecuting superior court foreclosure proceedings. Such 
delay would increase the possibility of delinquent tax installments not being paid in full and thereby 
increase the likelihood of a delay or default in payment of the principal of and interest on the 2014 Loans, 
and therefore, payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Page 74 of 117



 

 35 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Estimated Revenues 

In estimating that Pledged Tax Revenues will be sufficient to pay debt service on the 2014 Loans, 
the Agency has made certain assumptions with regard to present and future assessed valuation in the 
Project Areas, future tax rates and percentage of taxes collected. The Agency believes these assumptions 
to be reasonable, but there is no assurance these assumptions will be realized and to the extent that the 
assessed valuation and the tax rates are less than expected, the Pledged Tax Revenues available to pay 
debt service on the 2014 Loans will be less than those projected and such reduced Pledged Tax Revenues 
may be insufficient to provide for the payment of principal of, premium (if any) and interest on the 2014 
Loans.  Accordingly, under such circumstances, Revenues available to pay debt service on the Bonds will 
be less than those projected and such reduced Revenues may be insufficient to provide for the payment of 
principal of, premium (if any) and interest on the Bonds. 

Hazardous Substances 

An environmental condition that may result in the reduction in the assessed value of property 
would be the discovery of a hazardous substance that would limit the beneficial use of taxable property 
within the Project Areas. In general, the owners and operators of a property may be required by law to 
remedy conditions of the property relating to releases or threatened releases of hazardous substances. The 
owner or operator may be required to remedy a hazardous substance condition of property whether or not 
the owner or operator has anything to do with creating or handling the hazardous substance. If this 
situation were to occur with property within a Project Area, the costs of remedying it could reduce the 
marketability and taxable value of the property. 

Seismic Factors 

The City, like most regions in the State of California, is located in an area of seismic activity and, 
therefore, could be subject to potentially destructive earthquakes.  According to the Safety Element 
contained in the City’s General Plan, the City is prone to significant earthquake activity from nearby 
faults, as it is located near the northwestern end of the San Gorgonio Pass, which is bounded by two of 
the most active faults in southern California:  the San Andreas fault on the northeast, and the San Jacinto 
fault on the southwest.  The San Andreas, San Gorgonio Pass, Banning, Cherry Valley, Beaumont Plain, 
and San Jacinto faults are most likely to cause high ground accelerations in the City.  The Safety Element 
of the City’s General Plan depicts the San Andreas fault (San Bernardino Mountains portion, to the 
north), the Banning fault (to the east), and the Beaumont Plain fault (to the southeast) as being located 
within 20 miles of the City; and the San Jacinto fault (Lytle Creek-Claremont portion, to the northwest) 
and the San Jacinto fault (Casa Loma-Clark portion, to the southeast), as being located within 30 miles of 
the City.  Seismic hazards encompass liquefaction, landslides, strong ground shaking, and conceivably 
even surface rupture.  The City is located within Seismic Zone 4 of the Uniform Building Code (UBC, 
1991) and Riverside County Ground Shaking Zones IV and V, as designated in the County’s General Plan 
(1988), with those areas of the City close to the San Andreas fault on the northeast and to the San Jacinto 
fault on the southwest designated as Ground Shaking Zone V.  For more information see “Calimesa 
General Plan - Safety Element” on file with the Calimesa City Clerk.   

The occurrence of severe seismic activity in the City could result in substantial damage to 
property located in the Project Areas, and could lead to successful appeals for reduction of assessed 
values of such property.  Such a reduction of assessed valuations could result in a reduction of the 
Pledged Tax Revenues that secure the 2014 Loans, and therefore, of the Revenues that secure the Bonds.  

Page 75 of 117



 

 36 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Risk of Floods 

Most precipitation in the San Gorgonio Pass region in which the City is located occurs during the 
winter months, between December and March, with annual precipitation ranging between 17 inches and 
39 inches.  Runoff is drained by several southwest-flowing drainages tributary to San Timoteo Creek that 
extend across the City.  These tributaries are ephemeral, with rain water in the upper reaches generally 
infiltrating into the alluvium so that runoff decreases downstream.  San Timoteo Creek drains northward 
into the Upper Santa Ana River, and on to the Pacific Ocean.  The City has adopted a comprehensive 
Master Flood Control and Drainage Plan.  The 1980 Flood Insurance Rate Map for the City shows 100- 
and 500-year flood areas along Garden Air Golf Course Wash.  The Calimesa Channel was constructed to 
provide protection to adjacent properties from flood runoff resulting from a 100-year flood event.  Storm-
induced flood problems in the City, as defined in the National Flood Insurance Program in which the City 
has been registered since December 1990, would include flash floods in the canyon areas, saturated 
mudflows on hillsides, and shallow flooding of streets and residences associated with poor storm 
drainage.  For more information see “Calimesa General Plan - Safety Element” on file with the Calimesa 
City Clerk. 

As with seismic hazards, the occurrence of flood damage to property located in the Project Areas 
could lead to successful appeals for reduction of assessed values of such property and any reduction of 
assessed valuations could result in a reduction of the Pledged Tax Revenues that secure the 2014 Loans, 
and therefore, of the Revenues that secure the Bonds.  

Changes in the Law 

There can be no assurance that the California electorate will not at some future time adopt 
initiatives or that the Legislature will not enact legislation that will amend the Dissolution Act, the 
Redevelopment Law or other laws or the Constitution of the State resulting in a reduction of Pledged Tax 
Revenues, which could have an adverse effect on the Agency's ability to pay debt service on the 2014 
Loans, and therefore, on the Authority’s ability to pay debt service on the Bonds.  

Investment Risk 

Funds held under the Indenture are required to be invested in Permitted Investments as provided 
under the Indenture. See APPENDIX B attached hereto for a summary of the definition of Permitted 
Investments. The Bond Funds established under the 2014 Loan Agreements may be invested by the 
Authority in any investments authorized under the laws of the State of California for the moneys proposed 
to be invested therein, and the funds and accounts of the Agency, into which Pledged Tax Revenues are 
deposited, may be invested by the Agency in any investment authorized by law. All investments, 
including the Permitted Investments and those authorized by law from time to time for investments by 
municipalities, contain a certain degree of risk. Such risks include, but are not limited to, a lower rate of 
return than expected and loss or delayed receipt of principal.  

Further, the Agency cannot predict the effects on the receipt of Pledged Tax Revenues if the 
County were to suffer significant losses in its portfolio of investments or if the County or the City were to 
become insolvent or declare bankruptcy. See "RISK FACTORS – Bankruptcy and Foreclosure." 

Additional Obligations 

The potential for the issuance of Parity Debt secured by a pledge of Pledged Tax Revenues on a 
parity with the 2014 Loans could, in certain circumstances, increase the risks associated with the 
Agency's payment of debt service on the 2014 Loans, and therefore, the Authority’s payment of debt 

Page 76 of 117



 

 37 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

service on the Bonds, in the event of a decrease in the Agency's collection of Pledged Tax Revenues.  
However, Section 34177.5 of the Dissolution Act provides limited authority for successor agencies to 
issue bonds, and the Agency’s ability to issue Parity Debt secured by a pledge of Pledged Tax Revenues 
on a parity with the 2014 Loans is subject to the requirements of the Dissolution Act as in effect from 
time to time.  For additional information, see described “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Additional 
Bonds.” 

Secondary Market 

There can be no guarantee that there will be a secondary market for the Bonds, or, if a secondary 
market exists, that the Bonds can be sold for any particular price. Occasionally, because of general market 
conditions or because of adverse history or economic prospects connected with a particular issue, 
secondary marketing practices in connection with a particular issue are suspended or terminated. 
Additionally, prices of issues for which a market is being made will depend upon the then prevailing 
circumstances. 

No Validation Proceeding Undertaken 

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 860 authorizes public agencies to institute a process, 
otherwise known as a “validation proceeding,” for purposes of determining the validity of a resolution or 
any action taken pursuant thereto.   Section 860 authorizes a public agency to institute validation 
proceedings in cases where another statute authorizes its use.  Relevant to the Bonds, California 
Government Code Section 53511 authorizes a local agency to “bring an action to determine the validity of 
its bonds, warrants, contracts, obligations or evidences of indebtedness.”  Pursuant to Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 870, a final favorable judgment issued in a validation proceeding shall, 
notwithstanding any other provision of law, be forever binding and conclusive, as to all matters therein 
adjudicated or which could have been adjudicated, against all persons:  “The judgment shall permanently 
enjoin the institution by any person of any action or proceeding raising any issue as to which the 
judgment is binding and conclusive.”  

Neither the Authority nor the Agency has undertaken or endeavored to undertake any validation 
proceeding in connection with the issuance of the Bonds or incurrence of the 2014 Loans.  The Authority, 
the Agency, and Bond Counsel have relied on the provisions of AB 1484 authorizing the issuance of the 
Bonds and specifying the related deadline for any challenge to the 2014 Loans to be brought.  
Specifically, Section 34177.5(e) of the Dissolution Act provides that notwithstanding any other law, an 
action to challenge the issuance of bonds, the incurrence of indebtedness (such as the 2014 Loans), the 
amendment of an enforceable obligation, or the execution of a financing agreement authorized under 
Section 34177.5, must be brought within thirty (30) days after the date on which the oversight board 
approves the resolution of the successor agency approving the such financing.  Such challenge period 
expired with respect to the 2014 Loans and the Oversight Board Resolution on March 6, 2014. 

It is possible that a lawsuit challenging the Dissolution Act or specific provisions thereof could be 
successful and that the mechanisms currently provided for under the Dissolution Act to provide for 
distribution of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency for payment on the 2014 Loans could be impeded 
and result in a delinquency or default in the timely payment of principal of, and interest on, the 2014 
Loans and, therefore, on the Bonds.   

However, each 2014 Loan Agreement additionally provides that if, and to the extent, that the 
provisions of Section 34172 or paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act 
(upon which the distribution of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency rely) are invalidated by a final 
judicial decision, then Pledged Tax Revenues shall include all tax revenues allocated to the payment of 

Page 77 of 117



 

 38 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

indebtedness pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 33670 or such other section as may be in effect at 
the time providing for the allocation of tax increment revenues in accordance with Article XVI, Section 
16 of the California Constitution.   Additionally, any action by a court to invalidate provisions of the 
Dissolution Act required for the timely payment of principal of, and interest on, the 2014 Loans (and 
therefore, on the Bonds) could raise issues regarding unconstitutional impairment of contracts or an 
unconstitutional taking without just compensation.  The Authority believes that the aforementioned 
considerations would provide some protections against the adverse consequences upon the Agency and 
the availability of Pledged Tax Revenues for the payment of debt service on the 2014 Loans, and 
therefore on the availability of Revenues pledged for the payment of debt service on the Bonds, in the 
event of successful challenges to the Dissolution Act or portions thereof.  However, the Authority does 
not guarantee that any lawsuit challenging the Dissolution Act or portions thereof will not result in an 
outcome that may have a detrimental effect on the Agency’s ability to timely pay debt service on the 2014 
Loans, and therefore, the Authority’s ability to timely pay debt service on the Bonds. 

Loss of Tax-Exemption 

As discussed under the caption “CONCLUDING INFORMATION – Tax Exemption,” interest on 
the Bonds could become includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to 
the date the Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the Agency in violation of its 
covenants in the 2014 Loan Agreements, or of the Authority in the Indenture.   

In addition, current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, may cause interest on the 
Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation by, for example, changing the 
current exclusion or deduction rules to limit the aggregate amount of interest on state and local 
government bonds that may be treated as tax exempt by individuals. 

Should such an event of taxability occur, the Bonds are not subject to special redemption and will 
remain outstanding until maturity or until redeemed under other provisions set forth in the Indenture. 

PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA 

Property Tax Collection Procedures 

Classification.  In the State, property which is subject to ad valorem taxes is classified as 
“secured” or “unsecured.”  Secured and unsecured property are entered on separate parts of the 
assessment roll maintained by the County assessor.  The secured classification includes property on which 
any property tax levied by a county becomes a lien on that property.  A tax levied on unsecured property 
does not become a lien against the taxed unsecured property, but may become a lien on certain other 
property owned by the taxpayer.  Every tax which becomes a lien on secured property has priority over all 
other liens on the secured property arising pursuant to State law, regardless of the time of the creation of 
other liens. 

Generally, ad valorem taxes are collected by a county (the “Taxing Authority”) for the benefit of 
the various entities (cities, schools and special districts) that share in the ad valorem tax (each a taxing 
entity) and successor agencies eligible to receive distributions from the respective Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Funds. 

Collections.  Secured and unsecured property are entered separately on the assessment roll 
maintained by the county assessor.  The method of collecting delinquent taxes is substantially different 
for the two classifications of property.  The taxing authority has four ways of collecting unsecured 

Page 78 of 117



 

 39 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

personal property taxes:  (i) initiating a civil action against the taxpayer, (ii) filing a certificate in the 
office of the county clerk specifying certain facts in order to obtain a judgment lien on certain property of 
the taxpayer, (iii) filing a certificate of delinquency for record in the county recorder's office to obtain a 
lien on certain property of the taxpayer, and (iv) seizing and selling personal property, improvements or 
possessory interests belonging or assessed to the assessee.  The exclusive means of enforcing the payment 
of delinquent taxes with respect to property on the secured roll is the sale of the property securing the 
taxes to the State for the amount of taxes which are delinquent.   

Penalty.  A 10% penalty is added to delinquent taxes which have been levied with respect to 
property on the secured roll.  In addition, property on the secured roll on which taxes are delinquent is 
declared in default by operation of law and declaration of the tax collector on or about June 30 of each 
fiscal year.  Such property may thereafter be redeemed by payment of the delinquent taxes and a 
delinquency penalty, plus a redemption penalty of 1.5% per month to the time of redemption.  If taxes are 
unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is deeded to the State and then is subject to sale by 
the county tax collector.  A 10% penalty also applies to delinquent taxes with respect to property on the 
unsecured roll, and further, an additional penalty of 1.5% per month accrues with respect to such taxes 
beginning on varying dates related to the tax bill mailing date. 

Delinquencies.  The valuation of property is determined as of the January 1 lien date as equalized 
in August of each year and equal installments of taxes levied upon secured property become delinquent 
on the following December 10 and April 10.  Taxes on unsecured property are due January 1 and become 
delinquent August 31. 

Supplemental Assessments. California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 75.70 provides for the 
supplemental assessment and taxation of property as of the occurrence of a change of ownership or 
completion of new construction.  Prior to the enactment of this law, the assessment of such changes was 
permitted only as of the next tax lien date following the change, and this delayed the realization of 
increased property taxes from the new assessments for up to 14 months.  This statute provides increased 
revenue to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the extent that supplemental assessments of 
new construction or changes of ownership occur within the boundaries of redevelopment projects 
subsequent to the January 1 lien date.  To the extent such supplemental assessments occur within the 
Project Areas, Pledged Tax Revenues may increase. 

Property Tax Administrative Costs. In 1990, the Legislature enacted SB 2557 (Chapter 466, 
Statutes of 1990) which allows counties to charge for the cost of assessing, collecting and allocating 
property tax revenues to local government jurisdictions in proportion to the tax-derived revenues 
allocated to each.  SB 1559 (Chapter 697, Statutes of 1992) explicitly includes redevelopment agencies 
among the jurisdictions which are subject to such charges.  In addition, Sections 34182(e) and 34183(a) of 
the Dissolution Act allow administrative costs of the County Auditor-Controller for the cost of 
administering the provisions of the Dissolution Act, as well as the foregoing SB 1559 amounts, to be 
deducted from property tax revenues before monies are deposited into the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund.  For Fiscal Year 2012-13, the County's administrative charge to the Prior Agency and Agency 
was $12,402 total for both Project Areas, and for Fiscal Year 2013-14 the County's combined 
administrative charge to the Agency for both Project Areas is estimated to be $11,845.   

Negotiated Pass-Through Agreements.  Prior to 1994, under the Redevelopment Law, a 
redevelopment agency could enter into an agreement to pay increment revenues to any taxing agency that 
has territory located within a redevelopment project in an amount which in the agency's determination is 
appropriate to alleviate any financial burden or detriment caused by the redevelopment project.  These 
agreements normally provide for payment or pass-through of tax increment revenue directed to the 
affected taxing agency, and, therefore, are commonly referred to as pass-through agreements or tax 

Page 79 of 117



 

 40 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

sharing agreements.  The Agency agreements with affected taxing agencies are referred to herein as 
“Pass-Through Agreements.”   See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Pass-Through Agreements” for a 
summary of the Pass-Through Agreements.  See also “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment 
Financing” for additional discussion of the treatment of Pass-Through Agreements under the Dissolution 
Act. 

Statutory Pass-Throughs.  The payment of Statutory Pass-Through Amounts (defined in 
APPENDIX B) results from (i) plan amendments which add territory in existing project areas on or after 
January 1, 1994 and (ii) from plan amendments which eliminates one or more limitations within a 
redevelopment plan (such as the removal of the time limit on the establishment of loans, advances and 
indebtedness).  The calculation of the amount due affected taxing entities is described in Sections 33607.5 
and 33607.7 of the Redevelopment Law.  See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Statutory Pass-Throughs” and 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing” for further information regarding the 
applicability of the statutory pass-through provisions of the Redevelopment Law and the Dissolution Act 
to the various sub-areas of the Project Area. 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  The Dissolution Act provides that, commencing on 
the date the first Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, only those payments listed 
in the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule may be made by the Agency from the funds specified in 
the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act 
requires successor agencies to prepare and approve, and submit to the successor agency’s oversight board 
and the State Department of Finance for approval, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule pursuant 
to which enforceable obligations (as defined in the Dissolution Act) of the successor agency are listed, 
together with the source of funds to be used to pay for each enforceable obligation.  Pledged Tax 
Revenues will not be distributed from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund by the County 
Auditor-Controller to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund without a duly approved 
and effective Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule obtained in sufficient time prior to the January 2 
or June 1 distribution dates, as applicable.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule” and “RISK FACTORS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.” 

State Assessed Property 

AB 454 (Statutes of 1987, Chapter 921) provided a revised method of reporting and allocating 
property tax revenues generated from most State-assessed unitary and operating nonunitary properties 
commencing with Fiscal Year 1988-89.  Under AB 454, each county must establish one countywide tax 
rate area, and the assessed value of all unitary and operating nonunitary property is assigned to this tax 
rate area.  No other property is assigned to the countywide tax rate area.  The State reports to each county 
auditor-controller only the countywide taxable value of each unitary or operating nonunitary property.  
AB 454 provides two formulas for auditor-controllers to use in order to determine the allocation of 
unitary and property taxes generated by the countywide value, which are:  (i)  for revenue generated from 
the 1% tax rate, each jurisdiction is to receive up to 102% of its prior year unitary and operating 
nonunitary property tax revenue, exclusive of revenue attributable to levies for debt service; however, if 
county-wide revenues generated from unitary and operating nonunitary properties, exclusive of revenue 
attributable to levies for debt service, are greater than 102% of prior year revenues, exclusive of revenue 
attributable to levies for debt service, each jurisdiction receives a percentage share of the excess unitary 
and operating nonunitary property tax revenues equal to the percentage of each jurisdiction’s share of 
secured property taxes; (ii) for revenue generated from the application of the debt service tax rate to 
county-wide taxable value, each jurisdiction is to receive a percentage share of revenue based on the 
jurisdiction’s annual debt service requirements and the percentage of property taxes received by each 
jurisdiction from unitary and operating nonunitary property taxes. 

Page 80 of 117



 

 41 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

The provisions of AB 454 apply to all State-assessed property, except railroads, the valuation of 
which will continue to be allocated to individual tax rate areas.  The provisions of AB 454 do not 
constitute an elimination or a revision of the method of assessing utilities by the State Board of 
Equalization.  AB 454 allows generally valuation growth or decline of State-assessed unitary and 
operating nonunitary property to be shared by all jurisdictions within a county. 

Effective January 1, 2007, AB 2670 changes the method of assessing unitary railroad property.  
Before AB 2670, the assessed value of unitary railroad property was allocated to individual tax rate areas 
within a county where the property is located.  AB 2670 has converted this method of assessment for 
railroad property to the countywide system.  The new method involves establishing a single countywide 
tax rate area within each county to which the assessed value of specified unitary property of a regulated 
railroad company would be allocated.  Revenues derived from the tax on this value are allocated among 
local entities in the county pursuant to a specified formula.  AB 2670 also requires, with respect to a 
“qualified facility” as defined in Revenue and Taxation Code Section 100.11, that 80% of the value of the 
facility and the revenues derived from taxing this value be allocated on a countywide basis, while the 
remaining 20% of this value and resulting revenues be allocated exclusively to the local rate areas in the 
county in which the property is located.  During the 2012-13 Fiscal Year, the County Auditor-Controller 
remitted $1,943 in combined unitary revenues to the Agency for the Project Areas. 

Article XIIIA of the State Constitution 

Article XIIIA limits the amount of ad valorem taxes on real property to 1% of “full cash value” of 
such property, as determined by the county assessor.  Article XIIIA defines “full cash value” to mean “the 
County Assessor's valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76 tax bill under ‘full cash value,’ or, 
thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change in 
ownership has occurred after the 1975 assessment.”  Furthermore, the “full cash value” of all real 
property may be increased to reflect the rate of inflation, as shown by the consumer price index, not to 
exceed 2% per year, or may be reduced. 

Article XIIIA has subsequently been amended to permit reduction of the “full cash value” base in 
the event of declining property values caused by substantial damage, destruction or other factors, and to 
provide that there would be no increase in the “full cash value” base in the event of reconstruction of 
property damaged or destroyed in a disaster and in other special circumstances. 

Article XIIIA (i) exempts from the 1% tax limitation taxes to pay debt service on (a) indebtedness 
approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978 or (b) bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or 
improvement of real property approved on or after July 1, 1978, by two-thirds of the votes cast by the 
voters voting on the proposition; (ii) requires a vote of two-thirds of the qualified electorate to impose 
special taxes, or certain additional ad valorem taxes; and (iii) requires the approval of two-thirds of all 
members of the State Legislature to change any State tax laws resulting in increased tax revenues. 

The validity of Article XIIIA has been upheld by both the California Supreme Court and the 
United States Supreme Court. 

In the general election held November 4, 1986, voters of the State approved two measures, 
Propositions 58 and 60, which further amended Article XIIIA. Proposition 58 amended Article XIIIA to 
provide that the terms “purchase” and “change of ownership,” for the purposes of determining full cash 
value of property under Article XIIIA, do not include the purchase or transfer of (1) real property between 
spouses and (2) the principal residence and the first $1,000,000 of other property between parents and 
children. This amendment to Article XIIIA may reduce the rate of growth of local property tax revenues. 

Page 81 of 117



 

 42 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Proposition 60 amended Article XIIIA to permit the Legislature to allow persons over the age of 
55 who sell their residence and buy or build another of equal or lesser value within two years in the same 
county, to transfer the old residence assessed value to the new residence. As a result of the Legislature's 
action, the growth of property tax revenues may decline. 

Legislation enacted by the Legislature to implement Article XIIIA provides that all taxable 
property is shown at full assessed value as described above. In conformity with this procedure, all taxable 
property value included in this Official Statement is shown at 100% of assessed value and all general tax 
rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value (except as noted). Tax rates for voter-approved bonded 
indebtedness and pension liabilities are also applied to 100% of assessed value. 

Appropriations Limitation - Article XIIIB 

Article XIIIB limits the annual appropriations of the State and its political subdivisions to the 
level of appropriations for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living, population 
and services rendered by the government entity.  The “base year” for establishing such appropriations 
limit is the 1978/79 fiscal year, and the limit is to be adjusted annually to reflect changes in population, 
consumer prices and certain increases in the cost of services provided by these public agencies. 

Section 33678 of the Redevelopment Law provides that the allocation of taxes to a redevelopment 
agency for the purpose of paying principal of, or interest on, loans, advances, or indebtedness shall not be 
deemed the receipt by an agency of proceeds of taxes levied by or on behalf of an agency within the 
meaning of Article XIIIB, nor shall such portion of taxes be deemed receipt of proceeds of taxes by, or an 
appropriation subject to the limitation of, any other public body within the meaning or for the purpose of 
the Constitution and laws of the State, including Section 33678 of the Redevelopment Law.  The 
constitutionality of Section 33678 has been upheld in two California appellate court decisions.  On the 
basis of these decisions, the Agency has not adopted an appropriations limit. 

Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the State Constitution  

At the election held on November 5, 1996, Proposition 218 was passed by the voters of 
California. The initiative added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the State Constitution. Provisions in the two 
articles affect the ability of local government to raise revenues. The Bonds are secured by sources of 
revenues that are not subject to limitation by Proposition 218.  See also “– Propositions 218 and 26” 
below. 

Proposition 87 

On November 8, 1988, the voters of the State approved Proposition 87, which amended Article 
XVI, Section 16 of the State Constitution to provide that property tax revenue attributable to the 
imposition of taxes on property within a redevelopment project area for the purpose of paying debt 
service on certain bonded indebtedness issued by a taxing entity (not the Prior Agency or the Agency) and 
approved by the voters of the taxing entity after January 1, 1989 will be allocated solely to the payment of 
such indebtedness and not to redevelopment agencies. 

Appeals of Assessed Values 

Pursuant to California law, a property owner may apply for a reduction of the property tax 
assessment for such owner's property by filing a written application, in a form prescribed by the State 
Board of Equalization, with the appropriate county board of equalization or assessment appeals board. 

Page 82 of 117



 

 43 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

In the County, a property owner desiring to reduce the assessed value of such owner's property in 
any one year must submit an application to the County Assessment Appeals Board (the “Appeals 
Board”).  Applications for any tax year must be submitted by September 15 of such tax year.  Following a 
review of each application by the staff of the County Assessor's Office, the staff makes a recommendation 
to the Appeals Board on each application which has not been rejected for incompleteness or untimeliness 
or withdrawn.  The Appeals Board holds a hearing and either reduces the assessment or confirms the 
assessment.  The Appeals Board generally is required to determine the outcome of appeals within two 
years of each appeal's filing date.  Any reduction in the assessment ultimately granted applies only to the 
year for which application is made and during which the written application is filed.  The assessed value 
increases to its pre-reduction level for fiscal years following the year for which the reduction application 
is filed.  However, if the taxpayer establishes through proof of comparable values that the property 
continues to be overvalued (known as “ongoing hardship”), the Assessor has the power to grant a 
reduction not only for the year for which application was originally made, but also for the then current 
year as well.  Appeals for reduction in the “base year” value of an assessment, which generally must be 
made within three years of the date of change in ownership or completion of new construction that 
determined the base year, if successful, reduce the assessment for the year in which the appeal is taken 
and prospectively thereafter.  Moreover, in the case of any reduction in any one year of assessed value 
granted for “ongoing hardship” in the then current year, and also in any cases involving stipulated appeals 
for prior years relating to base year and personal property assessments, the property tax revenues from 
which Pledged Tax Revenues are derived attributable to such properties will be reduced in the then 
current year.  In practice, such a reduced assessment may remain in effect beyond the year in which it is 
granted.  See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Largest Taxpayers” for information regarding the assessed 
valuations of the top ten property owners within each Project Area. 

Proposition 8 

Proposition 8, approved in 1978 (California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 51(b)), provides 
for the assessment of real property at the lesser of its originally determined (base year) full cash value 
compounded annually by the inflation factor, or its full cash value as of the lien date, taking into account 
reductions in value due to damage, destruction, obsolescence or other factors causing a decline in market 
value.  Reductions under this code section may be initiated by the County Assessor or requested by the 
property owner.  

After a roll reduction is granted under this code section, the property is reviewed on an annual 
basis to determine its full cash value and the valuation is adjusted accordingly. This may result in further 
reductions or in value increases. Such increases must be in accordance with the full cash value of the 
property and may exceed the maximum annual inflationary growth rate allowed on other properties under 
Article XIIIA of the State Constitution. Once the property has regained its prior value, adjusted for 
inflation, it once again is subject to the annual inflationary factor growth rate allowed under Article 
XIIIA. 

The Agency cannot guarantee that reductions undertaken by the County Assessor or requested by 
a property owner pursuant to Proposition 8 will not in the future reduce the assessed valuation of property 
in a Project Area and, therefore, Pledged Tax Revenues that secure the 2014 Loans or the Revenues that 
secure the Bonds. 

Propositions 218 and 26 

On November 5, 1996, California voters approved Proposition 218— Voter Approval for Local 
Government Taxes— Limitation on Fees, Assessments, and Charges— Initiative Constitutional 
Amendment. Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the State Constitution, imposing certain 

Page 83 of 117



 

 44 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

vote requirements and other limitations on the imposition of new or increased taxes, assessments and 
property-related fees and charges.  On November 2, 2010, California voters approved Proposition 26, the 
“Supermajority Vote to Pass New Taxes and Fees Act.”  Proposition 26 amended Article XIIIC of the 
California Constitution by adding an expansive definition for the term “tax,” which previously was not 
defined under the California Constitution.  Revenues securing the Bonds are derived from property taxes 
which are outside the scope of taxes, assessments and property-related fees and charges which are limited 
by Proposition 218 and outside of the scope of taxes which are limited by Proposition 26. 

Future Initiatives 

Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB, Article XIIIC and Article XIIID and certain other propositions affecting 
property tax levies were each adopted as measures which qualified for the ballot pursuant to California's 
initiative process.  From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted, further affecting Agency 
revenues or the Agency's ability to expend revenues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 
 
 
  

Page 84 of 117



 

 45 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

THE PROJECT AREAS 

General Information 

Pursuant to the Redevelopment Law, the City Council, on behalf of the Prior Agency, established 
two redevelopment projects within the City, both of which generate Pledged Tax Revenues which are 
pledged to the repayment of the 2014 Loans, and which are referred to herein collectively as the “Project 
Areas.”  The redevelopment plan for Project No. 1 was approved by Ordinance No. 93-23 of the City 
adopted on December 30, 1993, and has been amended thereafter in accordance with the Redevelopment 
Law.  The redevelopment plan for Project No. 5 was approved by Ordinance No. 188 of the City adopted 
on June 18, 2001, and has been amended thereafter in accordance with the Redevelopment Law.  The 
amendments to the Redevelopment Plans are described further below under the caption “THE PROJECT 
AREAS – Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plans.”  The redevelopment plans for the 
Project Areas are referred to herein collectively as the “Redevelopment Plans.” 

Project No. 1 

Project No. 1 was formed in 1993 to eliminate blighting conditions in the area and prevent their 
recurrence by providing for the planning, development, replanning, redesign, clearance, reconstruction, 
and rehabilitation of the Project Area, and by providing for such structures and spaces as may be 
appropriate or necessary in the interest of the general welfare, including without limitation, recreational 
and other facilities incidental or appurtenant to them.  Project No. 1 consists of approximately 379 acres 
in four non-contiguous sub-areas.  The sizes of subareas A, B, C, and E are, respectively, approximately 
35 acres, 32 acres, 37 acres, and 275 acres.  Existing land uses are residential, commercial, and vacant.   

Project No. 5 

The City Council approved Ordinance No. 188 on June 18, 2001, to designate, approve, and 
adopt as the City and Agency’s official Redevelopment Plan for Project No. 5 a redevelopment plan 
previously adopted by the County Board with respect to the County Agency’s redevelopment project 
formerly known as the County Agency’s Project Area No. 5-1986 (now known as the County Agency’s 
Interstate 215 Corridor Redevelopment Project Area.”  Under the Redevelopment Law, territorial 
jurisdiction over territory that was previously included within a county redevelopment project area that is 
subsequently included within the boundaries of a new city may be transferred from the county 
redevelopment agency to the new city’s redevelopment agency.  The County Board originally formed its 
Project No. 5-1986 pursuant to Ordinance No. 639 adopted on December 23, 1986, and such project area 
included five non-contiguous sub-areas, among which one was the Calimesa sub-area. 

Subsequent to the City’s incorporation in 1990, the Agency and the County Agency entered into a 
Jurisdictional Transfer Agreement, dated as of June 13, 2000, pursuant to Section 33216 of the 
Redevelopment Law.  The Jurisdictional Transfer Agreement was effective as of July 1, 1999 and 
provided for, among other things, assumption of all rights, powers, obligations, debts and responsibilities 
as to the Calimesa sub-area (now known as Project No. 5) the allocation of the Project No. 5-1986 
maximum tax increment limit and the maximum outstanding bonded indebtedness limit between the 
County Agency (as to all non-Calimesa sub-areas) and the Agency (as to Project No. 5).  The result of 
this transfer of territorial jurisdiction of a portion of the prior County redevelopment project area is a 
shared redevelopment plan, but subsequent to the date of the transfer, neither the County (or County 
Agency) nor the City (or the Agency) have attempted to make any amendment to the shared 
redevelopment plan except only as to the territory under its respective jurisdiction.  Pursuant to Section 
33216, any amendment of such a redevelopment plan under these circumstances of jurisdictional transfer 

Page 85 of 117



 

 46 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

by the creating agency (i.e., Riverside County) must be approved by the receiving agency (i.e., Calimesa) 
and vice versa.  To date, all such amendments have been duly approved by the other agency. 

Pursuant to the terms of the Jurisdictional Transfer Agreement, Project No. 5 Tax Revenues 
allocated to the Agency shall be available if necessary to pay any indebtedness incurred by the County 
Agency prior to July 1, 1999 and secured by tax increment revenues, including but not limited to 
indebtedness evidenced by bonds issued by the County Agency (including any refinancing after July 1, 
1999).  On April 22, 2014, the County certified to the Agency and the Authority that there exists no such 
indebtedness, or any refinancing of any such indebtedness, which is outstanding as of the date of 
certification and that the County has no intention to make any attempt to pledge or otherwise encumber 
the Project No. 5 Tax Revenues in the future. 

Project No. 5 encompasses a total of approximately 190 acres in one contiguous area.  Project No. 
5 is characterized by vacant, commercial, and industrial land uses.  Small commercial shops are located 
within the Project Area, as well as a 32,000 square foot shopping center known as Crown Village Plaza, 
which includes two restaurants (Crown Royale Restaurant and Thai Chili), Calimesa Chambers of 
Commerce, News Mirror newspaper, Curves, a real estate office, a dental office, Salon Tranquility, a 
bakery known as Cakalious, Michelle’s Books, Busy Bee Quilt Shop, Rita’s Hallmark, and a motorcycle 
equipment and goods shop known as Buckle & Belts.  Project No. 5 also includes a new shopping center 
on the west side of Calimesa Blvd. at the intersection of Myrtlewood Drive, which includes a Fresh & 
Easy Market, a Walgreen’s store, several restaurants including Denny’s, Subway, Tang’s Chinese, and a 
Carl’s Jr. / Green Burrito, as well as various retail shops.  Also within Project No. 5 is a light industrial 
company, Skat-Trak, that makes custom tires and exhaust for off-road vehicles and water sport motor 
crafts.  A multi-acre light industrial complex is also located within Project No. 5.   

Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plans 

In 1993, the State legislature passed AB 1290, which, among other things, required 
redevelopment agencies to adopt time limits in each redevelopment plan specifying: 1) the last date to 
incur debt for a redevelopment project; 2) the last date to undertake redevelopment activity within a 
project area; and 3) the last date to collect tax increment revenue from a project area to repay debt. 

In order to comply with AB 1290, the City adopted Ordinance No. 94-17 on December 19, 1994 
with respect to the Project No. 1, and the County Board adopted its Ordinance No. 750 on November 29, 
1994 with respect to Project No. 5.  

In 2001, the California Legislature enacted SB 211, Chapter 741, Statutes of 2001, effective 
January 1, 2002 (“SB 211”).  Among other things, SB 211 provides that at any time after January 1, 2002, 
the limitation on incurring indebtedness contained in a redevelopment plan adopted prior to January 1, 
1994, may be eliminated by ordinance of the legislative body.  However, such elimination triggered 
statutory tax sharing with those taxing entities that do not have Pass-Through Agreements.  Tax sharing is 
calculated based on the increase in assessed valuation after the year in which the limitation would 
otherwise have become effective.  Amounts payable to taxing agencies under the AB 1290 formula are to 
be computed after deducting the 20% amount (the “Housing Set-Aside Amount”) attributable to the 
increase in assessed valuation.  The Housing Set-Aside Amount was required under the Redevelopment 
Law prior to enactment of the Dissolution Act to be set aside by the Agency into a separate fund and used 
for low and moderate income housing attributable to the increase in assessed valuation.  On November 5, 
2007, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 274 with respect to Project No. 5, respectively, which 
pursuant to SB 211 eliminated the limitation on incurring indebtedness contained in the Redevelopment 
Plan (previously December 23, 2006).  

Page 86 of 117



 

 47 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

The actions taken by the City Council to date have resulted in the time limitations set forth in the 
following table, with respect to each Project Area: 

Calimesa Project Areas  
Redevelopment Plan Limitations 

 
 
 

Project Area 

 
Maximum Tax 

Increment(1) 

 
Maximum Bonded 

Debt 

 
Last Date to  
Incur Debt 

Plan Termination 
Date 

Last Date to Receive 
Prop. Taxes/Pay Debt 

      
 
Project No. 1 

 
$175,000,000(2) 

 
$17,500,000(3) 12/30/2013 

 
12/30/2033 

 
12/30/2043 

 
Project No. 5 

 
57,165,356 

 
6,152,400 Eliminated 

 
12/23/2026 

 
12/23/2036(4) 

_______________________________ 
(1) In the DOF Santa Cruz Letter (as defined below), the State Department of Finance stated its position and advice to county auditor-

controllers to not apply tax increment caps to bar payment of enforceable obligations approved by the State Department of Finance, unless 
the tax increment cap had been reached prior to the enactment of AB X1 26 in June 2011.  The Authority and the Agency cannot provide 
any assurance that a court would concur with, or uphold, this position if a lawsuit were filed to challenge it.  In addition, from time to time, 
the State Department of Finance changes its guidance without notice. 

(2) With respect to Project No. 1, the maximum tax increment limit is set forth in 1993 value dollars and, pursuant to the Redevelopment Plan 
for Project No. 1, adjusted annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for the nearest area to the Project Area.  The adjusted 
maximum tax increment limit for Project No. 1, including the annual adjustment for 2014, is $286,167,993. 

(3) With respect to Project No. 1, the maximum bonded debt limit is set forth in 1993 value dollars and, pursuant to the Redevelopment Plan 
for Project No. 1, adjusted annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index for the nearest area to the Project Area.  The adjusted 
maximum bonded debt limit for Project No. 1, including the annual adjustment for 2014, is $28,616,799. 

(4) The right to receive property taxes with respect to Project No. 5 terminates prior to the final maturity of the Bonds.  See “RISK FACTORS 
– Time Limits on Receiving Tax Increment Revenues.” 

Source:  Successor Agency to the Calimesa Redevelopment Agency 

On April 2, 2014, the State Department of Finance issued a letter (the “DOF Santa Cruz Letter”) 
to the County Auditor-Controller for the County of Santa Cruz, in response to a request for clarification 
concerning the position of the State Department of Finance on the applicability of tax increment caps (i.e., 
the maximum tax increment allocable to a redevelopment agency under its redevelopment plan).  In the 
DOF Santa Cruz Letter, the State Department of Finance stated its position and advice to county auditor-
controllers to not apply tax increment caps to bar payment of enforceable obligations approved by the 
State Department of Finance, unless the tax increment cap had been reached prior to the enactment of AB 
X1 26 in June 2011.  The Authority and the Agency cannot provide any assurance that a court would 
concur with, or uphold, the position of the State Department of Finance in the DOF Santa Cruz Letter if a 
lawsuit were filed to challenge this position.  In addition, from time to time, the State Department of 
Finance changes its guidance without notice.  As of the date of this Official Statement, the Agency has 
received approximately $2,202,942 in tax increment revenues from Project No. 1 and approximately 
$8,575,530 in tax increment revenues from Project No. 5.  In any event, based on the estimated debt 
service for the 2014 Loans (and therefore, the Bonds) and the projections of Pledged Tax Revenues 
prepared by its financial advisor (see “PLEDGED REVENUES – Projected Taxable Valuation and 
Pledged Tax Revenues” and “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT), the Agency 
believes that the maximum tax increment plan limit for either Project Area will not be reached during the 
term in which Bonds are scheduled to be outstanding.   

As shown in the “Redevelopment Plan Limitations” table above, the maximum tax increment 
plan limit is a separate Redevelopment Plan limitation than the plan limit for the last date to receive 
property taxes.  For further discussion of the plan limit for the last date to receive property taxes, please 
see footnote (4) in the Redevelopment Plan Limitations” table above and “RISK FACTORS – Time 
Limits on Receiving Tax Increment Revenues.” 

Page 87 of 117



 

 48 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Pass-Through Agreements 

The Agency has entered into tax increment sharing agreements (“Pass-Through Agreements”) 
with several taxing entities which require that a portion of tax increment be allocated to such taxing entity 
on a basis senior to the payment of any indebtedness of the Agency.  Such tax increment sharing 
agreements are listed as follows. 

Project No. 1 

The Agency has entered into eleven (11) Pass-Through Agreements for allocation and 
distribution of tax increment revenues with respect to the Project No. 1 as follows: 

i Beaumont Library District.  Pursuant to its agreement with the Beaumont Library District, the 
Agency is to pay to the library district 100% of the district’s share of tax increment (currently 0% 
of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i Beaumont Cemetery District.  Pursuant to its agreement with the Beaumont Cemetery District 
(now known as Summit Cemetery District), the cemetery district is to receive 100% of the 
district’s share of tax increment (currently 1.97% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i Beaumont Unified School District.  Pursuant to its agreement with the Beaumont Unified School 
District, the Agency is to pay to the school district an amount equal to 50% of the district’s share 
of tax increment (currently 2.95% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i Mt. San Jacinto Community College District.  Pursuant to its agreement with the Mt. San Jacinto 
Community College District, the Agency is to pay to the college district an amount equal to 50% 
of the district’s share of tax increment (currently 0.27% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conversation District.  Pursuant to its agreement with 
the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, 100% of the district’s share 
is allocated for district uses (currently 5.40% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). (The Agency is 
to pay to the district 50% of the district’s share of tax increment revenues, but the remaining 50% 
retained by the Agency must be paid into a special fund of the Agency for the sole purpose of 
funding district Master Drainage Plan facilities (or substitute facilities approved by the district) 
which benefit Project No. 1 and at the direction of and under the supervision of the district.) 

i Riverside County Superintendent of Schools.  The Agency annually pays the district an amount 
equal to 60% of the district’s share of tax increment revenues (currently 2.77% of the Project No. 
1 basic tax levy). 

i San Bernardino Community College District.   Each Fiscal Year, the Agency pays to the college 
district an amount equal to 50% of the district’s share of tax increment (currently 4.80% of the 
Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i San Gorgonio Pass Memorial Hospital.   The hospital is to receive 100% of its share of tax 
increment (currently 0.09% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i  San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  The district annually receives 50% of its share of tax 
increment (currently 5.55% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

Page 88 of 117



 

 49 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

i Yucaipa/Calimesa Unified School District.  The district annually receives 40% of its share of tax 
increment (currently 33.74% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy). 

i Yucaipa Valley Water District. The district annually receives 100% of its share of tax increment 
(currently 5.03% of the Project No. 1 basic tax levy. 

Project No. 5 

The Agency has entered into seven (7) Pass-Through Agreements for allocation and distribution 
of tax increment revenues with respect to the Project No. 5 as follows: 

i Beaumont Cemetery District.  Pursuant to its agreement with the Beaumont Cemetery District 
(now known as Summit Cemetery District), the cemetery district is to receive 100% of the 
district’s share of tax increment (currently 2.02% of the Project No. 5 basic tax levy). 

i Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conversation District.  The Riverside County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District is paid annually 100% of its share of tax increment 
(currently 5.55% of the Project No. 5 basic tax levy).  

i Riverside County Superintendent of Schools.  The District is to be paid annually an amount equal 
to 29.62% of the district’s share of tax increment revenues (currently 2.77% of the Project No. 5 
basic tax levy). 

i San Bernardino Community College District.   Each Fiscal Year, the college district is to be paid 
29.62% of the district’s share of tax increment (currently 5.31% of the Project No. 5 basic tax 
levy). 

i San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  The district annually receives 100% of its share of tax 
increment (currently 5.67% of the Project No. 5 basic tax levy). 

i Yucaipa/Calimesa Unified School District.  The district annually receives 29.62% of its share of 
tax increment (currently 37.39% of the Project No. 5 basic tax levy). 

i Yucaipa Valley Water District. The district annually receives 100% of its share of tax increment 
(currently 3.20% of the Project No. 5 basic tax levy. 

See “PLEDGED REVENUES— Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues” herein 
for a depiction of the effects of the Pass-Through Agreements from both Project Areas upon net Pledged 
Tax Revenues available for debt service on the 2014 Loans, and therefore, on the Bonds. 

Statutory Pass-Throughs 

The enactment of AB 1290, effective in 1994, amended the Redevelopment Law to establish a 
statutory formula (“Statutory Tax Sharing”) for the distribution of future tax increments to other taxing 
agencies who collect taxes from a redevelopment project area (“Statutory Pass-Through Amounts”), to 
the extent no Pass-Through Agreement was entered into between the Prior Agency and such taxing 
agency prior to January 1, 1994.  Statutory Tax Sharing applies to, among other things, a redevelopment 
plan adopted prior to January 1, 1994 that was amended subsequent to that date to increase or eliminate 
the time limit on establishing loans, advances, and indebtedness (i.e., Project No. 5).  The effect of the 
application of the Statutory Tax Sharing statutes is that Project No. 5 is subject to Statutory Tax Sharing 
with taxing agencies for which no Pass-Through Agreement was entered into prior January 1, 1994.   

Page 89 of 117



 

 50 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

As to Project No. 5, Statutory Tax Sharing requires a redevelopment agency to pay to affected 
taxing agencies aggregate amounts from tax increment (which are allocated to such agencies in proportion 
to the percentage share of property taxes of each affected taxing agency) as follows: 

(a) commencing with the “first fiscal year” (as defined below) continuing through the last fiscal year 
in which the agency receives tax increments from the redevelopment project area, an amount 
equal to 25% of tax increment revenues received by the agency from the redevelopment project 
area after the amount required to be deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund 
has been deducted; 

(b) in addition to amounts payable as described in (a) above and after the amount required to be 
deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund has been deducted, commencing in the 
11th fiscal year (as determined below) and continuing through the last fiscal year in which the 
agency receives tax increments from the redevelopment project area, an amount equal to 21% of 
tax increment revenues received by the agency from the redevelopment project area, calculated 
by applying the tax rate against the amount of assessed value by which the current fiscal year 
assessed value exceeds the assessed value of the redevelopment project area in the 10th fiscal 
year in which the agency receives tax increments from such redevelopment project area; and 

(c) in addition to amounts payable as described in (a) and (b) above and after the amount required to 
be deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund has been deducted, commencing in 
the 31st fiscal year (as determined below) and continuing through the last fiscal year in which the 
agency receives tax increments from the redevelopment project area, an amount equal to 14% of 
tax increment revenues received by the agency from the redevelopment project area, calculated 
by applying the tax rate against the amount of assessed value by which the current fiscal year 
assessed value exceeds the assessed value of the redevelopment project area in the 30th fiscal 
year in which the agency receives tax increments from such redevelopment project area. 

For the purposes of such calculations, (i) the “first fiscal year” shall be the first fiscal year 
following the fiscal year in which the limitation being amended would have taken effect without the 
amendment or, if more than one limitation is being amended, the first year in which one or more of the 
limitations would have taken effect without the amendment (the “Adjusted Base Year”), and (ii) the 
amounts calculated shall be calculated against the amount of assessed value by which the current year 
assessed value exceeds the Adjusted Base Year assessed value. 

The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 274 on November 5, 2007 to eliminate the time limit to 
incur indebtedness (previously December 23, 2006) for Project No. 5 pursuant to SB 211.  Accordingly, 
Statutory Tax Sharing payments with respect taxing agencies for which no Pass-Through Agreements 
were entered into commenced in Fiscal Year 2008-09 pursuant to Section 33607.7, except for the City.  
There is no Statutory Tax Sharing with respect to Project No. 1.   

Under the Dissolution Act, the Agency is no longer responsible for the payment of Statutory 
Pass-Through Amounts.  Instead, the Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to distribute 
from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund amounts required to be distributed for Statutory Pass-
Through Amounts to the taxing entities for each six-month period before amounts are distributed by the 
County Auditor-Controller from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund each January 2 and June 1. 

The Dissolution Act provides for a procedure by which the Agency may make Statutory Pass-
Through Amounts subordinate to the 2014 Loans; however, the Agency has determined not to undertake 
such procedure, and therefore, Statutory Pass-Through Amounts are not subordinate to the 2014 Loans. 

See “PLEDGED REVENUES— Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues” herein. 

Page 90 of 117



 

 51 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Land Uses in Project Areas 

Land use for fiscal year 2013-14 in the Project Areas are shown in the following tables. 

 

CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA NO. 1 
Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use 

Fiscal Year 2013-14  

Land Use  

Number 
of 

Parcels  
2013-14 Secured 

Assessed Valuation  
Percent of Secured 
Assessed Valuation 

Commercial   46  $23,972,819  64.51% 
Single Family Residential   53  6,583,057  17.71 
Vacant Agricultural   9  3,437,649  9.25 
Vacant Residential   17  1,579,686  4.25 
Miscellaneous   12  961,719  2.59 
Multifamily Residential   4  627,440  1.69 
Government   7  4  0.00 

       
Total:  148  $37,162,374  100.0% 

____________________ 
Source: Urban Futures, Inc. with information from the Riverside County 2013-14 Secured Property Tax Roll. 

 

CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA NO. 5 
Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use 

Fiscal Year 2013-14  

Land Use  

Number 
of 

Parcels  
2013-14 Secured 

Assessed Valuation  
Percent of Secured 
Assessed Valuation 

Commercial   120  $64,406,573  89.03% 
Single Family Residential   53  4,891,358  6.76 
Multifamily Residential   12  2,754,626  3.81 
Vacant Residential   5  236,372  0.33 
Miscellaneous   6  49,871  0.07 
Government   5  1,151  0.00 

       
Total:  201  $72,339,951  100.0% 

____________________ 
Source: Urban Futures, Inc. with information from the Riverside County 2013-14 Secured Property Tax Roll. 

Page 91 of 117



 

 52 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Largest Taxpayers 

Set forth below are the ten largest taxpayers in Project No. 1 and Project No. 5, respectively, 
based on the 2013-14 secured property tax roll.  

CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA NO. 1 
Ten Largest Secured Property Taxpayers 

2013-14 Fiscal Year 
 

 
 Property Owner 

 
Land Use 

2013-14 Secured 
Assessed Valuation 

% of 
Total(1) 

1.Stater Bros Market Commercial  $ 5,283,521 14.22% 
2.San Gorgonio Land Agricultural 2,674,867 7.20 
3.Oak Valley Partners Commercial  2,649,174 7.13 
4.McDonalds Corp Commercial  2,278,877 6.13 
5.Monte Vista Medical Center Commercial  1,963,826 5.28 
6.Masini Kelly Ann Commercial  1,836,535 4.94 
7.Saba Partners Inc Agricultural 1,702,273 4.58 
8.Calimesa Plaza Commercial  1,312,513 3.53 
9.Patel Vibhakerbhaib Commercial  1,259,310 3.39 

10.Rowland Heights Mobile Estates Commercial      1,256,428   3.38 
                                          Total $22,217,324 59.78% 
 ________________ 

(1) Based on fiscal year 2013-14 total Project No. 1 secured assessed valuation of $37,162,374.   
Source:  Compiled by Urban Futures, Inc. from the Riverside County 2013-14 Secured Property Tax Roll. 

 
CALIMESA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA NO. 5 

Ten Largest Secured Property Taxpayers 
2013-14 Fiscal Year 

 
 

 Property Owner 
 

Land Use 
2013-14 Secured 

Assessed Valuation 
% of 

Total(1) 
1.Redus One Commercial  $7,259,962 10.04% 
2.Walgreen Co. Commercial 5,947,238 8.22 
3.5th Street Business Park  Commercial  4,286,191 5.93 
4.Learned Perry LP Commercial  2,982,791 4.12 
5.Atlas Storage Commercial  2,652,000 3.67 
6.Avakian Joseph L Commercial  2,407,564 3.33 
7.Fresh & Easy Neighborhood Markets Inc Commercial 2,226,916 3.08 
8.Maingot William George Commercial  2,221,152 3.07 
9.Tsai Yun Chih Commercial  2,010,080 2.78 

10.Jack in the Box Commercial      1,769,505   2.45 
                                          Total $33,763,399 46.67% 
 ________________ 

(1)   Based on fiscal year 2013-14 total Project No. 5 secured assessed valuation of $72,339,951.   
Source:  Compiled by Urban Futures, Inc. from the Riverside County 2013-14 Secured Property Tax Roll. 

 

Page 92 of 117



 

 53 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Appeals 

As previously discussed under “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA – Appeals of 
Assessed Values,” property owners may apply for a reduction of their property tax assessment by filing a 
written application, in form prescribed by the State Board of Equalization, with the appropriate county 
board of equalization or assessment appeals board. 

From August 1, 2007 through April 1, 2014, 43 appeals were filed by property owners with 
respect to assessed values of their respective parcels in Project No. 1.  The aggregate assessed value of the 
properties subject to such appeals was $34,873,315.  Collectively, the appeals filed during this period 
requested reductions in assessed values in a total amount of $17,607,788, of which amount a reduction of 
$281,774, in the aggregate (amounting to 1.60% of the requested reductions and pertaining to 2 successful 
appeals), was allowed by the State Board of Equalization.     

From August 1, 2007 through April 1, 2014, 28 appeals were filed by property owners with 
respect to assessed values of their respective parcels in Project No. 5.  The aggregate assessed value of the 
properties subject to such appeals was $47,002,621.  Collectively, the appeals filed during this period 
requested reductions in assessed values in a total amount of $23,181,167, of which amount a reduction of 
$357,638, in the aggregate (amounting to 1.54% of the requested reductions and pertaining to 2 successful 
appeals), was allowed by the State Board of Equalization.     

Currently, there are 16 outstanding assessed valuation appeals with respect to parcels located in 
Project No. 1 and 17 outstanding assessed valuation appeals with respect to parcels located in Project No. 
5.  The aggregate assessed value of the properties in Project No. 1 currently subject to such appeals is 
$9,235,220, and collectively, the appeals have requested reductions in assessed values in a total amount of 
$3,867,678.  The aggregate assessed value of the properties in Project No. 5 currently subject to such 
appeals is $43,057,322, and collectively, the appeals have requested reductions in assessed values in a 
total amount of $18,886,157.  The Authority and the Agency have no way of knowing the outcome of 
these appeals or their effect on the valuation in the Project Areas. 

See “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT,” for further details regarding the 
appeals historical and currently outstanding assessment appeals with respect to property located within 
the Project Areas. 

 

 

 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

  

Page 93 of 117



 

 54 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

PLEDGED REVENUES 

Pledged Tax Revenues (as described in the section “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein) are 
to be deposited by the Agency in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, and thereafter 
transferred by the Agency to the Authority for deposit in the respective Bond Funds established under the 
2014 Loan Agreements.  Monies deposited into such Bond Funds are thereafter transferred by the 
Authority to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund established under the Indenture and 
administered by the Trustee and applied to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Schedules of Historical Incremental Revenues 

The following tables are schedules of the taxable valuations and resulting incremental revenues in 
each Project Area for the Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2013-14. 

Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 
Assessed Valuation and Incremental Revenues 

 2010-11  2011-12  2012-13  2013-14  
Assessed Valuation (AV) $38,090,573  $38,791,114  $39,639,590  $40,074,510  
Base Year Value (18,860,692)  (18,860,692)  (18,860,692)  (18,860,692)  
Incremental Value $19,229,881  $19,930,422  $20,778,898  $21,213,818  
Estimated Incremental Revenues $     228,739  $      199,304(1)  $     207,789(1)  $      212,138(1)  
      
Base Year as a % of Current AV 49.52% 48.62% 47.58% 47.06%  
      
Housing Set-Aside (2) $     (45,748) $       (39,861) -- --  
County Administration Fees (2,996) (2,522) $        (2,522) $         (2,779)  
Pass-Throughs(3) (101,636) (88,557) (92,327) (94,259)  
Net Available for Debt Service   $      78,359   $        68,365   $      112,940 $      115,100  

(1) Estimated based on a 1.00% property tax rate, per AB 1484.  Rate prior to the implementation of AB 1484 was approximately 1.19% 
(2) Per AB 1484, the Successor Agency is no longer required to set aside tax revenues for housing purposes in 2012-13 and thereafter. 
(3) See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Pass-Through Agreements” and “– Statutory Pass-Throughs.” 
Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. 

Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 5 
Assessed Valuation and Incremental Revenues 

 2010-11  2011-12  2012-13  2013-14  
Assessed Valuation (AV) $77,627,565  $78,162,044  $80,983,059  $85,570,011  
Base Year Value (16,364,744)  (16,364,744)  (16,364,744)  (16,364,744)  
Incremental Value $61,262,821  $61,797,300  $64,618,315  $69,205,267  
Estimated Incremental Revenues $     728,721  $     617,973(1)  $     646,183(1)  $      692,053(1)  
      
Base Year as a % of Current AV 21.08% 20.94% 20.21% 19.12%  
      
Housing Set-Aside(2) $    (145,744) $    (123,595) -- --  
County Administration Fees (9,546) (7,857) $       (7,857) $         (9,066)  
Pass-Throughs(3) (234,683) (202,041) (213,020) (230,870)  
Net Available for Debt Service   $     338,748   $     284,480   $    425,306 $      452,117  

(1) Estimated based on a 1.00% property tax rate, per AB 1484.  Rate prior to the implementation of AB 1484 was approximately 1.19% 
(2) Per AB 1484, the Successor Agency is no longer required to set aside tax revenues for housing purposes in 2012-13 and thereafter. 
(3) See “THE PROJECT AREAS – Pass-Through Agreements” and “– Statutory Pass-Throughs.” 
Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. 

Page 94 of 117



 

 55 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues 

The Authority has retained Urban Futures, Inc. of Orange, California to provide projections of 
taxable valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues the property in the Project Areas.  The Authority and the 
Agency believe the assumptions (set forth in the footnotes below and “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL 
ADVISOR’S REPORT”) upon which the projections are based are reasonable; however, some 
assumptions may not materialize and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur (see “RISK 
FACTORS”). Therefore, the actual Pledged Tax Revenues received during the forecast period may vary 
from the projections and the variations may be material.  Summaries of the projected taxable valuation 
and projected Pledged Tax Revenues to be derived from each Project Area are as follows: 

Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 1 
Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues 

 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Valuation (1) 

Gross 
Pledged Tax 
Revenues (1) 

County 
Admin. 

Fees 

 
Pass-

Through 
Agreements 

Net Pledged 
Tax Revenues 
Available for 

Debt Service (2) 
2014 $40,074,510 $212,138 $2,779  $  94,259  $115,100  
2015 40,876,000  220,153  2,884  97,821  119,448  
2016 41,693,520  228,328  2,991  101,453  123,884  
2017 42,527,391  236,667  3,100  105,158  128,408  
2018 43,377,938  245,172  3,212  108,937  133,023  
2019 44,245,497  253,848  3,325  112,792  137,730  
2020 45,130,407  262,697  3,441  116,724  142,532  
2021 46,033,015  271,723  3,560  120,735  147,429  
2022 46,953,676  280,930  3,680  124,826  152,424  
2023 47,892,749  290,321  3,803  128,998  157,519  
2024 48,850,604  299,899  3,929  133,254  162,716  
2025 49,827,616  309,669  4,057  137,595  168,017  
2026 50,824,168  319,635  4,187  142,023  173,424  
2027 51,840,652  329,800  4,320  146,540  178,939  
2028 52,877,465  340,168  4,456  151,147  184,565  
2029 53,935,014  350,743  4,595  155,846  190,303  
2030 55,013,714  361,530  4,736  160,639  196,155  
2031 56,113,989  372,533  4,880  165,528  202,125  
2032 57,236,269  383,756  5,027  170,514  208,214  
2033 58,380,994  395,203  5,177  175,601  214,425  
2034 59,548,614  406,879  5,330  180,789  220,760  
2035 60,739,586  418,789  5,486  186,080  227,222  
2036 61,954,378  430,937  5,645  191,478  233,813  
2037 63,193,465  443,328  5,808  196,984  240,536  
2038 64,457,335  455,966  5,973  202,600  247,394  

     
(1) Commencing Fiscal Year 2014-15, based on projected 2% annual assessed valuation growth over Fiscal Year 

2013-14 actual assessed valuation and projected 2% assessed valuation growth annually thereafter.   
(2) Based on the columns “Gross Pledged Tax Revenues,” less “County Admin. Fees,” and “Pass-Through 

Agreements.” 

Page 95 of 117



 

 56 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Calimesa Redevelopment Project Area No. 5 
Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues 

 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Valuation (1) 

Gross 
Pledged Tax 
Revenues (1) 

County 
Admin. 

Fees 

Statutory 
Pass-

Throughs  

 
Pass-

Through 
Agreements 

Net Pledged 
Tax Revenues 
Available for 

Debt Service (2) 
2014 $ 85,570,011 $  692,053 $  9,066  $23,890   $206,981  $452,117  
2015 87,281,411  709,167  9,290  25,431   212,099  462,346  
2016 89,027,039  726,623  9,519  27,004   217,320  472,781  
2017 90,807,580  744,428  9,752  28,607   222,645  483,424  
2018 92,623,732  762,590  9,990  30,243   228,077  494,280  
2019 94,476,206  781,115  10,233  33,314   233,617  503,951  
2020 96,365,731  800,010  10,480  36,445   239,269  513,816  
2021 98,293,045  819,283  10,733  39,640   245,033  523,878  
2022 100,258,906  838,942  10,990  42,898   250,912  534,141  
2023 102,264,084  858,993  11,253  46,221   256,910  544,610  
2024 104,309,366  879,446  11,521  49,611   263,027  555,287  
2025 106,395,553  900,308  11,794  53,069   269,266  566,179  
2026 108,523,464  921,587  12,073  56,596   275,630  577,288  
2027 110,693,934  943,292  12,357  60,193   282,122  588,620  
2028 112,907,812  965,431  12,647  63,863   288,743  600,178  
2029 115,165,969  988,012  12,943  67,605   295,497  611,967  
2030 117,469,288  1,011,045  13,245  71,423   302,386  623,992  
2031 119,818,674  1,034,539  13,552  75,317   309,412  636,258  
2032 122,215,047  1,058,503  13,866  79,288   316,579  648,769  
2033 124,659,348  1,082,946  14,187  83,340   323,890  661,530  
2034 127,152,535  1,107,878  14,513  87,472   331,346  674,546  
2035 129,695,586  1,133,308  14,846  91,687   338,952  687,823  
2036 132,289,497  1,159,248  15,186  95,986   346,710  701,365  

2037 (3) -- -- -- --  -- -- 
2038 (3) -- -- -- --  -- -- 

     
(1) Commencing Fiscal Year 2014-15, based on projected 2% annual assessed valuation growth over Fiscal Year 

2013-14 actual assessed valuation and projected 2% assessed valuation growth annually thereafter.   
(2) Based on the columns “Gross Pledged Tax Revenues,” less “County Admin. Fees,” “Statutory Pass-Throughs,” 

and “Pass-Through Agreements.” 
(3) The right to receive property taxes with respect to Project No. 5 terminates prior to the final maturity of the 

Bonds.  See “RISK FACTORS – Time Limits on Receiving Tax Increment Revenues.” 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

 

  

Page 96 of 117



 

 57 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Annual Debt Service 

Set forth below is the annual debt service (assuming scheduled sinking fund payments) for the 
term of the Bonds. 

Calimesa Financing Authority 
Tax Allocation Refunding Revenue Bonds 

(Calimesa Redevelopment Project No. 1 and Project No. 5) 
Series 2014 

Annual Debt Service* 
 

Maturity  
 

   Total 
Date      Debt 

(December 1 of)  Principal  Interest  Service 
2014  $   155,000.00  $    64,234.27  $   219,234.27 
2015  90,000.00  124,797.00  214,797.00 
2016  90,000.00  123,735.00  213,735.00 
2017  95,000.00  122,115.00  217,115.00 
2018  95,000.00  120,044.00  215,044.00 
2019  100,000.00  117,602.50  217,602.50 
2020  95,000.00  114,792.50  209,792.50 
2021  105,000.00  111,733.50  216,733.50 
2022  110,000.00  107,985.00  217,985.00 
2023  110,000.00  103,750.00  213,750.00 
2024  115,000.00  99,273.00  214,273.00 
2025  120,000.00  94,431.50  214,431.50 
2026  125,000.00  89,199.50  214,199.50 
2027  135,000.00  83,587.00  218,587.00 
2028  135,000.00  77,390.50  212,390.50 
2029  145,000.00  71,032.00  216,032.00 
2030  150,000.00  63,695.00  213,695.00 
2031  160,000.00  56,105.00  216,105.00 
2032  170,000.00  48,009.00  218,009.00 
2033  175,000.00  39,407.00  214,407.00 
2034  185,000.00  30,552.00  215,552.00 
2035  195,000.00  20,636.00  215,636.00 
2036  60,000.00  10,184.00  70,184.00 
2037  65,000.00  6,968.00  71,968.00 
2038  65,000.00  3,484.00  68,484.00 

Total  $3,045,000.00  $1,904,742.27  $4,949,742.27 
 

 

 

 

                                                   
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Page 97 of 117



 

 58 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Debt Service Coverage – 2014 Loans 

The projected debt service coverage for the 2014 Loans, and therefore, on the Bonds, for the 
Bond Years ending December 1, 2014 through December 1, 2038 is set forth in the following table, based 
on two growth scenarios for assessed valuation within the Project Areas:  (i) annual projected growth in 
assessed valuation of 2% in 2014-15 and 2% annually thereafter, and (ii) no growth in assessed valuation 
of the Project Areas from 2013-14 assessed valuation (see “PLEDGED REVENUES – Projected Taxable 
Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues” and “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT”). 

Projected Debt Service Coverage on 2014 Loans and Bonds 

Bond Year 
Ending 

December 1 

Projected Net 
Pledged Tax 

Revenues 
Derived from 

Project No. 1(1) 

Projected Net 
Pledged Tax 

Revenues 
Derived from 

Project No. 5 (1) 

Projected  
Total Net 

Pledged Tax 
Revenues (1) 

2014 Project  
No. 1 Loan  

Debt Service (2)* 

2014 Project  
No. 5 Loan  

Debt Service (2)* 

Total  
Debt Service  

on 2014 Loans / 
Bonds (3)* 

Projected  
Debt Service 

Coverage  
on 2014 Loans / 

Bonds 
(Growth 

Scenario) (4)* 

Projected  
Debt Service 

Coverage  
on 2014 Loans / 

Bonds 
(No-Growth 
Scenario) (5)* 

2014 $115,100  $452,117  $567,216  $80,590 $138,644  $219,234  2.59x 2.59x 
2015 119,448  462,346  581,795  78,959 135,838  214,797  2.71x 2.64x  
2016 123,884  472,781  596,665  78,569 135,166  213,735  2.79x 2.65x  
2017 128,408  483,424  611,832  79,811 137,304  217,115  2.82x 2.61x  
2018 133,023  494,280  627,303  79,050 135,994  215,044  2.92x 2.64x  
2019 137,730  503,951  641,681  79,991 137,612  217,603  2.95x 2.61x  
2020 142,532  513,816  656,347  77,120 132,672  209,792  3.13x 2.70x  
2021 147,429  523,878  671,307  79,671 137,063  216,734  3.10x 2.62x  
2022 152,424  534,141  686,565  80,131 137,854  217,985  3.15x 2.60x  
2023 157,519  544,610  702,129  78,575 135,176  213,750  3.28x 2.65x  
2024 162,716  555,287  718,004  78,767 135,506  214,273  3.35x 2.65x  
2025 168,017  566,179  734,196  78,825 135,607  214,432  3.42x 2.65x  
2026 173,424  577,288  750,713  78,740 135,459  214,199  3.50x 2.65x  
2027 178,939  588,620  767,559  80,353 138,234  218,587  3.51x 2.59x  
2028 184,565  600,178  784,743  78,075 134,316  212,391  3.69x 2.67x  
2029 190,303  611,967  802,270  79,413 136,619  216,032  3.71x 2.63x  
2030 196,155  623,992  820,148  78,554 135,141  213,695  3.84x 2.65x  
2031 202,125  636,258  838,383  79,440 136,665  216,105  3.88x 2.62x  
2032 208,214  648,769  856,983  80,140 137,869  218,009  3.93x 2.60x  
2033 214,425  661,530  875,955  78,816 135,591  214,407  4.09x 2.65x  
2034 220,760  674,546  895,307  79,237 136,315  215,552  4.15x 2.63x  
2035 227,222  687,823  915,045  79,268 136,368  215,636  4.24x 2.63x  
2036 233,813  701,365  935,179  70,184 -- 70,184  13.32x 8.08x  
2037 240,536  -- 240,536  71,968 -- 71,968  3.34x 1.60x  
2038 247,394  -- 247,394  68,484 -- 68,484  3.61x 1.68x  

_________________________ 
* Preliminary; subject to change.  
(1) Annual projected growth in assessed valuation is 2% in 2014-15 from 2013-14 valuation, and 2% annually thereafter. 
(2) Based on Pro Rata Share (as defined in the 2014 Loan Agreements and the Indenture) of total debt service, which is the same 

as the “Pro Rata Share” from 2008 Loan Agreements to achieve same percentage of savings per Project Area. 
(3) Includes debt service on the 2014 Project No. 1 Loan and on the 2014 Project No. 5 Loan. 
(4) Projected Total Net Pledged Tax Revenues (from both Project Areas) assuming assessed valuation growth per footnote (1) 

above, divided by Total Debt Service on 2014 Loans.  Annual Total Debt Service on 2014 Loans is equivalent to annual debt 
service on the Bonds for each Bond Year. 

(5) Assumes assessed valuation of property within the Project Areas, and therefore, Projected Total Net Pledged Tax Revenues, 
remain constant through maturity of the Bonds, at 2013-14 Projected Total Net Pledged Tax Revenues amounts. 

Source:  Jefferies LLC as to debt service on the 2014 Loans and Bonds; Urban Futures, Inc. 

Page 98 of 117



 

 59 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

CONCLUDING INFORMATION 

Underwriting 

The Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by Jefferies LLC (the “Underwriter”).  The original 
purchase price (being the initial principal amount of the Bonds [plus/less] the net reoffering 
[premium/discount] in the amount of $_______ and less an underwriter’s discount of $_______) to be 
paid for the Bonds is $_______.  The Underwriter intends to offer the Bonds to the public initially at the 
yields set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, which yields may subsequently change 
without any requirement of prior notice. 

The Underwriter reserves the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the 
Bonds to the public.  The Underwriter may offer and sell Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers 
depositing Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices, and such dealers 
may reallow any such discounts on sales to other dealers. 

Legal Opinion 

The opinion of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Los Angeles, 
California (“Bond Counsel”), approving the validity of the Bonds and stating that interest on the Bonds is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and such interest is also exempt from 
personal income taxes of the State of California under present State income tax laws, will be furnished to 
the purchaser at the time of delivery of the Bonds at the expense of the Agency.  Compensation for Bond 
Counsel's services is entirely contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds. 

A copy of the proposed form of Bond Counsel's final approving opinion with respect to the 
Bonds is attached hereto as APPENDIX C. 

The legal opinion is only as to legality and is not intended to be nor is it to be interpreted or relied 
upon as a disclosure document or an express or implied recommendation as to the investment quality of 
the Bonds. 

In addition, certain legal matters will be passed on for the Authority by Richards, Watson & 
Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Los Angeles, California, as Disclosure Counsel, and for the 
Underwriter by Quint & Thimmig LLP, Larkspur, California, as Underwriter’s Counsel. 

Tax Exemption 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), establishes certain requirements 
which must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds for interest thereon to be and 
remain excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  Noncompliance with such 
requirements could cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax 
purposes retroactive to their date of issue.  These requirements include, but are not limited to, provisions 
which limit how the proceeds of the Bonds may be spent and invested, and generally require that certain 
investment earnings be rebated on a periodic basis to the United States of America.  The District has 
made certifications and representations and has covenanted to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the 
Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Code. 

In the opinion of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Bond Counsel, under 
existing law and assuming the accuracy of such certifications and representations by the District and 
compliance with such covenants, (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal 

Page 99 of 117



 

 60 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code, and (ii) the Bonds are not “specified private activity 
bonds” within the meaning of Section 57(a)(5) of the Code and, therefore, interest on the Bonds is not a 
preference item for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the 
Code.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that under existing law interest on the Bonds is exempt from 
State of California personal income taxes.  Further, Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under 
current federal income tax laws, the Bonds will qualify as qualified tax-exempt obligations under Section 
265(b)(3) of the Code. 

Under the Code, a portion of the interest on the Bonds earned by certain corporations may be 
subject to a federal corporate alternative minimum tax.  In addition, interest on the Bonds may be subject 
to a federal branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States 
and to a federal tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations.  The exclusion of 
interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes may have certain adverse federal income tax 
consequences on items of income, deduction or credit for certain taxpayers, including financial 
institutions, certain insurance companies, recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, 
those deemed to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and 
individuals eligible for the earned income tax credit.  Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding 
these and other such consequences. 

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any circumstances or events 
occurring after the date of issuance of the Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds.  No 
assurance can be given that future legislation, or amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, will not 
contain provisions which could eliminate, or directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the exclusion of 
interest on the Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  Certain requirements and 
procedures contained or referred to in relevant documents may be changed and certain actions may be 
taken, under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents, upon 
the advice or with the approving opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel.  Bond Counsel expresses 
no opinion as to any Bond, or the interest thereon, if any such change occurs or action is taken upon the 
advice or approval of bond counsel other than Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation. 

If the issue price of a Bond (the first price at which a substantial amount of the bonds of a 
maturity are to be sold to the public) is less than the stated redemption price at maturity of such Bond, the 
difference constitutes original issue discount, the accrual of which is excluded from gross income for 
Federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the Bonds.  Further, such original issue 
discount accrues actuarially on a constant yield method over the term of each such Bond and the basis of 
each Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the 
amount of such accrued original issue discount.  The accrual of original issue discount is generally taken 
into account as an increase in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other 
tax consequences of owning such Bonds.  Purchasers who acquire Bonds with original issue discount are 
advised that they should consult with their own independent tax advisors with respect to the state and 
local tax consequences of owning such Bonds. 

If the issue price of a Bond is greater than the stated redemption price at maturity of such Bond, 
the difference constitutes original issue premium, the amortization of which is not deductible from gross 
income for Federal income tax purposes.  Original issue premium is amortized over the period to maturity 
of such Bond based on the yield to maturity of that Bond (or, in the case of a Bond callable prior to its 
stated maturity, the amortization period and yield may be required to be determined on the basis of an 
earlier call date that results in the lowest yield on that Bond), compounded semiannually.  For purposes of 
determining gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of such Bond, the purchaser is required to 
decrease such purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Bond by the amount of premium that has amortized 
while the purchaser has owned the Bond. 

Page 100 of 117



 

 61 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds, are generally subject to IRS 
Form 1099-INT information reporting requirements.  If an owner of a Bond is subject to backup 
withholding under those requirements, then payments of interest will also be subject to backup 
withholding.  Those requirements do not affect the exclusion of such interest from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes. 

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own independent tax advisers regarding 
pending or proposed federal and state tax legislation and court proceedings, and prospective purchasers of 
the Bonds at other than their original issuance at the respective prices indicated on the cover of this 
Official Statement should also consult their own tax advisers regarding other tax considerations such as 
the consequences of market discount, as to all of which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion. 

The Internal Revenue Service has established a program to audit issues of tax-exempt bonds in 
order to determine whether, in its view, interest should instead be included in gross income of the 
Bondholders for purposes of federal income taxation.  It cannot be predicted whether or not the Bonds 
will be subjected to such an audit.  If such an audit is undertaken, it could adversely affect the market 
value of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome of the audit.  See 
“RISK FACTORS – Loss of Tax-Exemption” herein. 

A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as APPENDIX C. 

No Litigation 

There is no action, suit or proceeding known to the Authority or the Agency to be pending and 
notice of which has been served upon and received by the Authority or Agency, as applicable, or 
threatened, restraining or enjoining the execution or delivery of the Bonds, the Indenture, or the 2014 
Loan Agreements or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the foregoing or any proceedings of 
the Authority and the Agency taken with respect to any of the foregoing. 

[No] Rating 

[The Authority has not made, and does not contemplate making, application to any rating agency 
for the assignment of a rating to the Bonds.] 

[Standard & Poor’s Credit Markets Services, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, 
(“S&P”) has assigned their municipal bond rating of “___” to the Bonds.  Such rating reflects only the 
views of such organization and any desired explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained 
from such rating agency at the following addresses:  Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, 55 Water Street, 
New York, New York 10041, (212) 438-2000.  Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the 
information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of its own.  There 
is no assurance such rating will continue for any given period of time or that such rating will not be 
revised downward or withdrawn entirely by S&P, if in the judgment of such rating agency, circumstances 
so warrant.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the 
market price of the Bonds.] 

Continuing Disclosure 

Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) with the Trustee 
and Urban Futures, Inc., as dissemination agent (the “Dissemination Agent”), the Agency has agreed to 
provide, or cause to be provided, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) certain annual 
financial information and operating data within nine (9) months after the end of the Agency’s fiscal year, 

Page 101 of 117



 

 62 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

including (a) its postaudit of the financial transactions and records of the Agency for the applicable fiscal 
year pursuant to Section 34177(n) of the Dissolution Act, and (b) information of the type set forth in this 
Official Statement in the tables entitled “Assessed Valuation and Incremental Revenues” for the Project 
Areas under the caption “PLEDGED REVENUES – Schedule of Historical Incremental Revenues” and in 
the tables entitled “Ten Largest Secured Property Taxpayers” under the caption “THE PROJECT AREAS 
– Largest Taxpayers.”   

In addition, the Agency has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, to the MSRB in a timely 
manner, not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of any such event, notice of the following 
“Listed Events”:  (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if 
material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled 
draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity 
providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue 
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the security; (7) modifications to rights of security holders, if 
material; (8) bond calls, if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of 
property securing repayment of the securities, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, 
insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Obligated Person (as defined in “APPENDIX E – FORM 
OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT”); (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, 
or acquisition involving an Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
Obligated Person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to 
undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other 
than pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the 
change of name of a trustee, if material.   

These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-
12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“Rule 15c2-12”).  The Agency may 
amend the Disclosure Agreement, and waive any provision thereof, by written agreement of the parties, 
without the consent of the Owners, if all of the following conditions are satisfied:  (1) such amendment is 
made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal (including 
regulatory) requirements, a change in law (including rules or regulations) or in interpretations thereof, or 
a change in the identity, nature or status of the Agency or the type of business conducted thereby; (2) the 
Disclosure Agreement as so amended would have complied with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 as of 
the date of the Disclosure Agreement, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the 
Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; (3) the Agency shall have delivered to the Dissemination 
Agent an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, 
addressed to the Agency and the Dissemination Agent, to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above; 
(4) the Agency shall have delivered to the Dissemination Agent an opinion of nationally recognized bond 
counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, addressed to the Agency, to the effect that the 
amendment does not materially impair the interests of the Owners; and (5) the Agency shall have 
delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to the MSRB. 

In addition, the Agency's obligations under the Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the 
defeasance or payment in full of all of the Bonds.  The provisions of the Disclosure Agreement are 
intended to be for the benefit of the Owners and shall be enforceable by the Trustee on behalf of such 
Owners, provided that any enforcement action shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of 
the Agency's obligations under the Disclosure Agreement and any failure by the Agency to comply with 
the provisions thereof shall not be an event of default under the Indenture or under the 2014 Loan 
Agreements.  See “APPENDIX E – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” 

Page 102 of 117



 

 63 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Presentation of Agency Financial Statements Subsequent to Statutory Dissolution. 

As previously described herein, the Prior Agency was statutorily dissolved on February 1, 2012, 
and the Agency commenced operations as of the same date.  Therefore, the Prior Agency operated for 
only seven months in fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and the Agency operated for the last five months of 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  These activities of the Prior Agency and the Agency with respect to 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were reported in audited financial statements prepared for the Agency for 
such fiscal year, separately from City audited financial statements.  Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the 
housing assets, housing obligations, and housing activities of the Prior Agency were transferred to the 
City. 

Commencing with fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Agency will no longer prepare separate 
audited financial statements from the City, but rather the activities of the Agency will be reported as a 
fiduciary trust fund as part of the City’s Annual Audit Report (i.e., audited financial statements), which is 
in accordance with guidance issued by the State Department of Finance on September 19, 2012 and 
available on its website as of April 29, 2014, interpreting Section 34177(n) of the California Health and 
Safety Code concerning certain successor agency postaudit obligations.  See “APPENDIX F – ANNUAL 
AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (EXCERPTS),” and in particular Note 
10 therein regarding “Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies in California and Resultant Successor 
Agency to the Former Redevelopment Agency.”  A complete copy of the City of Calimesa Annual Audit 
Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 can be obtained from the City’s Finance Department. 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
which provide guidance for determining which governmental activities, organizations and functions 
should be included in the reporting entity, the Annual Audit Report presents information on the activities 
of the reporting entity, which includes the City (the primary government) and related but separate legal 
entities such as the Calimesa Financing Authority, the Prior Agency, and the Agency.  Such accounting 
presentation, however, does not change the separate legal status of the entities.  With regard to the 
Agency in particular, as set forth in Section 34173(g) of the Dissolution Act, “A successor agency is a 
separate public entity from the public agency that provides for its governance and the two entities shall 
not merge.”   

The State Department of Finance’s website is not in any way incorporated into this Official 
Statement, and the Agency cannot take any responsibility for, nor make any representation whatsoever as 
to, the continued accuracy of the Internet address or the accuracy, completeness, or timeliness of 
information posted there. In addition, from time to time, the State Department of Finance changes its 
guidance without notice. 

Continuing Disclosure History. 

In connection with the 2008 Bonds, the Prior Agency entered into continuing disclosure 
obligations under Rule 15c2-12 to file annual financial statements by March 31 of each year.  Prior to the 
printing of this Official Statement, an examination was conducted of the continuing disclosure filings by 
the Prior Agency and the Agency during the past five years.  The result of such examination indicated a 
few instances of filing delays.  The continuing disclosure filings for the first year after the issuance of the 
2008 Bonds inadvertently were filed approximately five months after March 31.  After the first year, 
however, the portion of the filings comprised of annually updated information of certain tables and 
portions of Official Statement, dated March 19, 2008, for the 2008 Bonds, have timely been filed by the 
applicable March 31, with the exception of the most recent filing, which was filed on April 4, 2014, due 
to problems experienced by the Dissemination Agent with respect to the Electronic Municipal Market 
Access System (the “EMMA System”) of the MSRB.  As to the portion of the filings comprised of the 

Page 103 of 117



 

 64 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

annual financial statements, the financial statements were filed in three instances in April, when the audit 
reports for the respective audited financial statements were complete.  In another instance, the annual 
financial statements were not filed until July, even though audited financial statements were completed by 
January, due to changes in key personnel of City’s finance department, which also handles financial 
matters of the Prior Agency and Agency.  For the most recent fiscal year, 2012-13, the City and Agency 
engaged a new auditor, which required additional time for the auditors to become familiar with the City 
and Agency accounting practices.  Now that this initial process has taken place, the Agency expects that 
future audited financial statements will proceed with the new auditors more expediently.  The Agency 
believes that its procedures with its Dissemination Agent are sufficient in the normal due course to assure 
substantial compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings and that the above-mentioned filing 
delays are anomalies due to unusual circumstances. 

A failure by the Agency to comply with the provisions of the Disclosure Agreement is not an 
event of default under the Indenture or the 2014 Loan Agreements (although the Trustee does have 
remedies at law and in equity).  However, a failure to comply with the provisions of the Disclosure 
Agreement must be reported in accordance with the SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) and must be considered by 
any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds. 
Therefore, a failure by the Agency to comply with the provisions of the Disclosure Agreement may 
adversely affect the marketability of the Bonds on the secondary market. 

Miscellaneous 

All of the preceding summaries of the Indenture, the 2014 Loan Agreements, the Escrow 
Agreement, the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, the Redevelopment Law, other applicable legislation, the 
Redevelopment Plans for the Project Areas, agreements and other documents are made subject to the 
provisions of such documents respectively and do not purport to be complete statements of any or all of 
such provisions.  Reference is hereby made to such documents on file with the Authority for further 
information in connection therewith. 

This Official Statement does not constitute a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.  Any 
statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not so 
expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that 
any of the estimates will be realized. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Chief Administrative Officer has 
been duly authorized by the Authority. 

CALIMESA FINANCING AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 By:    
   Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 104 of 117



 

 A-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF CALIMESA  

The following information concerning the City of Calimesa and the surrounding area is included 
herein only for the purpose of supplying general information regarding the community.  Neither the 
Bonds, nor the obligations of the Agency under the 2014 Loan Agreements, are a debt of the City, the 
County, the State of California or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency and the Authority, 
as applicable) and neither said City, said County, said State or any of its political subdivisions (except the 
Agency and the Authority, as applicable) is liable therefor.  See the section in the forepart of this Official 
Statement entitled “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.” 

 

General 

The City is located in the County of Riverside in the San Gorgonio Pass area, in the highlands 
between Redlands and Beaumont.  Situated in northwest Riverside County, the City flanks either side of  
Interstate 10 and borders the County of San Bernardino.  The City was incorporated in December 1990 
and has a general law form of government.  The City Council is elected at large, and the City Council 
annually elects the Mayor from the councilmembers. 

The City is at an elevation of 2,500 feet and encompasses approximately 15.6 square miles.  The 
average high temperature is 79.5 degrees, and the average low temperature is 50.2 degrees.  Annual 
precipitation ranges between 17 inches and 39 inches, with higher altitude areas generally receiving 
between 30 and 39 inches, and the lower elevation areas receiving between 17 and 30 inches. 

 
Population 

 
The City’s estimated population on January 1, 2013 was 8,094.  The following table shows the 

estimated past population data for the City. 
 

CITY OF CALIMESA 
 

Date  Population  Date  Population 
Jan. 1, 2004  7,579  Jan. 1, 2009  7,747 
Jan. 1, 2005  7,601  Jan. 1, 2010  7,847 
Jan. 1, 2006  7,608  Jan. 1, 2011  7,910 
Jan. 1, 2007  7,605  Jan. 1, 2012  8,022 
Jan. 1, 2008  7,626  Jan. 1, 2013  8,094 

_________________ 
Source:  Demographic Research Unit, California State Department of Finance. 

 

Page 105 of 117



 

 A-2 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Assessed Valuation 

A ten year history of the City’s taxable assessed valuation is as follows: 
 

 Total Assessed 
Value 

% change from 
Previous Year 

2004-05 $429,748,987  10.39% 
2005-06 481,420,409  12.02 
2006-07 565,628,577  17.49 
2007-08 628,351,796  11.09 
2008-09 674,541,416 7.35 
2009-10 593,585,951 -12.00 
2010-11 562,563,395 -5.23 
2011-12 555,699,706 -1.22 
2012-13 566,297,899 1.91 
2013-14 581,850,467 2.74 

_____________________ 
Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. 

 
Employment and Industry 
 

The City is located in Riverside County.  The available labor force employment and 
unemployment figures over the last five years for Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (MSA), which encompasses Riverside and San Bernardino Counties, is as follows. 
 

Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario MSA 
Annual Average Labor Force and Industry Employment 

 
Industry  2009  2010  2011  2012  2013 

Total Farm  15,200 15,000 14,900 15,000 14,600 
Mining and Logging  1,200 1,000 1,000 1,200 1,200 
Construction  67,400 59,700 58,700 62,600 69,300 
Manufacturing  88,500 85,100 85,800 86,700 86,800 
Trade, Transportation and Utilities  269,700 270,800 275,100 288,200 299,300 
Information  14,800 15,800 15,000 11,500 11,300 
Financial Activities  43,600 41,000 39,200 40,800 42,000 
Professional and Business Services  127,300 123,400 126,100 127,100 132,600 
Educational and Health Services  132,600 133,800 137,900 167,200 182,000 
Leisure and Hospitality  123,000 122,800 124,300 129,300 136,200 
Other Services  36,700 38,200 39,300 40,100 40,800 
Government     227,300    234,300    227,300    224,600      225,000   

Total All Industries (1)  1,147,100 1,140,900 1,144,600 1,194,200 1,241,000 
           
Total Civilian Labor Force (2)  1,778,200 1,798,200 1,799,000 1,812,800 1,818,300 
Total Unemployment  236,600 257,700 241,200 217,900 184,900 
Unemployment Rate  13.3% 14.3% 13.4% 12.0% 10.2% 

___________________ 
(1) Industry employment is by place of work; excludes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, 

household domestic workers and workers on strike. 
(2) Labor force data is by place of residence; includes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, household 

domestic workers and workers on strike. 
Source:  State Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division. 

Page 106 of 117



 

 A-3 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Commercial Activity 
 

A summary of historic taxable sales within the City is shown in the following table. 

CITY OF CALIMESA 
Taxable Sales (Dollars in Thousands) 

 RETAIL STORES  TOTAL ALL OUTLETS 
  

Number of Permits 
Taxable 

Transactions 
  

Number of Permits 
Taxable 

Transactions 
2004  77 $37,668  176 $40,742 
2005 82 42,135  172 44,642 
2006 79 47,290  150 50,575 
2007  87 48,683  155 51,047 
2008 83 47,830  153 54,285 
 RETAIL AND FOOD SERVICES(1)  TOTAL ALL OUTLETS 
2009 105 $43,593  155 $53,092 
2010 116 45,792  159 51,057 
2011 111 53,362  151 57,965 
2012 (2) 118 56,365  165 60,894 

 (1)  Reflects change in reporting by California State Board of Equalization to reflect the board’s conversion of 
business codes of sales and use tax permit holders from a prior system to the North American Industry 
Classification System (NAICS) codes.  As a result of the coding change, industry-level data for 2009 and later 
are not comparable to industry-level data for 2008 and prior years. 

(2)  Latest year-end data available. 
Source: California State Board of Equalization. 
 
Construction Activity 

The following is a summary of the valuation of building permits issued by the City in calendar 
years 2008 through 2013. 

CITY OF CALIMESA 
Building Permit Valuation (Dollars in Thousands) 

 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Residential:       

New single-family units $1,214,753.0 $   892,790.0 $   914,057.4 $ $  $  
New multi-family 243,741.9 75,756.1 71,151.9    
Additions, alterations 118,488.7 85,148.0 94,427.5    

Total Residential $1,576,983.6 $1,053,694.1 $1,079,636.8 $ $  $  
       
Non-Residential:       

New commercial $   539,943.4 $     94,651.4 $   191,323.7 $ $  $  
New industrial 70,410.8 12,277.6 6,685.5    
Other 138,765.2 107,332.1 98,104.6    
Additions, alterations 292,693.8 162,557.5 243,265.5    

Total Non-Residential $1,041,813.2 $   376,818.6 $   539,379.3    
Total Valuation $2,618,796.8 $1,430,512.7 $1,619,016.1 $ $ $ 

       
Number of New Dwelling Units:       

Single-family  3,815 3,431 4,031    
Multi-family  2,104 759 526    

Total Units 5,919 4,190 4,557    
______________________________________ 

Source: Construction Industry Research Board, Building Permit Summary for 2008-2010; City of Calimesa for 2011-2013. 

Page 107 of 117



 

 A-4 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

Utilities 
 

Water and sewer services are provided to residents by the Yucaipa Valley Water District and the 
South Mesa Water Company.  The City contracts with CR&R Waste and Recycling Services for trash 
collection services.  Electricity is provided by Southern California Edison, natural gas is provided by The 
Gas Company, and the telephone service is supplied by Verizon. 
 
Services and Community Facilities 
 

The City’s climate, fresh air and canyon views give rise to four golf resorts and extensive hillside 
trail systems.  Within a few minutes of the City’s center are the Calimesa Country Club, Oak Valley Golf 
Club, Yucaipa Valley Golf Club, and the PGA Golf Club of Southern California at Oak Valley.  
Calimesa’s hills and valleys host miles of hiking, biking, and equestrian trails and are part of a larger 
regional trail system, including a wide range of surfaces and elevations. 

Calimesa contracts with the Riverside County Sheriff’s Department for police protection and 
contracts with the Riverside County Fire Department for fire protection services.  The City has a full time 
paid staff of 13, with the Development Services Department (consisting of Community Development, 
Engineering, and Building & Safety) contracted out.  

Two school districts serve the City:  the Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District and the 
Beaumont Unified School District.  Nearby are Mt. San Jacinto Community College, and San Bernardino 
Community College, and within a half hour commuting distance of Calimesa is the Riverside campus of 
University of California. 

The Norton Younglove Multipurpose Senior Center, in cooperation with the Riverside County 
Office on Aging, provides hot lunches five days a week on site and delivered to seniors, as well as 
offering a number of services for all ages, including bingo, trips, and classes. 

 

Page 108 of 117



 

 B-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX B 
 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE  
AND THE 2014 LOAN AGREEMENTS 

 

 

Page 109 of 117



 

 C-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX C 
 

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

 

 

Page 110 of 117



 

 D-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX D 
 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The information in this Appendix D concerning The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New 
York, New York, and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from DTC and the Authority takes no 
responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof.  The Authority cannot and does not give any 
assurances that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners 
(a) payments of interest, principal or premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds, (b) certificates 
representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in the Bonds, or (c) 
redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered owner of the 
Bonds, or that they will so do on a timely basis, or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect 
Participants will act in the manner described in this Appendix.  The current “Rules” applicable to DTC 
are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current “Procedures” of DTC to be 
followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC. 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.   The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate 
principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized 
under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York 
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of 
the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money 
market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with 
DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other 
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company 
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which 
are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the 
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.   

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their 
purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of 
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant 
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 

Page 111 of 117

www.dtcc.com


 

 D-2 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership 
interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration 
in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the 
identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be 
the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account 
of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain 
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such 
as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For example, 
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit 
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may 
wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided 
directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being 
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such maturity to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

Principal, premium (if any), and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to 
credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 
from the Authority or the Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, 
or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
Principal, premium (if any), and interest payments with respect to the Bonds to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the 
Authority or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility 
of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct 
and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or the Trustee.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a 

Page 112 of 117



 

 D-3 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

successor depository is not obtained, certificates representing the Bonds are required to be printed and 
delivered. 

The Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, representing the Bonds will be printed and 
delivered to DTC in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained 
from sources that the Authority believes to be reliable, but the Authority takes no responsibility for the 
accuracy thereof. 

 

 

 

Page 113 of 117



 

 E-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX E 
 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

Page 114 of 117



 

 F-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX F 
 

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 (EXCERPTS) 

 

 

Page 115 of 117



 

 G-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX G 
 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT 

Page 116 of 117



 

 H-1 
12793-0002\1681619v7.doc 

APPENDIX H 
 

DOF DETERMINATION LETTER 

 

Page 117 of 117




